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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BDO Unibank, Inc. and subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the BDO Unibank Group) and of BDO Unibank, Inc. (the Parent Bank), which
comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the
statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity
and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2021, and notes to financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the BDO Unibank Group and of the Parent Bank as at

December 31, 2021 and 2020, and their financial performance and their cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021 in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described inthe $XGLWRUVY 5HVSRQVLELOL!
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the

BDO Unibank Group and of the Parent Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics for

Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audits of the financial statements in the Philippines,

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements

and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The following are the key audit matters identified in our audit of the financial statements of
the BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank:

(a) Valuation of Loans and Other Receivables
Description of the Matter

The BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank are required to recognize allowance for

impairment on their loans and other receivables using the expected credit loss (ECL)

model in accordance with PFRS 9, Financial Instruments. As of December 31, 2021, the

BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank had loans and other receivables amounting to

P2,450,903 million and P2,399,983 million, respectively, net of allowance for impairment

of P67,743 million and P65,592 million, respectively. Loans and other receivables are the

most significant resources of the BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank which account

IRU DQG RI WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXSYV DQG WKH 3DUHQW %|
respectively.

The allowance for impairment of loans and other receivables is considered to be a matter

of significance as it requires the application of critical management judgment and use of

subjective estimates in determining how much impairment loss is required to be recognized

in the financial statements. These judgment and estimates are disclosed in the BDO

8QLEDQN *URXSTV DQG WKH 3DUHQW %DQNYV DFFRXQWLQJ SROLF
financial statements.

The BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank use an ECL model in determining the
impairment of their loans and other receivables. The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio
of assets entails further estimations as to the likelihood of defaults occurring, the associated
loss ratios and of default correlations between counterparties. Furthermore, the BDO
Unibank Group and the Parent Bank incorporated forward-looking information into both the
assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly from its
initial recognition and the measurement of ECL. The BDO Unibank Group and the Parent
Bank have identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each
loan portfolio and, using an analysis of historical data, have estimated relationships between
macro-economic variables, credit risk and credit losses.

The significant judgments applied and the subjectivity of estimates used by management
have further heightened due to the unprecedented impact of COVID-19 pandemic to the
%'2 8QLEDQN *URXSTVY DQG WKH 3DUHQW %DQNYVY ORDQV DQG UHI
management performed comprehensive review of loan accounts to assess vulnerable loan
accounts which resulted in the transfer of the classification of some loans from Stage 1 to
either Stage 2 or 3. Further, BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank consider the current
and forecasted macroeconomic variables in determining the appropriate overlay and in
updating the probability of default and loss given default. Accordingly, the BDO Unibank
Group and the Parent Bank have recognized in 2021 impairment losses on loans and other
receivables amounting to P17,222 million and P17,006 million, respectively, based on the
ECL model used by the BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank by considering the current
credit status of the loans and receivables and the potential delinquencies brought about by
the current economic condition.
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The disclosures of the BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank on the allowance for
impairment of loans and other receivables, and the related credit risk are included in
Notes 4 and 11 to the financial statements.

How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures to address the risk of material misstatement relating to the adequacy
of allowance for impairment of loans and other receivables, which was considered to be a
significant risk, included:

X

testing the design and operating effectiveness of relevant controls across the
processes, as assisted by our own Information Technology specialists, over the loan
classification into stages, and the calculation and recognition of the allowance for
impairment;

HYDOXDWLQJ DSSURSULDWHQHVYVY RI WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS I
policy and loan impairment process as approved by the Board of Directors;

verifying that the loans are classified to the appropriate stage, and challenging the
criteria used to categorize the loan to Stage 1, 2 or 3 in accordance with PFRS 9;

on a sample basis, evaluating the appropriateness of the credit risk ratings of loans to
assess appropriateness of credit risk monitoring;

DVVHVVLQJ WKH DSSURSULDWHQHVYV RI WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URX
design of the ECL impairment model,

evaluating the inputs and assumptions, as well as the formulas used in the
development of the ECL models for each of the loan portfolio. This includes assessing
the completeness and appropriateness of the formula and inputs used in determining
the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default;

for forward-looking information used, evaluating whether the forecasted
macro-economic factors, which generally include but not limited to Gross Domestic
Product growth, unemployment rate, foreign exchange, stock market index, oil prices
and interest rates, were appropriate. In addition, assessing the level of significance of
correlation of selected macro-economic factors to the default rates as well as the
impact of these variables to the ECL;

DVVHVVLQJ WKH ERUURZHUVY UHSD\PHQW DELOLWLHV E\ H[DPL
loan accounts; and,

onselectednon-SHUIRUPLQJ ORDQ DFFRXQWYV HYDOXDWLQJ WKH PD
recoverable cash flows based on agreed restructuring agreement, actual payment

pattern after the restructuring, valuation of collaterals and estimates of recovery from

other sources of collection.
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(b) Valuation of Financial Instruments
Description of the Matter

In general, the fair valuation of the financial instruments of the BDO Unibank Group and the
Parent Bank is computed with reference to external sources and readily available market
value. The fair valuation of financial instruments of the BDO Unibank Group and the
Parent Bank is considered a key area of focus in our audit due to the use of inputs from
external sources in computing the market value of some financial instruments such as
derivative with no readily available market value. To the extent practicable, certain
financial instruments are measured using models with observable data; however, areas
such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require
management to make estimates.

As of December 31, 2021, the derivative financial assets and derivatives with negative fair
values of the BDO Unibank Group that are carried at fair value amounted to P6,232 million
and P5,742 million, respectively, while that of the Parent Bank amounted to P2,469 million
and P2,462 million, respectively.

The disclosures of the BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank on exposure to financial
instruments valuation risk are included in Note 4 to the financial statements.

How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures, included among others, the following:

x testing of design and operating effectiveness of relevant controls over the valuation
process including the valuation method and assumption used by the BDO Unibank

Group and the Parent Bank on the financial instruments, particularly the measurement
of derivative financial instruments;

X evaluating whether fair value prices used were appropriate by testing the inputs against
reliable market sources;

X recomputing the fair values based on the inputs and compared with the market values
used by the BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank; and,

X reviewing the formulas used in fair market valuation.

(c) Carrying Value of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets with Indefinite Useful Lives
Description of the Matter
BDO Unibank Group has goodwill of P4,535 million, with allowance for impairment of
P1,514 million, as of December 31, 2021, and the significant portion of which relates to
the acquisition of BDO Network Bank, Inc. (BDO Network). Furthermore, the BDO Unibank

Group and the Parent Bank have other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
amounting to P3,525 million and P3,522, respectively.
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Under PFRS, BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank are required to annually test the
amount of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives for impairment.
This annual impairment testing of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful
OLYHV IRU LPSDLUPHQW LV FRQVLGHUHG WR EH D NH\ DXGLW PD\
process in assessing the recoverability of the intangible assets is complex. In addition,

the assumptions used in determining the cash generating units (CGUs) where the goodwill
and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are allocated and estimating the
recoverable amount involves significant judgment. The recoverable amount of the CGUs
has been computed using discounted cash flows method. This valuation method uses
several key assumptions, including estimates for forecasted statement of financial position
and net profit of CGUs, terminal value growth rates and discount rate.

7KH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXSTV GLVFORVXUHV DildRa¥sstsaRRGZLOO DQG
included in Notes 2, 3 and 15 to the financial statements.

How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures to address the risk of material misstatement relating to impairment

of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives included, among others,

evaluating the appropriateness of assumptions and methodologies used by the

management, in particular, those relating to the forecasted statement of financial position

and statement of income as well as the discount and growth rate used. We have involved

our Firm valuation specialist to assist in evaluating the appropriateness of assumptions

used in estimating the recoverable amount of CGUs. In addition, our audit of the financial

statements of BDO Network as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021 did not

LGHQWLI\ HYHQWYV RU FRQGLWLRQV WKDW PD\ FDVW VLJQLILFDQV
continue as a going concern.

Other Informati on

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
LQIRUPDWLRQ LQFOXGHG LQ WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXSYV 6HFXULWLH
Form 20-1S (Definitive Information Statement) and SEC Form 17-A, and Annual Report for the

\HDU HQGHG 'HFHPEHU EXW GRHV QRW LQFOXGH WKH ILQDQF
report thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and

Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2021 are expected to be made available to us

DIWHU WKH GDWH RI WKLY DXGLWRUVYT UHSRUW

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the BDO

8QLEDQN *URXSTV DQG WKH 3DUHQW %DQNYV DELOLW\ WR FRQWLQX
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting

unless management either intends to liquidate the BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible forovHUVHHLQJ WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URX:!
WKH 3DUHQW %DQNTV ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ SURFHVYV

$XGLWRUVY 5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV IRU WKH $XGLW RI WKH )LQD

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

DXGLWRUVY UHSRUW WKDW LQFOXGHY RXU RSLQLRQ 5HDVRQDEOH
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

X ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

x Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
DQ RSLQLRQ RQ WKH HIITHFWLYHQHVV Rl WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS
control.

x Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

x &RQFOXGH RQ WKH DSSURSULDWHQHVV RI PDQDJHPHQWYV XVH R
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the BDO Unibank
*URXSTY DQG WKH 3DUHQW %DQNTVY DELOLW\ WR FRQWLQXH DV D
a material uncertainty exists, we are requiredtodraw DWWHQWLRQ LQ RXU DXGLWRUVY
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
WKH GDWH RI RXU D XveuaN Riture §vdntd 8rRdndfitionstmay cause the BDO
Unibank Group and the Parent Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

x Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

x  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank to
express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current

period and are thereforethH NH\ DXGLW PDWWHUY :H GHVFULEH WKHVH PDWYV
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, extremely

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. As discussed in Note 31 to the financial statements, the Parent
Bank presented the supplementary information required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue
under Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 15-2010 in a supplementary schedule filed separately
from the basic financial statements. RR No. 15-2010 requires the supplementary information
to be presented in the notes to the financial statements. The supplementary information for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 required by the BSP as disclosed in Note 36 to the
financial statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis. Such supplementary
information required by BIR and BSP is the responsibility of management. The supplementary
information is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with
PFRS; it is not also a required disclosure under the Revised Securities Regulation Code

Rule 68 of the SEC.

The engagement partner on the audits UHV XOWLQJ LQ WKLY LQGHSHQGHQW DXGLW
Romualdo V. Murcia lll.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By: Romualdo V. Murcia lll
Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0095626
TIN 906-174-059
PTR No. 8852339, January 3, 2022, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 0628-AR-4 (until Sept. 4, 2022)
Firm - No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2024)
BIR AN 08-002511-022-2019 (until Sept. 4, 2022)
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BDO UNIBANK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 221, 2020AND 2019
(Amounts in Millions of Philjppine Pesos, Except Per Share Data or As Indicated)

CORPORATE MATTER S
Incorporation and Operations

BDO Unibank, Inc(BDO Unibank, BDO or the Parent Bamgs incorporated in the
Philippines on December 20, 196&rtgage in the business of bankihgas authorized to
engage in trust operations on January 5, 1988 and in foreign currency deposit operations o
November 23, 1990rhe Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) granted approval to the Parent
Bank to operate as expanded commercial bank on August 5, Té@GParent Bank
commenced operations as such in September of the sani@égdéarent Bank and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as BDO Unibank Group) offer a wide bamdengf
services sucls aommerciabankinginvestment bankingrivate banking, insurance and

other banking serviceShese services include traditional loan and deposit products, as well
treasury, asset management, realty management, leasing and finance, rereigandeet;ad
retail cash card#fe insurancend insurandarokeragecredit card services, stbckkerage,

trust and others

$V D EDQNLQJ LQVWLWXWLRQ %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:V R.
the BSP In this regard, BDO Unibartkroup is required to comply with the rules and
regulations of the BSP such as those relating to maintenance of reserve requirements on
deposit liabilities and deposit substitutes and those relating to the adoption and use of safe
and sound bankimqractices, among others, as promulgated by theBB&PUnibank

Group is subject to the provisiondR&public Act (R.) No. 8791the General Banking Law of
2000 and other related banking laws.

7KH 3DUHQW %DQN:V FRPPRQ Vikebtek\ExEndnge (PSE)WH G L Q

The BDO Unibank Group and the ParBank- Wanking network within and outside the
Philippines as of December 3021 and 2026llows:

BDO Unibank Group ParentBank
2021 2020 2021 2020
Local branches 154 1,470 1191 1,182
Foreign branches 2 2 2 2
Automated teller
machines (ATMs):

On-site 2,626 2,539 2,339 2,307

Off-site 1857 1,898 1812 1,855
Cash accept machines (CAMSs) 624 599 624 599
Selfservice teller machines 9 5 9 5

Mobile automated teller
machines 1 2 1 2



-2-

BDO Unibank Group operates migiwithin the Philippines wittanking branasin

Hong Kongand Singapoya reaéstate and holding company in Eurapd various

remittance subsidiaries operating in Asia, Eut@gpadand the United StateShese

foreign operations accounted 2% 10% and 1.1%R1 %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS -V |
revenues ig02L, 2020and 2019%espectivelyand2.1%and19% of BDO 8 QLED QN *URX
total resourcess ofDecember 31, 2@ and 2@0, respectively%'2 8QLEDQN *URXS -
subsidiarieandassociates are shown in @8 and15.2.

7KH 3DUHQW %DQN:V SULQFLSDO RIILFH DGGUHVV LV D
Makati City while the temporary business address is at BDO Towers Valero, 8741 Paseo dt
Roxas Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City effectodeer 30, 2021 until further notice.

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statementstbé BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank as of and for

the year endddlecember 31, 2 (including the comparative financial statenasn$

December 31, 20andfor the years endddecember 31, 20and 201pwere authorized

IRU LVVXH E\ WKH 3DUHQW B®BD) Qrifrebrugey?0Z RI1 'LUHFWR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies Haate been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarized belod/the succeeding pagé&kese policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financiabtatements

(a) Statement of Compliance with Financial Reporting Standards in the Philippines

The consolidated financial statements of BDO Unibank Group and the separate financ
statements of the Parent Bank have been prepared in accordance witle Philippin
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the Financial Reporting
Standards Council (FRSC), from the pronouncements issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and approved by the Philippine Board of
Accountancy.

Thefinancial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified
PFRS for each type of resources, liability, income and expense. The measurement be
are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

(b) Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) Rresentation of Financial StafEneeBB3O Unibank Group and the
Parent Bank present a statement of compreherivesiiseparate from the statement
of income

The BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank present a third statement of financial
position as of the beginning of the preceding period when it applies an accounting poli
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification of litesns that
a material effect on the information in the statement of financial position at the
beginning of the preceding periddhe related notes to the third statement of financial
position are not required to be disclosed.
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Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippingh@BD€) Unibank Group
DQG WKH 3DUHQW %DQN:-V IXQFWLRQDO DQG SUHVH
in millions, except for per share data or when otdeemdicated (see also N2i2).

Items included in the financial statements of BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Banl
are measured using its functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the
primary economic environment in whiBBO Unibank Grou@and the Parentadk

operate.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
Effective inZhat are RelevaBDi® Unibank GroapdheParent Bank

TheBDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank adopted for the first time the following
amendments tBFRS, which areandatorily effective for annual periods bégynon
or afterJanuary 1, 2@

PFR#A, PFRY, PFRS @&and
PFRS 1§Amendments) : Insurance ContractSinancial Instruments:

Disclosureg-inancial Instrumengnd
Lease2 Interest RatBenchmark Reform
Phase 2

PFRS 16 (Amendments) : Leaseg Coronaviru®iseas€019
(COVID-19 2Related Rent Concessions
Beyond June 30, 2021

Discussetbelow and in theucceeding paga® the relevant information about these
amendments to existing standards

(i) PFRS 9 (AmendmentBjnancial InstrumdPERS 7 (AmendmentSjnancial
Instruments: DisclodRFEdS 1§Amendments),easeand PFRS 4 (Amendments),
Insurance Contrabiterest Rate Benchmark Reform Fiese2ndments address
issues that may affect financial reporting during the interest rate benchmark
reform, including the effect of changes to contractual cash flows or hedging
relationshipsasulting from the replacement of the London Interbank Offered
Rate (LIBOR) with alternative benchmark rakes. Phase 2 amendments are
relevant tDO UnibankGroupbecause it is exposed to the effects of the
LIBOR reform on its financial instrumentst thdl mature pos2021 (the date by
which the reform is expected to be implemented).

Discussed below are the relevant information arisin@@riUnibank Group V
adoptionof these amendments.

X When the contractual termstioé BDO UnibankGroup - Worrowings are
amended as a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and
the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the basis immediately preceding the chaij@QOthmibank
Groupchanges the b for determining the contractual cash flows
prospectively by revising the effective interest rate. If additional changes are
made, which are not directly related to the reform, the applicable requirement:
of PFRS 9 are applied to the other changes.
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X When a lease is modified as a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the lease payments is
economically equivalent to the previous basBPi@eUnibankGroup
remeasures the lease liability to reflecettieed lease payments discounted
using a revised discount rate that reflects the change in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the interdsmetenark reform has no
impact on thé&8DO Unibank GroupV ILQDQFLDO DYV Vhd thahgesQ G O
inBDO 8 QL ED QN ridd Rah&germent strategy arising from the LIBOR

reform and other requirelisclosures are disclosedlate 46.

The BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank elected to adopt early

PFRS 16 (Amendmentsgase3COVID-19Related Rent Concédssyonsl June 30,
2021 which is effectivieom April 1, 2021 The amendment extends for one year
the use of practical expedient of not assessing whether rent concessions reducin
payments up until June 30, 2022 occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications and instead to &octhoge rent
concessions as if they are not lease modificafibe€8DO Unbank Group and
the Parent Bankaveapplied this practicekpedient to all rent concessions that
need conditions of the amendments to PFRI & rentconcessions recognized
as offset against Occupancy under Other Operating Expense accotidm the
statemenodf incomeof the BDO Unibank Grguand the Parent Baaknounted

to P395for the year ended December 31, 2021 (see Note 25).

(b) Effective Sujusmnt to 20but not Adopted Early

There armew PFRS amaimendments to existing standards effective for annual periods
subsequent to 2021, which are adopted by the RRB@gement will adopt the

following relevant pronouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions; an
unless otherwise statadne of these are expected to have significant impBBX@n
Unibank* URXS DQG WKH 3DUHQW %DQN:V ILQDQFLDO V

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

PFRS 3 (AmendmentBlysiness Combinatkeference to the Conceptual Framework
(effective from January 1, 2022)

PAS 16 (Amendment®yoperty, Plant and EquigiRenteeds Before Intended Use
(effective from January 1, 2022)

PAS 37 (Amendment®¥ovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingamgrdssets
Contractost of Fulfilling a Corf{eHiettie January 1, 2022)

Annual Improvements to PFRS 2@0D20 CycleAmong the improvements, the
following amendments, which are effective from January 1, 2022, are relevant to
theBDO Unibank Group

I PFRS 9 (AmendmentB)pancial Instrumeéiiees intfe SHU FHQW - 7H"
Derecognition of Liabilities

[ Iustrative Examples Accompanying PFR&ekge3Lease Incentives
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PAS 1 (Amendment$resentation of Financial Staa€iassiication of Liabilities as
Current or Nearrer{effective January 1, 2023)

PAS 1 (Amendment$resentation of Fin&taei@imert®isclosure of Accounting
Policideffective January 1, 2023)

(vii) PAS 8 (Arendments)Accounting Estimait@sfinition of Accounting Estimates

(effedive January 1, 2023)

(viii) PAS 12 (Amendment#come Tax&EBeferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities

(ix)

)

Arising from a Single Trangeiféotivelanuary 1, 2023)

PFRS 10 (Amendment8€pnsolidated Financial Statemdents,

PAS 28 (Amendment#yestments in Associates and Joint Saletores
Contriltion of Assets Between an Investor and its Associates or Joint Venture
(effective date deferred indefinitely)

PFRS 17nsurance Cont(affisctive January 1, 3PZ2The new standard will
eventually replace PFR®8urance Cordradte Insurance Camssion(IC),
through its Circular Lett201869, has deferred the implementation of PFRS 17
for life insurance and ndife insurance industriPFRS 1Will setout the

principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts within its scope.

This new standard requires a current measurement model where estimates are
remeasured in each reporting period. Moreover, coataateasured using the
building blocks of:

I discounted probabiliyeighted cash flows;

¥ an explicit risk adjustment; and,

¥ acontractual service margin (CSM) representing the unearned profit of the
contract which is recognized as revenuetlweoverage period.

PFRS 17 further allows a choice between recognizing changes in discount rates
either in the statementiatomeor directly in other comprehensive income. The
choice is likely to reflect how insurers account for financial assets under PFRS 9.

In addition, the standard provides an optional, simplified premium allocation
approach for the liability for the remairgogerage for short duration contracts,
which are often written by ndife insurers.

A modification of the general measurement model called the variable fee approac
is also introduced by PFRS 17 for certain contracts written by life insurers where
policyholders share in the returns from underlying items. When applying the
YDULDEOH IHH DSSURDFK WKH HQWLW\-V VKDUH
items is included in the CSM. The results of insurers using this model are therefc
likely to bdess volatile than under the general model



2.3 Basis of Consolidation

7KH %'2 8QL ED Qohsdldi&edSindhcial statements comprise the accounts of the
ParenBank and its subsidiaries as enumeratBidtes 2.Band 5.2, after the elimination of
material intercompany transactiofisintercompany resources and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities under the

BDO Unibank Group, are eliminated in full on consaddatUnrealized profits and

losses from intercompany transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated in-
Intercompany losses that indicate impairment are recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.

The inandal statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as tr
Parent Bank, using consistent accounting principles.

The Parent Bank accounts for its investments in subsides@esatesnd transactions with
non-controlling inteests as follows:

(@) Investments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Parent Bank has the power to control the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than ¢
half of the votingights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Parer
Bank controls another entity. The Parent Bank obtains and exercises conirblashe
powerover the entity, (i) it is exposed, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity, and, (iii) it has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity, usualyoughvoting rights. Subsidiaries are coatdd from

the date the Parent Bank obtains control.

The Parent Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and circumstal
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of controls indica
above. Accordimg entities are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method is applied to account foiradqgubsidiaries [see Note 2.3(d)]
Acquisition method requires recognizing and measuring the identifiable resources
acquired, the liabilities assumed and angaordrolling interest in the acquiree.

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the faif trues o
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the BDO Unibank Group, if any. The consideration
transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability resultirapfomyent
consideration arrangement. Acquisitedated costs are expensed as incurred and
subsequent change in the fair value of contingent consideration is recognized directly
profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities andgemit liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisitiom date.

an acquisitiohy-acquisition basis, tB&®O UnibankGroup recognizes any

non-controlling interest in the acquiree, eitheliratdaue or at the necontrolling
LOQWHUHVW:.-V SURSRUWLRQDWH VKDUH RI WKH UHFR
assets.
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The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of amontroling interest

in the acquiree and the acquisitiate fair value of any existing equity interest in the
acquiree over the acquistci@ghDWH IDLU YDOXH RI %'2 8 EDQN *
identifiable net assets acquired, is recognized as gootivalactuisition

consideration is less than the fair value of the netaddbetsubsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognized directly as a gain in the statement ofl sesohete 2.3(d)].

On the other hand, business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities
that are under the common control of the shareholder that controls BDO Unibank
Group are accounted for under the poetifionterest method aneéftected in the

financial statements as if the business combination had occurred at the beginning of t
earliest comparative period presented, or if later, at the date that common control was
established; for this purpose, comparative periods presemesiaied. The resources
DQG OLDELOLWLHY DFTXLUHG DUH UHFRJQL]JHG LQ ¢
their carrying amounts. The components of equity of the acquired entities are added t
WKH VDPH FRPSRQHQWYV ZLWKLQ %'2 8QLEDQN *URX

Investments in subsidiariesiargally recognized at cost and subsequently accounted
IRU XVLQJ WKH HTXLW\ PHWKRG LQ WKH 3DUHQW %L

Investment in Associates

Associates are those entities over which the BDi@ahknGroup and the Parent Bank

are able to exestgnificant influence but which are neither subsidiaries nor interests in a
joint venture. Investments in associates are initially recognized at cost and subsequel
accounted for using the equity method.

Acquired investment in associate is subject to the purchase method. The purchase
method involves the recognition of the acgsirdentifiable assets and liabilities,
including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether they were recordedandiaé fi
statements prior to acquisition. Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost ove
WKH IDLU YDOXH RI WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS DQG W
net assets of the acquiree at the date of acquisition. Any geddiwMatue adjustment
DWWULEXWDEOH WR WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS DQG V
included in the amount recognized as investment in an associate.

All subsequent changes to the ownership interest in the equity of the am®ociates
UHFRJQL]JHG LQ WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS DQG WKH ¢
investments. Changes resulting from the profit or loss generated by the associates ar
credited or charged against the Equieirprofit (lossdf associateas part of

Miscellaneés - netand Share in net income of subsidiaries and assauike®ther
Operating Incomaccount irthe statement of inconigr BDO Unibank Group and

Parent Bank, respectively

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the investment in ar
associateiwnot be recovered (see No2e21 and5.2).
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Changes resulting from other comprehensive income of the associate or items
UHFRJQL]J]HG GLUHFWO\ LQ WKH DVVRFLDWH-V HTXLV
income or equity of the BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank, as applicable.
However, whenth&'2 8QLEDQN *URXS DQG WKH 3DUHQW %l
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecure
receivables, the BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank do not recognize further
losses, unless it hasurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

If the associate subsequently reports profits, the investor resumes recognizing its shar
of those profits only after its share of the profits exceeds the accumulated share of los:
that has previously not been recognized.

Distributions received from the associates are accounted for as a reduction of the
carrying value of the investment.

Transact®with Neoontrolling Interests

%'2 8QLEDQN *URXS -V nwriton@ollibgAnéteRtxhat dd Mitkesult in

loss of control are accounted for as equity transaétioaisis, as transactions with the
owners of BDO Unibank Group in their capacity as owners. The difference between tl
fair value of any consideratjoaid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value
RI WKH VXEVLGLDU\:V QHW DVVHWYV LV UHFRJQL]HG
norncontrolling interests, which result in gains or losses for BDO Unibank &eoup

also recognized equity.

When BDO Unibank Group ceases to have control, any interest retained in the
subsidiary is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recogniz
in profit or loss. The initial carrying amount for the purposes of subseapemthting

for the interest retained as an associate, joint venture or financial asset is the fair valu
In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if BDO Unibank Grdujirbetly disposed

of the related resources or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recogni:
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

,Q %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS -V |IL Q D-QoRttoliiay iM&keBt\dbhhpoHeRtW V
is shown in its statement of changes in equity, and in its statement of income and
statement of comprehensive income for the share of profit or loss and movement of
other omprehensive income, respectively, during the year.
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The BDO Unibank Group holds interests in the following subsidiaries:

Percentage of Ownership
Subsidiaries 21 220 2019

Rural Bank
BDO Network Bank, Inc.
(BDO NetworR
(A RuralBankof BDO) 84.87% 84.8%0 84.8%
Investment House
BDO Capital & Investment
Corporation (BDCCapital 99.88% 99.88% 99.88%
Private Banking
BDO Private Bank, Inc.
(BDO Private) 100% 100% 100%
Leasing and Finance
BDO Leasing and Finance,

Inc. (BDO Leasing) 88.54% 88.546 88.54%
Averon Holdings Corporation

(Averon) 99.88% 99.88% 99.88%
BDO Rental, Inc. (BDO Rental) 1006 1004 88.54%
BDO Finance Corporation

(BDO Finance) 100% 100% 100%

Securities Companies
BDO Securities Corporation

(BDO Securities) 99.88% 99.88% 99.88%
Armstrong Securities, Inc. (ASI) 80% 80% 80%
BDO Nomura Securities, Inc.

(BDO Nomura) - - 51%

Real Estate Companies
BDO Strategic Holdings, Inc.

(BDOSHI) 100% 100% 100%
BDORO Europe Ltd. (BDORO) 100% 100% 100%
EquimarkNFC Development

Corporation (Equimark) 60% 60% 60%

Insurance Companies
BDO Life Assurance Company Inc.,

(BDO Life) 100% 100% 100%
BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc. (BDOI) 100% 100% 100%
Remittanc€ompanies
BDO Remit (Japan) Ltd. 100% 100% 100%
BDO Remit (Canada) Ltd. 100% 100% 100%
BDO Remit Limited 100% 100% 100%
BDO Remit (Macau) Ltd. 100% 100% 100%
BDO Remitinternational
Holdings B.V. (BDO RIH) 96.32% 96.32% 96.32%
BDO Remit (USA), Inc. 100% 100% 100%
BDO Remit (Italia) S.p.A - 100% 100%
Others
PCI Realty Corporation - - 100%

Non-controlling interests represent the interests not held by BDO Unibank Group in
BDO Network, BDO Capital, BDO Leasing, Averon, BDO Rental, BDO Securities,
BDO Nomura, ASI, Equimark and BDO RIH in 20E®&r 2021 and2020, BDO
8QLEDQN *U-BoXtfoHig @terést is the same as 2019 except for BDO Rental
andBDO Nomura, which was merged with BDO Securities

On December 5, 2020, the BOD of the Parent Bank approved theffnitthe
investment in PCI Realty Corporation (see Note 15.2).
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On December 1, 2020, the merger of BDO Nomura and BDO Securities was complete
with BDO Securities as the survivingtgiisee Note 3P).

On June 13, 2020, BDO Ref(itilig) S.p.Acompleted its liquidation and made partial
repatriation of funds tBDOSHI. Final capital return was mamteJuly 1, 2021
(see Note 30.4)

On July 26, 2019, the BOD of BDOSHI approvedaatdorized BDOSHI to
incorporate a new finance company with an initialrpeagpital of P1,000, subject to
applicable regulatory approvals. On December 9, 20%8cth&ies and Exchange
CommissiofSEC) approved the incorporation of BDO Finance (see N8fe 30.

On May 16, 2019, the Parent Bank completed the sale of its 15%ipwnriersst in
BDO Network

Business Combination

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting
[see Note 2.3(a)].

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the exc
RI WKH FRVW RI D EXVLQHVV FRPE Is@Qhi2M5LIR Qe ReYfdIU %
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Subsequent to initic
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually arenfrequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying wadty be impaired (see Note .21

Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

1HIDWLYH JRRGZLOO LI DQ\ ZKLFK LV WKH H[FHVYV
net fair value of acquired identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over co
of investment is recognized directlihestatement of income

For thepurpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated tgeashating units or
groups of casbenerating units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The-gashrating units or groups of
cashgeneratig units are identified according to operating segments.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to it.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer is ceguiredsure its
previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acqdaiéidair value and
recognize the resulting gain or loss, if any, in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be trarrsid by BDO Unibank Group is recognized at
fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the continge
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance wit
PAS 37Provisions, Contihggnitities and Contingent,Astbedsin profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity
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Transfers oassets between commeadntrolled entities are accounted for under
historical cost accounting or poolafgnterest method [see Note 2.3(a)].

2.4 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provide
WR %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS: -V F-Kakdrl T8 ehi¢topétaghd GHFLVLRQ
decisioamaker is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments.

,Q LGHQWLI\LQJ LWV RSHUDWLQJ VHIPHQWY PDQDJHPI
products and services as disclosed in@ethich represent the main products and services
provided by BDO Unibank Group.

Each of theseperating segments is managed separately as each of these services requires
different technologies and resources as well as marketing approachessegthiener
WUDQVIHUVY DUH FDUULHG RXW DW DUP-V OHQJWK SULF

The measurement policies of BDO Unib@n&up used for segment reporting under
PFRS 80Dperating Segmam@she same as those used in its financial statements

In addition, corporate assets, which are not directly attributable to the business activities of
operating segment are notcdled to a segment.

There havéeenno significant chang&®m prior periodin the measurement methods used
to determine reporteskgment information

2.5 Financial Assetsand Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilitieeeognized when the entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrumdedr purposes of classifying financial assets, an
instrument is considered as an equity instrument if it-dengative and meets the definition
of equity for tle issuer in accordance with the criteria of PAS22cial Instruments:
Presentatiofll other norderivative financial instruments are treated as debt instruments.

Regular purchases and sales of financial asset®gnized on thesettlementiae
(i.e., the date that tB®O UnibankGroupcommits to purchase or sell the asset).

At initial recognition, thBDO UnibankGroup measures a financial asset or financial liability
at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial dssetamal liability not at fair

value through profit or lo§gVTPL) transaction costs that are incremental or directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fee:
and commissions. Transactionsos$tiinancial assets and financial liabilities carried at
FVTPLare expensed in profit or loss.

(@) Classificatidieasurement and Reclassification of Financial Assets

The classification and measurement of financialassét$) LYHQ E\ WKHsHQW L
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
the financial assets. The classification and measurement of financial assets are descr
in the succeeding page
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Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions
met:

X WKH DVVHW LV KHOG ZLWKLQ %'2 8QLEDQN *UR>
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
("held to F R O Qandk, W

x the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, to cash flo
that aresolely payments of principal and inte@PJ on the principal amount
outstanding.

Except forotherreceivables that do not contain a s@mfifinancing component
and are measured at the transaction price in accordarRERBtAhSRevenue from
Contracts with Custamidinsancial assets meeting these criteria are measured in
at fair value plus transaction costs. These arelgHitbemeasured at amortized ¢
using the effective interest method, less any expected credit loss (ECL).

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cabi BD\s,
Unibank Group assessZ KHWKHU WKH ILQDQFLDO LQVWUXPH
In making this assessmeéh&BDO Unibank Group considewhether the

contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement, i.e., intere:
includes only consideration foe time value of money, credit risk, other basic
lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lendiegnamaing

[see Note 3.t)]. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility
that are inconsistent with a bdending arrangement, the related financial asset is
classified and measured at FVTPL.

The %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS-V ILQDQFLDO DVVHWYV DW L
andOther Cash ltemflue fromBSP Due from Other Bank$§0ans and Other
Receivablesnvestment securities at amortized cost and certain accounts under Oth
Resources account in the statera&fibancial position.

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and
other cash itemdue from BSP and other banks, foreign currency notes and coins
(FCNC),reverse repurchase agreemesttain interbank batdans receivables and
investment securities at amortized wabtoriginal maturities of threeonths or less
from placement date.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

BDO Unibank Group accounts for financial assé#sratalue through other
comprehensive incom@OCI) if the assets meet the following conditions:

x they are held under a business model whose objective is to hold to collect the
associated cash flowsandseKROG WR FRG@IHFW DQG VHOC

X the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise tiowaghatare SPPI
on the principal amount outstanding.
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At initial recognition, BDO Unibank Group can make an irrevocable election

(on an instrumerty-instrument basis) to designate equity investments as at

FVOCI; however, such designation is nanged if the equity investment is held

by the BDO Unibank Group for trading or as mandatorily required to be classified &
FVTPL. The BDO Unibank Group has designated equity instruments as at
FVOCI.

Financial assets at FVOCI are initially measui@d\zlue plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with no deduction for any disposal
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value, including the foreign exchange
component, are recognized in other compreremsiome, net of any effects arising
from income taxes, and are reported as paetainrealized gain or loBRJGL) on
FVOCI account in equity. When the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or lo:
previously recognized in the NUGL account iseuwbassified to profit or loss but is
reclassified directly to Surplus Free account except for those debt securities classi
as FVOCI wherein fair value changes al&sstitedo profit or loss.

Any dividends earned on holding equity instrumentscagnized in profit or loss as
part of Miscellaneousietunder Other Operating Income accaarthe statement of
income ZKHQ WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:-V ULJKW WR |
probable that the economic benefitsociated with the dividend will flow to the

BDO UnibankGroup, and, the amount of dividend can be measured reliably, unless
the dividends clearly represent recovery of a part of the cost of the investment.

(iif) Financial Assets at Fair Value ThroughlBssfit o

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than
"KROG WR FROOHFWpu RU "KROG WR FROOHFW DQG
irrespective of business model, financial assets whose contractual cash flows are r
SPPI are accounted for at FVTPAIso, @uity securities are classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, unless Bi2O UnibankGroup designates an equity investment

that is not held for trading as at FVOCI at initial recognition. The BDO Unibank
*U R X Saiidllagsets at FVTPL include equity securities which are held for tradir
purposes.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value with gains or losses recogni:
profit or loss as part of Tradigginunder Other Oprating Income in thetatement

of income.Related transaction costs are recognized directly as expense in profit or
loss. The fair values of these financial assets are determined by reference to active
market transactioms using valuation technique wine active market isits.

Interest earned on these investments is recorded under Interest Income while divident
income is reported as part of Dividends under @fperatingncome account in the
statemendf income.

Financial assets with embedded derivativesraiglered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are SPPI.
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BDO Unibank Group can only reclassify financial assets if the objective of its business
model for managing those financial assets changes. Accordingly, BDO Unibank Grou
is required to reclassify financial assets: (i) from amortized cost to FVTPL, if the
objective of the business model changes so that the amortized cost criteria are no long
met; and, (ii) from FVTPL to amortized cost, if the objective of the busineks mode
changes so that the amortized cost criteria start to be met and the characteristic of the
LQVWUXPHQW:-V FRQWUDFWXDO FDVK IORZV PHHW W

$ FKDQJH LQ WKH REMHFWLYH RI WKH %'2 8QLEDQN
only atthe beginning of the next reporting period following the change in the business
model.

Effective Interest Rate Method and Interest Income

Interest income recognizedsing the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
financial instrument measured at amortized cost and financial instrument designated &
FVTPL. Interest income on interest bearing financial assets measured aafe\&s0l
recorded by using the Eifethod. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR is calculated king into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees
and costs that are an integral part of HIReBDO Unibank Group recognzmmterest
income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of re
over the exgcted life of the loarHence, it recognizes the effect of potentially different
interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cy
(including prepayments, penalty istemad charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons
than credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive (negative) adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset ingtegement of financial positiaith anincrease

(reduction) innterest incomeThe adjustment is subsequently amortized through interes
andsimilar income in the statemehincome.

TheBDO Unibank Group calculatmterest income by applying the EIR to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets other than-cngdiired assets.

For financial assets that have become -amguhired subsequent tatial recognition

[see Note 2.5\ interest income is calcathby applying the effective interest rate to

the net carrying amount of the financial assets (after deduction of the loss allowance).
If the asset is no longer credipaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to
the gross basig:or financial assets that were clietaired on initial recognition,

interest income is calculated by applying a-atjaidted effective interest rate to the
amortized cost of the ass@&he calculation of interest income does not revert to a gross
basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.
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Impairment of Financial Assets

At the end of the reporting periadde BDO Unibank Group assesses its ECL on a
forwardlooking basis associated with its financial agsetsconsist aflebt instruments
carried at amortized c@stdFVOCI, andother contingent accounts sucle@smitted

credt lines and unusemmmercial letter of creditBlo impairment loss is recognized on
equity investmentd'heBDO Unibank Group considers a broa@erge of information

in assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses, including past events,
current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect collectability of the
future cash flows of the financial assets.

The BDO Unbank Groupmeasures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
except for the following financial instruments for which they are measuratbathl2
ECL:

Xx GHEW VHFXULWLHV WKDW DUH LGHQWLILHG WR KI

x other financial instruments (other than lease receivables) on which credit risk has |
increased significantly since their initial recognition.

For these financial instrumeritge allowance for impairmesnbased on onth ECL
associated with the probability of default of a financial instrument in the next 12 month

UHIHUUHG WR DV 16W D JWhenthér®iaQbeeDaGighi@caninededskl
in credit risk subsequent to the initial gadmn of the financial asset, a lifetime ECL
(which are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potential 1
default at any point during the life of the financial asset) will be recognized (referred to
T16WDJH - QLVQWDUXRPLHDAWLY 1T6WDJH - ILQDQFLDO LQV
accounts and facilities where the credit risk has improved and have been reclassified 1
T6WDJH - $ OLISWHHP W HERYBD|J®IG IRU f6WDJH - IL¢
whichinclude financial instruments that are subsequentlyirtneagiited, as well as
purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets.

TheBDO Unibank Group Wefinition of credit risk and information on how credit risk is
mitigated by #aBDO Unibank Graoip are disclosed in Note 4.3

Measurement of ECL

The key elements used in the calculation of ECL are as follows:

x Probability of Default (PDis an estimate of likelihoodaoborrowedefauling on its
financial obligatioaver a given time horizogither over the next 12 months
(12month PD)or over the remaining lifetime (lifetime BDbthe obligation

X Loss Given Default (LGD)s an estimate of loss arising in case where a default
occurs at a given tini@therover the next 12 months or-d#nth LGD), or over the
remaining lifetime or lifetime LGD)t is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows of a financial instrument due from a counterparty and those
BDO Unibank Group would expect to neeg including the realization of any
collateral.lt is presented as a percentageplessanit of exposure at the time of
default.
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x Exposure at Default (EAD)represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
instrumentsbject toimpairment calculationgncethis is the amounihat theBDO
UnibankGroup expects to be owed at the time of default over the next 12 months
(12month EAD)or over the remaining lifetirfidetime EAD). In case of a loan
commitment, th&DO UnibankGroup shall includéhe undrawipalance (up to the
currentcontractual limit) at the tinoé defaultshould it occymunless the drawdown
after default will be mitigated by the normal credit risk management actions and
policies of the BDO Unibank Group

The measurement of the ECL reflects: (i) an unbiased and preleighted amount

that is determined by evaluangnge of possible outcomes; (ii) the time value of mone)
and, (iii) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost o
effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic contons.

The BDO Unibank Group recognizes an impairment loss in profit or loss for all financie
instruments subjected to impairment assessment with a corresponding adjustment to t
carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for debeiistraeasured

at FVOCI, for whictihe loss allowance is recognireather comprehensive income and
accumulated INUGL account, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financia
asset in the statement of financial posiindother contingentcaountsfor which the

loss allowance is recogniretheotherliability account

TheBDO Unibank* URXS:-V GHWDLOHG (&/ PHDVXUHPHQW D\
management is disclosetlote 4.3.5

Derecognition of Financial Assets

(i) Modification of Loans
When theBDO UnibankGrouprenegotiatesr otherwise modifies tlewntractual
cash flows of loans to customers BB® UnibankGroupassesses whether or not
the new terms are substantially different to the original termBD®hdnibank
Groupconsidersamong others:

x if the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces
the contractual cash flows to amounts the borieveapected to be able to pay;

X whether any substantial new terms are introduced that will affect the risk profile
the loan;

X dgnificant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial
difficulty;

X dgnificant change in the interest rate;
X change in the currency the loan is denominated in; and/or,

X insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that will significant|
affect the credit risk associated with the loan.
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If the terms are substantially differentBB® UnibankGroupderecognizes the
ILQDQFLDO DVVHW DQG UHFRJQL]JHVY D "QHZu DVVH
effective interest rate for the as3éte date of renegotiation is consequently
considered to be the date of initial recognition for impdioalealation, including
for the purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred. However, tlBDO UnibankGroupalso assesses whether the new financial
aset recognized is deemed tefgglitimpaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to m
the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amaotcganieeds

gain or loss on derecognitiorfinfincial assets in profit or loss. As to the impact on
(& PHDVXUHPHQW WKH H[SHFWHG IDLU YDOXH RI
cash flow from the existing financial asset at the date of derecognition. Such amot
is included in the calcutat of cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are
discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the
original effective interest rafetfte existing financial asset.

If the terms are not substantially défe, the renegotiation or modification does not
result in derecognition, and Bi2O UnibankGrouprecalculates the gross carrying
amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognizes a
modification gain or loss in profit or lo3$ie new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows of the original effective
interest rate (or creditljusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated
creditimpaired financial assets). As to the impaeGhnmeasurement, the
derecognition of the existing financial asset will result in the expected cash flows
arising from the modified financial asset to be included in the calculation of cash
shortfalls fron the existing financial asset.

(i) Derecognitidri-inancial Assets OtheFhihaugRlodification

The financial assets (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a grc
of financial assets) are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash fl
from the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets &sthaliziu
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to another parBD@ the
UnibankGroupneither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards o
ownership and continues to control the transferred as€#D@EnibankGroup
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts
may have to pay. If tlB OO UnibankGroupretains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial assBD@é&nibankGroup
cortinues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized
borrowing for the proceeds received.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities include deposit liabilities, bills papablanceontract liabilitieand
other liabilities (including derivatives with negative fair values, except taxes payable,

unearned income and capitalized interest and other charges).

x Deposit liabilities and other liab#litexsognized initially at fair valod subsequently
measured at amortized cost less settlement payments.
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x Bills payalaee recognized initially at fair value, equivalent to the issue proceeds
(fair value of consideration received), net of direct issueBitistsayable are
subsequdly measured at amortized cadsty difference between proceeds, net of
transaction costs, and the redemption value is recognized in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

x Derivatives with negativaldasre recognized initially and subsequently measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit (sdeddote 2.6).

x Lease deposits from operating and fijpaeserieatsas Lease deposits under Other
Liabilities account in the statement of financial position) are initially recognized at
fair value.The excess of the principal amount of the deposits over its fair or present
value is immediately recognized g®da gain and is included as part of
Miscellaneousnet under Other Operating Income account in the statement of
income.Meanwhile, interest expense on the subsequent amortization of the lease
deposits is accrued using the effective interest methisdrasidded as part of
Interest Expense account in the statéwiencome.

x Dividend distributions to sharateoteergynized as financial liabilities when the
dividends are declared by BDO Unibank Group and subject to the requirements of
BSP Circula388.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognized in the statement of financial position only when tt
obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or eXheation.
difference between the carryamgount of the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid or payaisleecognized in profit or loss.

Financial Guarantees and Undrawn Loan Commitments

The BDO Unibank Group issues financial guarantees and loan commitments. Financi
guarantees are those issued by the BDO Unibank Group to creditors as allowed unde
existing rules and regulations whereby it guarantees third party obligations by signing
guarantor in the contract or agreement. Undrawn loan commitments and letters of cre
are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the BDO Uniban!
Group is required to provide a loan withgpecified terms to the customer.

The rominal contractual value of financial guarantees and undrawn loan commitments
where the loan agreed to be provided is on market terms, are not reflected in the
statement of financial position. These contracts are in the scope of the ECL requirem
whee the BDO Unibank Group estimates the expected portion of the irrevocable
undrawn loan commitments that will be drawn over their expected life based on the BI
8QLEDQN *URXS:V KLVWRULFDO REVHUY-D&ORQV RI |
forecasts. ThECL related to financial guarantees and loan commitments without
outstanding drawn amounts is recognized under Other Liabilities account in the staten
of financial position.
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2.6 Derivative Financiallnstruments

BDO UnibankGroup is a party to various foreign currency forwen@sscurrency swaps

and interest rate swaps. These contracts are entered into as a service to customers and a:
PHDQV RI UHGXFLQJ RU PDQDJUle&gh éxctiangeand iDt€ddt ratbR X S -
exposures, as well as for trading purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently measured at their fair value. Fair vatagmedrizam

qguoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as appropria
All derivatives are carried as assets when fair yadggive and as liabilities when fair value

is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction pric
(the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of the instrument
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same
instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from
observable markets. When such evidence exists, BDO Unibank Group recognizes profit o
loss at initial recognition.

For more complex instruments, BDO Unibank Groupvedaatiormodels, which usually

use the discounted cash flow appro&me or all of the inputs into these models may not

be market observable, and are derived frometrarkes or rates or are estimated based on
assumptions. When entering into a transaction, the financial instrument is recognized initia
at the transaction price, which is the best indicator of fair value, although the value obtainec
from the valuatio model may differ from the transaction price. This initial difference in fair
value indicated by valuation techniques is recognized as profit or loss depending upon the
individual facts and circumstances of each transaction and not later than whiketttiatana
becomes observable.

The value produced by a model or other valuation techinigoene instances,adjusted

to allow for a number of factors as appropriate, because valuation techniques cannot
appropriately reflect all factors mageeticipants take into account when entering into a
transaction. Valuation adjustments are recorded to allow for model resds spigads,

liquidity risks as well as other factors. Management believes that these valuation adjustme
are necessarydhappropriate to fairly state financial instruments carried at fair value in the
statement of financial position.

Certain derivatives anymay be designated as eittighedges of the fair value of

recognized assets or liabilities or firm commim{&ait value hedge); 6, hedges of highly
probable future cash flows attributable to a recognized asset or liability, or a forecasted
transaction (cash flow hedge). Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized in
profit or loss. The miebd of recognizing the resulting fair value gain or loss on derivatives
that qualify as hedging instrument, if any, depends on the hedging relationship designated |
BDO Unibank Group.
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2.7 Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Land is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. As no finite useful life for land can be
determined, related carrying amounts are not depreciated. All other premises, furniture,
fixtures and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated idepesoiatization and any
impairment in value. Property items of the former Equitable PCI Bank (EPCIB), entity
merged with BDO Unibank in 2008, stated at appraised values were included in BDO Unibz
Group balances at their deemed costs at the datesdfdrato PFRS in 2005. The

revaluation increment is credited to Revaluation Increment account in the equity section of
statement ofhanges in equjtyet of applicable deferred tax (see Na@)?.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchaseapdairectly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
improvements and renewals are capitalized while expenditures for repairs and maintenance
charged to expense as inalirre

Depreciatiorand amortizatioarecomputed on a straiglirie basis over the estimated useful
lives of the depreciable assets as follows:

Buildings 10 to50years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 15years
Leasehold rights amdprovements 5to 10 years

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and is stated at cost. Th
includes costs of construction and other direct costs. The account is not depreciated until
such time that the assets are cetagland available for use.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in accounts until they are no longer in use and no furt
chaJH IRU GHSUHFLDWLRQ LV PDGH LQ UHVSHFW RI WKR
written down immediately to itsre¢cdW DEOH DPRXQW LI WKH DVVHW.V
than its estimateécoverable amount (see Note .B)21

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation and amortization of
premises, furniture, fixtures agliipment are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An item of premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment, including the related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impairment loss, is derecognizedpgsah ai when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any ge
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofriijeistencluded in profit or loss in year

the item is derecognized.

2.8 Investment Properties

Investment properties are stated at cost. The cost of an investment property comprises its
purchase price and directly attributable costs incurred. This also includes land and building
acquired by BDO Unibank Group from defaulting borrowers not heddléoin the next

12 months. For these properties, the cost is recognized initially at fair value. Investment
properties, except land, are depreciated on a diredtdsis over a period of 1&G@years.
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BDO Unibank Group adopted the cost modeheasuring its investment properties; hence,
these are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

Depreciation and impairment loss are recognized in the same manner as in premises, furni
fixtures and equipment (seetés 2.7 and 2.21).

Direct operating expenses related to investment properties, such as repairs and maintenan
and real estate taxes are normally charged against current operations in the period in whicl
these costs are incurred.

Investment properties are derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn fror
use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. Any gain or loss on the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognized in posttamd is

presented as part of Income from assets sold or exchanged under Other Operating Income
accountn thestatemenof incomein the year of retirement or disposal

Transfers from other accounts (such as premises, furnitures faxtd equipment) are made

to investment properties when and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by endir
owneroccupation or commencement of an operating lease to another party or holding the
property for capital appreciation, while temssiom investment properties are made when,
and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commencemenrbotopatem or
FRPPHQFHPHQW RI GHYHORSPHQW ZLWK D YLHZ WR VH
intentions for the use of a perty does not provide evidence of a change in use.

2.9 Real Properties for Development and Sale

Real properties for development and sale (included as part of Other Resources account)
consist of subdivision land for sale and development, and land acquired for home building,
home development, and other types of real estate development. Thesslatthartower

of aggregate cost and net realizable value (NRV). Costs, which are determined through
specific identification, include acquisition costs and costs incurred for development,
improvement and construction of subdivision land.

Real propemtis for development and sale are derecognized upon dispodature

economic benefit is expected from their disposal. Any gain or lossetinetiment or

disposal of these properties is recognized in profit or loss and is presented as part of Incom
from assets sold or exchanged under Other Operating Income account in the year of
retirement or disposal

2.10 Non-current AssetsHeld for Sale

Non-current assets held for sale include other properties (chattels) acquired through
repossession or foreclosure that BDO Unibank Group stiesdll within one year from the
date of classification as held for sale.

BDO Unibank Group clas&fa noncurrent asset as held for sale if its carrying amount will
be recovered principallyough a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. In the
event that the sale of the asset is extended beyond one year, the extension of the period
required to complete the sale does not preclude an asset from being classified as Held for s
WKH GHOD\ LV FDXVHG E\ HYHQWYV RU FLUFXPVWDQFHYV
there is sufficient evidence that BDO Unibank Group rec@immitted to sell the asset.

Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of thgiaceuyits immediately
prior to their classification as assets held for sale and their fair value less costs to sell. The
Unibank Group shall recognize an impairment loss for any initial and subsegicknwwnvate

the asset to fair value less cosetb Gain for any subsequent increase in fair value less cost 1
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sell of an asset is recognized to the extent of the cumulative impairment loss previously
recognized. Assets classified as held for sale are not subject to depreciation or amortizatio

If BDO Unibank Group hsclassified an asset as held for sale, but the criteria for it to be
recognized as held for sale are no longer satisfied, the BDO Unibank Group shall cease to
classify the asset as heldstde and will reclassify it as investmeperties for land and
building, or other properties for chattel and other assets. For building under investment
properties or other properties, this would be subject to depreciation.

The profit or loss arising from the sale of assets held for sale is included as part of Income
from assets sold or exchanged under Other Operating Income accouwstaterient of
income

2.11 Equity Investments

,Q WKH 3D UH Q W sttié&n@iNs, Vhvest@En® Fisiibsidiaries and associates (present:
as Equity investments under Other Resources account in the statement of financial positior
are accounted for under the equity method of accounting and are initially recognized at cos
less allowance fomipairment, if any (see Note 2.2Associates are all entities over which the
BDO Unibank Groughassignificant influence but which are neither subsidiaries nor interest
in a joint venture.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are initially recognized at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity metfsze Note 2.3)

Changes resulting from other comprehensive incomesaitifidiary analssociate or

items recognized directly intieX EVLGLDVV-RFRLQ @/ H-V HTXLW\ DUH UF
comprehensive income or equity of the Parent Basypplasable. Howeverhenthe Parent

% D Ghbr¥ of losses of subsidiargssociate equals or exceeds its interestsmlbidiary or
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the PareotlBaokrecognize

further losses, unless it has incurred obligatiomade payments on behalf ofsihigsidiary or
associate. If trmubsidiary oassociate subsequently reports profits, the investor resumes
recognizing its share of those profits only after its share of the profits exceeds the accumulz
share of logs that has previously not been recognized.

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the investment in a subsi
and an associate will et recovered (see Note 2.21

Distributions received from tlabsidiaries aratsociates are accounted for as a reduction of
the carying value of the investment.

2.12 Other Resources

Other resourcesvhich includ@on-current assets held for S@iee Note 2.1Qertain to

other assets that are controlled by BDO Unibank Group as a result of past events. These ¢
recognized in the financial statements when it is probable that the future economic benefits
will flow to BDO Unibank Group and the asset has a costue that can be measured
reliably. $Q DVVHW:-V FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW LV ZULWWHQ GRZQ
WKH DVVHW:.V FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW LV JUHDWHU WKDQ LV
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2.13 Intangible Assets

Intangible asseisclude goodwill, trading rights, branch licenses, customer lists, trademark al
computer software licenses.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net asset
acquired at the date of acquisifs@e Note 2(8)] Goodwill is classified as intangible asset
with indefinite useful life and, thus, not subject to amortization but to an astriaal te
impairmentgee Note 2.21 Goodwill is subsequently carried at cost less any accumulated
impairmentosses. Goodwill is allocated to egesterating units for the purpose of

impairment testing. Each of those ageterating units is represented by each primary
reporting segment.

Trading rights represent the rights given to securities subsidiaries of BDO Unibank Group
engage in stock brokerage to preserve access to the trading facilities and to transact busine
on PSE.Trading right is assessed as having an indefinite usefuiditarried at the amount
allocated from the original cost of the exchange membership seat (after a corresponding
allocation was made to the value of the PSE shares) less allowance for impairment loss, if :
BDO Unibank Group has no intention tdl &s trading right in the future as it intends to
continue to operate its stock brokerage business. The trading right is tested annually for ar
impairment imealizable valusge Note 2.31

Branch licenses, on the other hand, represent thegingimso BDO Unibank Group to
establish certain number of branches as an incentive in acquiring distressed banks or as
provided by the BSP in addition to the current branches of the acquired banks. Branch
licenses are assessed as having an indefinitéfasaaidaretested annually for any
impairmen{(see Note 2.21

Customer lists consist of information about customers such as their name, contact
LQIRUPDWLRQ DQG PDQDJHG DFFRXQWYV XQGHU %'2 8Q
customer list is claisd as intangible asset with indefinite useful life, hence, would be
reviewed for impairment by assessing at each reporting date whether there is any indicatior
that the trust business brought about by the customerdistsenmpaire(ee Note 2.31

Trademark pertains to the license granted to the Parent Bank for the exclusive right to use
trademark, service mark, name or logo of Diners Club International, Ltd. (Diners) in
FRQQHFWLRQ ZLWK WKH 3DUHQW % D Q N ivthe Bhilippih&g.L R Q
The trademark is covered by a trademark license agreement with a term of five years,
renewable every five years, subject to certain conditions set by trademark owner. This
intangible asset is recognized at an amount equal to fseoéycechase price for the
acquisition of Diners credit card portfolio over the acquidéitenfair value of the net assets
acquired. It is amortized on a straigiet basis over a finite useful life of five years based on
the term of the trademarkdnse agreement, which is deemed to have a finite useful life since
renewal is not guaranteed.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and install the specific software. These costs are amortized dmstlagist over

the expected useful life of five years. Costs associated wammgiobmputer software are
expensed as incurred.

When an intangible asset is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the
difference between the proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in
profit or loss.



-24-

2.14 Insurance ContractLiabilit ies

(@)

(b)

(€)

Legal Policy Reserves

Life insurance contract liabilities are recognized when the contracts are entered into an
the premiums are recognized. The provision for life insurance contracts is calculated
the basis of prospective actuarial valuation method and assumptions subject to the
provisions of the Insurance Code and guidelines set by the IC

TheBDO Unibank Groupuses gross premium valuation (GPV) as the basis for valuation
of the reserves for traditional life insurance poliGieY. is calculated as the sum of the
present value of future benefits and expenses, less the present value of future gross
premiums anisg from the policy discounted at the appropriatérestdiscount rate

provided by the IC. For this purpose, the expected future cash flows shall be determin
using the best estimate assumptions with due regard to significant recent experience a
appopriate margin for adverse deviation (MfAD) from the expected experience. The
methods and assumptions shall be in accordance with the internationally accepted
actuarial standards and consider the generally accepted actuarial principles concerning
financal reporting framework promulgated by the Actuarial Society of the Philippines,
which now considers other assumptions such as morbidity, lapse and/or persistency,
nontguaranteed benefits and MfAD.

The changes in legal policy reserves for traditieniaslifance policies are recognized as
follows:

(i) the increase or decrease in legal policy reserves in the current year due to other
assumptions excluding change in discount rate will be recognized to profit or loss;

(i) remeasurement on life insurareserves due to changes in discount rates will be
recognized in other comprehensive income (see Note 2.16).

Insurance Contracts with Fixed and Guaranteed Terms

Liabilities are determined as the sum of the present value of future benefits and exper
less the present value of future gross premiums discounted at rates prescribed by the
Future cash flows are determined using best estimate assumptiongavith rega
significant recent experience and appropriate margin for adverse deviation from the
expected experience.

BDO Unibank Group has different assumptions for different products. However, the
reserves are computed to comply with the statutory requisewigerein discount rates

are based on rigkee discount ratggovided by C and other assumptions such as
mortality, disability, lapse, and expensegitahlQ W R DFFRXQW %'2 8QLED!
experience.

Variable Uniinked Insurance Contracts

BDO Unibank Group, through BDO Life, issues4linked insurance contracts. In
addition to providing insurance coverage, dinked contract links payments to units

of an internal investment fund set up by BDO Unibank Group with the consideration
received fsm the policyholders. Premiums received from the issuancdinkedit
insurance contracts are recognized as premiums revenue. As allowed by PFRS 4, BL
Unibank Group chose not to unbundle the investment portion of #skad

products.
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The reservéor unitlinked liability is increased by additional deposits and changes in
unit prices and is decreased by policy administration fees, mortality and surrender
charges and any withdrawals. At each reporting date, this reserve is computed on the
basis othe number of units allocated to the policyholders multiplied by the unit price of
the underlying investment funds. The assets and liabilities underlying the internal
investment funds have been consolidated with the general accounts of BDO Unibank
Group.

Liability Adequacy Test

Liability adequacy tests are performed annually to ensure the adequacy of the insuran
contract liabilities. In performing these tests, current best estimates of future contractt
cash flows, claims handling and paléyinistration expenses are used. Any deficiency
is immediately charged against profit or loss initially by establishing a provision for los:
arising from the liability adequacy tests.

Insurance premiums and insurance benefits and claims on insumaaces @are recognized
as follows:

(@)

(b)

Insurance Premiums

() Netinsurance premiRa@oognized as gross premium on insurance contracts less
UHLQVXUHUV:- VKDUH RI JURVV SUHPLXPYV

(i) Gross premiums on insurance Poamnaatss arising fromsurance contracts are
initially recognized as income on the effective date of the insurance policies.
Subsequent to initial recognition, gross earned premiums on life insurance
contracts are recognized as revenue at the date when payments are due.

(i) ReinXUHUV . VKD U HGPRbsI&IRwancs pudtniumx én\traditional
and variable contracts are recognized as an expense when the policy becomes
effective.

Insurance Benefits and Claims

(i) Netinsurance benefits and @aiths8 QLED QN *URXS-V QHW LQVX
FODLPV FRQVLVW RI JURVV EHQHILWY DQG FODLI
JURVV FKDQJH LQ OHJDO SROLF\ UHVHUYHV DQG
policy reserves.

(i) Grosbenefits and clatBness benefits and claims of the policyholders include the
cost of all claims arising during the year. Death claims and surrenders are recorc
on the basis of notifications received. Maturities and annuity payments are recor
when due.

(i) BHLQVXUHUV:- VKD.UFHRQVEHIIHINL. WXWKDQ 8 RQDHHYH
to the amount recoverable from reinsurers for recognized claims during the year.
These are accounted for when the corresponding claims are recognized.

(iv) Gros change in legal policy @sassashange in legal policy reserves represents the
change in the valuation of legal policy reserves recognized as part of Insurance
Contract Liabilities account in the statement of financial position.
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(v) 5HLQV XdbH grass ch&nbedn legal palicy lecepg¢sX UHUV - VKDUH R
LQ OHJDO SROLF\ UHVHUYHV SHUWDLQ WR WKH 1
reserves. These are accounted for in the same periodosieiponding change
In insurance contract liabilities.

2.15 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount, considered
a single financial asset or financial liability, is reportedstattament of financial position

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The right of sebff must be avkable at the end of the reporting period, that is, it is not
contingent on future event. It must also be enforceable in the normal course of business,
in the event of default, and in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy; and must be legally
enforceabléor both entity and all counterparties to the financial instruments.

2.16 Equity
Equity consists of the following:
a. Capital stockepresents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

b. Additional paidn capitalncludes any premiums received on the issuance of capital stock.
Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from addition
paidin capital, net of any related income tax benefits

c. Surplus reservesnsist ofji) reserve for trust businegepresents the accumulated amount
set aside by BDO Unibank Group under existing regulations requiring the BDO Unibank
Group to carry to surplus 10% of its net profits accruing from its trust business until the
surplus shall amat to 20% of the regulatory capital and, to the appropriation for general
loan loss provision as prescribed by, BReserve for insurance fund and additional
working capital for underwriting and equity trading securities and reserve fund requireme
for subsidiaries engaged in the security brokerage business (s®edwd(ei Pshare
options outstanding (SOOUUHSUHVHQWY WKH DFFXPXODWHG WR)
amortizations over the vesting period as the-shaeel employee remuneratioe
recognized and reported in the statement of income. SOO will be deducted for any exert
or forfeiture of share options already vested.

d. Other reserves pertain to amount recognized from increase in percentage of ownership t
of the subsidiaries of BDO Unibank Group.

e. Surplus free includes all current and prior period results as disclosed in the statement of
income and which are available and not restricted for use by BDO Unibank Group, reduc
by the amounts of dividends declaifezhy

f. NUGL on FVOCI compose of cumulative méokmarket valuation of outstanding
securities and accumulated impairment on debt securities classified as FVOCI.

g. Accumulated actuarial gains (losses) from the remeasurepestisroployment defined
benefit plan.

h. Revaluation increment pertains to gains from the revaluation of land under premises,
furniture, fixtures and equipment, which is now treated as part of the deemed cost of the
assets (see Note 2.7).
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i. Remeasurement afelinsurance reserves arises from the increase or decrease of the
reserves brought about by changes in discount rates (see Note 2.14).

J. Accumulated translation adjustment pertains to foreign exchange differences arising on
translation of the resources #adilities of foreign branch and subsidiaries that are taken
up in other comprehensive income (see Note 2.22).

k. Accumulated share in other comprehensive income (loss) of subsidiaries and associates
pertains to changes resulting fromthe BEBQLEDQN *URXS DQG WKH 3DU
other comprehensive income (loss) of subsidiaries and associates or items recognized
GLUHFWO\ LQ WKH VXEVLGLDULHYVY DQG DVVRFLDWHYV -

|. Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net resourqa®finok loss not
attributable to BDO Unibank Group, which are presented separately in BDO Unibank
*URXS:V VWDWHPHQW RI LQFRPH VWDWHPHQW RI FRF
%'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:V VWDWHPHQW REeqUIQDQFLDO SR\

2.17 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between BDO
Unibank Group and its related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisiol
These include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indileothgh one or more intermediaries,
control or are controlled by, or under common control with BDO Unibank Group;

(b) associates; (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power
of BDO Unibank Group that gives them sigatiit influence over BDO Unibank Group and
FORVH PHPEHUV RI WKH IDPLO\ RI DQ\ VXFK lfupded YLGXI
retirement plan (see Not 2).

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is direcsdbgicahee of

the relationship and not merely on the legal fdlheBDO Unibank Groupestablished

policies and procedures on related party transactions in accordance with the regulations of
BSPand theSEC All material related party transactions;hwbxceed the established
materiality thresholds, musidergo prior review from the bodedelRelated Party
Transaction€ommittee before endorsitig same to thBOD for approval.

5HODWHG SDUW\ WUDQVDFWLRQV ZKRVH YDOXH H[FHH
resources, either single or aggregated withimarntR period, require review of an external
independent party and approval of-thicds vote of th&0D, with at least majority of the
independent directors voting affirmatively. In case that a majority of the independent
GLUHFWRUV:- YRWH LV QRW VHFXUHG WKH PDWHULDO |
of the stockholders representing at leasthinds of the outstanding capital stock. For
aggregate related party transactions withimofhth period that breaches the materiality
WKUHVKROG RI Rl %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:V WRWDO UH\
consolidated financial statements, thee sgpprovadf the BOD would be required for the
transaction that meets and exceeds the materiality threshold covering the sgragyelated
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2.18 Other Income and Expense Recognition

Revenue is recognized only when (or aB i@ UnibankGroup satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control of the promised services to the customer. A contract with
customer that results in a recognized financial instrumenBib@hEnibaaxk *UR X S - V
financial statements may be partially within the scope of PFRS 9 and partially within the scc
of PFRS 15In such case, tiBDO UnibankGroup first applies PFRS 9 to separate and
measure the part of the contract that-scope of PFRS 9,dithen applies PFRS 15 to the
residual part of the contra&gxpenses and costs, if any, are recognized in profit or loss upon
utilization of the assets or services or at the date these are incurred. All finanee costs
reported in profit or loss onaaal basjexcept to the extent that they are capitalized

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production o
qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get redelyded its i
use or sale) are capitalized as part of cost of suchrassedpitalization of borrowing costs
commences when expendituregierasset and borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to preparasset for its intdad use or sale are in progress.
Capitalization ceases when substaraidych activities are complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted fromrivibgrcosts eligible for
capitalization.

TheBDO UnibankGroup also earns service fees and commissions in various banking
services, and gains on sale of properties, which are supported by contracts approved by th
parties involved. These revenues amuated for by thBDO UnibankGroup in

accordance with PFRS 15.

For revenues arising frahesevarious banking serviagich are to be accounted for under
PFRS 15the following provides information about the nature and timgagisfaction of
performance obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, a
the related revenue recognition policies:

(&) Service charges, fees and cérBangseharges, fees and commissions are generally
recognized over time as the service is being provided and is based on the various crite
of recognition for each specific income source. These include the following accounts:

() Commission andfeseg) from loans, deposits, and other banking transactions are
taken up as income based on agreed terms and conditions.

(i) Loan syndicatiorafeaecognized as revenue when the syndication has been
completed and that BDO Unibank Group retained no part tdadhepackage for
itself or retained a part at the same effective interest rate for the other participants.

(i) Arranger femssing from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a
transaction for a third party such as arrangement of the megoishares or other
securities or the purchase or sale of businesses are recognized at the completion ¢
the underlying assumptions.

(iv) Portfolio and other management advisory amd ssrogeifeddased on the
applicable service contracts, usually on gtopertionate basis.
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(b) Asset Management SéiMieeBDO Unibank Groupecognizes trust fees related to
asset management services, which intclsi@nd fiduciary servicégust feeselated
to investment funds are recognized ratably over the period the service is provided. Th
same principle is applied for wealth management, financial plannintpeypcensces
that are continuously provided over an extended period of time.

For other income outside the scope of PFRS 15, the following provides information about tl
nature and the related revenue recognition policies:

(a) Trading and Securities Gains @Idssss)yare recognized when the ownership of the
securities is transferred to the buyer and is computed as the difference between the
selling price and the carrying amount of the securities dispoBleeseaf.also ihae
trading gains and losses as a result of theoradeket valuation of investment
securities classified asTiPL.

(b) Gain or loss from assets sold or2émcbarger loss from assets sold or exchanged is
recognized when the title to the properties is transferred to the buyer or when the
collectability of the entire sales price is reasonably a3$usdd.included istatement
of incomeas part oDther Operatingncomeaccount.

(c) Recovery on chaffgesseténcome arising from collections on accounts or recoveries
from impairment of items previously written off are recognized in the year of recovery.
This is included istatement of incomees part oDther Operating Income account

TheBDO Unibank Group recognizes an expense and liability relative to the fair value of
the reward points earned by clients and customers [see Not&ErR&&(such points are
redeemable primarily from the goodsesvices provided by a third party participating in the
program, for example, SM Group (a related party) and rewards partners of the Parent Bank

2.19 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably leadfimanfeeconomic
resources and these can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow ma
still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive
commitment that has resulted from past evegtslégadlisputes or onerous contracts).

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligatio
based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of reporting period, including the ris|
anduncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of similal
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time valuey o material,

longterm provisions are discounted to their present values using a pretax rate that reflects
market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision du
passage of time is recognized as interest expaosisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted tdetfthe current best estimate.
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In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present obliga
is considered improbable or remoteheramount to be provided for cannot be measured
reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statements. Similarly, probable inflows of
economic benefits that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered
contingent assetsgnce, are not recognized in the financial statements. On the other hand, an
reimbursement that BDO Unibank Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party
with respedto the obligation is recognized as a separate asset not exceedmgntief &me
related provision.

The BDO Unibank Group offers monetized rewards to active account holders in relation to |
credit card and marketing rewards program. Provisions for rewards are recognized at a cel
UDWH RI WKH D F F R XQétetnih € GyHnhavagdnémd heddd ldrQredeemable
amounts.

2.20 Leases
BDO Unibank Group accounts for its leases as follows:
(@) BDO Unibank Group as Lessor

Leases, wherein BDO Unibank Group substantially transfers to the lessee all risks anc
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are classified as finance leases an
DUH SUHVHQWHG DV UHFHLYDEOH DW DQ DPRetQW H
in the lease. Finance income is recognized based on the pattern reflecting a constant
SHULRGLF UDWH RI UHWXUQ RQ %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS
of the finance lease.

Leases, which do not transfer to the lessee sulligtatitihe risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease collections
recognized as income in profit or lasgart of Rental under Other Operating Income
account in the statement of incoonea straghtline basis over the lease term.

(b) BDO Unibank Group as Lessee

For any new contracts entered into, BDO Unibank Group considers whether a contrac
or contains, a lease. A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conve
right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To apply this definitBDO Unibank Groumassesses whether the

contract meets three key evaluatidnish are

X the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made
available t8DO Unibank Group

x BDO Unibank Grouphas the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefit:
from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights
within the defined scope of the contract; and,

x BDO Unibank Groughas the right to direct the usedldd identified asset throughout
the period of useBDO Unibank Groumssesswhether it has the right to direct
TKRZ DQG IRU ZKDW SXUSRVH:- WKH DVVHW LV XVF
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At lease commencement date, the BDO Unibank Group recogimggefause asset

and a lease liability in the statement of financial position. Tod-tightasset is

measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
any initial direct costs incurredBiyO Unibank Groupan estimate of any costs to
dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments mad
advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received). Subseque
BDO Unibank Groumepreciates the rigbt-use ass®n a straighiine basis from the

lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life ofdhesaght

asset or the end of the lease term. BD® Unibank Groumlso assesses the

rightof-use asset for impairment when such indgatas{see Note 2.21

On the other hand, BDO Unibank Group measures the lease liability at the present val
of the lease payments unpaid at the commencement date, discounted using the intere
rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily agaild8IDO Unibank Group V

incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed) less lease incentives receivable, if any, variable lease payments b:
on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable tegldual value guarantee,

and payments arising from options (either renewal or termination) reasonably certain
to be exercised. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for
payments made and increased for interest. It is rezde@astaflect any reassessment

or modification, or if there are changes-suinstance fixed payments. When the lease
liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in-dfeisiglasset,

or profit and loss if the riglof-use ast is already reduced to zero.

BDO Unibank Group has elected to account for ¢bam leases and leases of
low-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recogniziafyuesaght
asset and lease liability, the payments in relatiosg@teeecognized as an expanse
incurred.

On the statement of financial position, rgfhise assets and lease liabilities have been
presenteds part of Premised-urniture FixturesandEquipmeni&andOther Liabilities
respectively.

2.21 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

%'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:V HTXLW\ LQYHVWPHQWY JRRGZLC
and customer lists recorded as part of Other Resdreragses-urniture Fixtures and
Equipment)nvestmenProperties and other ndimancial assets are sabje impairment

testing. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, branch licenses,
customer lists and trading rights are tested for impairment at least annually. All other
individual assets or cagnerating units are testedimpairment whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which th
are separately identifiable cash floashgenerating units). As a result, assets are tested for
impairment either individually or at the agesterating unit level.

$Q LPSDLUPHQW ORVV LV UHFRJQL]JHG IR MXHIUD RVROQQ \
carrying amount exceeds itokerable amounts which is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management estimates the expect
future cash flows from each cgsimerating unit and determines the suitable interest rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Discount factors are determined
individually foreachcashHQHUDWLQJ XQLW DQG UHIOHFW PDQDJI
risk profiles, such as market and agsasdific risk factors.
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Except br goodwill allassets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairmen
ORVV SUHYLRXVO\ UHFRJQL]JHG PD\ QR ORQJHU H[LVW
FDVK JHQHUDWLQJ XQLW:V UHFRYHUDEOH DPRXQW H[F

2.22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

(@)

(b)

Foreign Currency Transactions

The financial statements of the Foreign Currency Deposit Unit (FCDU) of BDO
Unibank Group are translated at the prevailing current exchange rates (for statement
of financial position accounts) and average exchange rate during the period

(for statement ahcome accounts) for consolidation purposes.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
denominated transactions and from the translation @ngkaxchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominatddreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary financial assets denominated in foreign currenc
classified as FVOCI securities analyzed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amaed cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount ¢
the security. Translation differences related to changes in amortized cost are recogni:
in profit or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other
comprehenseszincome.

Foreign Currency Translation

The accounting records of BDO Unibank Group are maintained in Philippine pesos
except for foreign branches and subsidiaries, which are maintained in U(8S1)lars
Canadian Dollar (CAD), European Union Hioro), Great Britain Pound (GBP),
Japanese Yen (JPY), Hong Kong Dollars (HKD) or Singapore Dollar (SGD).

The operating results and financial position of foreign branches and subsidiaries whict
measured using th&sD, CAD, Euro, GBP, JPY, HKD or SGIespectively, are
WUDQVODWHG WR 3KLOLSSLQH SHVRV %'2 8QLEDQN

() Resources and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the end of the repgueting,;

(i) Income and expenses for each statement of income are translated at the monthly
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and,

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of othe
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation doeeigpmbranch
and net investment in foreign subsidiamesecognized in other comprehensive income a:
part of Accumulated Trdation Adjustment (see Note 2.18Vhen a foreign operation is
sold, the cumulative amount of exchange differences rsizedag profit or loss.

The translation of the financial statements into Philippine peso should not be construe
as a representation that thedlJJSAD, Euro, GBP, JPY, HKD or SGD amounts could

be converted into Philippine peso amounts at the translation rates or at any other rate:
exchange.
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2.23 Compensation and Benefits Expense

BDO Unibank Group provides pestnployment benefits to employgesugh a defined
benefit plan and defined contribution plan, and other employee benefits, whiokrirede
as follows

(&) Posemployment Defined Benefit

A defined benefit plan is a pestployment plan that defines an amount of
postemployment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually depende
one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal obliyation for
benefits from this kind of pestnployment plan remains with BDO Unibank Group, even
if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired. Plan assets m:
include assets specifically designated to-tetom@penefit fund. BDO Unibash *UR X S -\
defined benefit pogmployment plan covers all regulaitifuk employees. The
postemployment plan is tapialified, noncontributory and administered by a trustee.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position for defivefd
postemployment plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) les
the fair value of plan assets at the end of reporting period, together with adjustments f
asset ceiling. The DBO is calculated annually by independeesacsiray the

projected unit credit method. The present value of the DBO is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using a discount rate derived from the
interpolated yields of government boasisalculated by Bloomberg which used
Bloomberg Valuation Service (BVANpluated Pricing Service to calculate the

PHP BVAL Reference Ratghich are published by Philippine Dealing & Exchange
Corp. (PDEX) These yieldare denominated in the currency in which the benefits will

be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
postemployment liability

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses ariskpefiente
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on plan assets
(excluding amount included in interest) are reflected immediately in the statement of
financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehemsieannc

the period in which they arise. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
the beginning of the period, taking account of any changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the period as a result of contributioberaefd payments

If there is a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement during the period, the BDO
Unibank Group remeasures its net defined benefit liability or asset using updated
actuarial assumptions to determine the current service cost amiasttfantthe

remaining of the annual reporting period after the change to thRgllamterest is
reported as part of Interest expense on bills payable anoootbetingsunder Inteest
Expense accouit the statement of income

Pastservice costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of plan
amendment and curtailment.



(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)
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Posemployment Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a pestployment plan under which BDO Unibank

Group paysW KH UHT X L U EbGtribLRdh©ifta Bnundépendent entity, such as the
Social Security System. BDO Unibank Group has no legal or constructive obligations
pay further contributions after payment of thed T X L U H G ddrRri®@iéh\ H k- V
contributions recognized in respect of defined contribution plans are expensed as the)
fall due. Liabilities and assets may be recognized if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred.

Shorterm Benefits

Shortterm employee benefits include wages, salaries, bonuses;naoietary

benefits provided to current employees, which are expected to be settled before

12 months after the end of the reporting period during whiemployee services are
rendered, but does not include termination benefits. The undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in respect of services rendered by employees in an
accounting period is recognized in profit or loss during thad ped any unsettled

amount at the end of the reporting period is included as part of Accrued expenses und
Other Liabilities account in the statement of financial position.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by BDO Unibank
Groupfor authorized causefore the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. BDO Unibank Group
recognizesetmination benefits at the earlier of when it can no longer withdraw the offer
of such benefits and when it recognized costs for a restructuring that is within the scor
of PAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured base
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of reporting perediacounted to present value.

BonuPlans

BDO Unibank Group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses based on the
BDO Unibank* URXS:-V ERQXV SROLF\ $ SURYLVLRQ LV U]
Group where it is contractually obliged to pay the benefits or where there is a past
practie that has created a constructive obligation.

Employee Stock Option Plan

BDO Unibank Group has an employee stock option plan (ESOP) for its senior officers
(fromviceSUHVLGHQW XS IRU WKHLU FRQWULEXWLRQ W
and attainmenR1 WHDP JRDOV 1RQH RI W gtotkptan?ar® QasiE D Q N
settled.
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All services received in exchange for the grant of the stock options are measured at th
fair valuesising the Blaegcholes option modeWhere employees are rewarded using
VWRFN RSWLRQV WKH IDLU YDOXH RI HPSOR\HHV - V
to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The amount of stock options
allocated to the qualified officers is baseithe performance of the senior officers as
determined by management and it requires a vesting period of five years. These are
adjusted accordingly for any resignation or disqualificéliervested options may be
exercised within three years fagsing date. The cost of ESOP is amortized over five
years (vesting period) starting from the approval of the BOD. The annual amortization
of stock options is included in Compensation and benefits under Other Operating
Expenses account in the statememnmadmewith corresponding recognition@®0O

(included apart of Surplus Reseswender the Equity section of thatement of

financial position

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received, net of any directly attributable
transactiorrostsare allocated to capital stock to the nominal (or par) value of the share
issued with any excess being recorded as additiomaigagidial. In case of forfeiture,

the previously recognized share options outstanding will be transferred to additional
pad-in-capital.

(g) Unavailed Leaves

Unavailed leaves (excluding those qualified under the retirement benefit plan), include
in Other Liabilities account, are recognized as expense at the amount BDO Unibank
Group expects to pay at the end of reporting period. Unavailed leaves of employees
gualified under the retirement plan are valued and funded as part of the present value
DBO in Note 2.23(a).

2.24 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognizedtatement of inconmmmprises the sum o@irrenttax anddeferred
tax not recognized in other comprehansgicome or directly in equity, if any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal authoriti
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at the end of
thereporting period. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the period. All change
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a cdroptmeexpense in profit or

loss.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on temporary differences at the end
the reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amoun
financial reporting puggses. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions, deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the carryforward of unused tax los
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available ac
which the deferred tax asset can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reasses
the end of each reporting period and are recdgoitlee extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply |
period wherthe asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates and tax law
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each repdrang peri
reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequenltks that v
follow from the manner in which BDO Unibank Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a cortgoerptinse

in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehens
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if BDO Unibank Group has a legall
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
relate to the same entity and the daragion authority (séote 31.1).

2.25 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is determined by diidisglidatedet profit by the weighted
average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the period, after retroac
adjustment for any stock dividend declared in the current period.

The diluted earnings per share is also computed by dividsayjdtednet profit by the

weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the period.
Howeverconsolidatedet profit attributable to common shares and the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding are adjusted to hefleffetts of potentially dilutive
convertible preferred shares and stock option plan granted by BDO UnitnamkoGhe

qualified officergo the extent that shares under the stock option plan shall be issued from tt
unissued authorized capital stouk ot purchased from the market or stock exchange).

Convertible preferred shares are deemed to have been converted to common shares at the
issuance of preferred shares. The stock option plan is deemed to have been converted intc
common stock in the gethe stock option is granted.

2.26 Trust Activities

BDO Unibank Group commonly acts as trustee and in other fiduciary capacities that result |
the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and
otherinstitutions. Resources and income arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as these are neither resources nor income of BDO Unibank Group.

2.27 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any postyearend event that provides additiéhaL QI RUPDWLRQ DERXW %'2 8
financial position at the end of reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the financial
statements. Poegearend events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when ma
to the financiadtatements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

%'2 8QLEDQN *URXS DQG WKH 3D U H@aparedh@dtoMahteQudiQ F L
PFRSrequire management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts repor
the financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evalu
are based on historical experience and other factors, includitajierpaxf future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may ultimately differ
these estimates and the differences could be significant.

3.1 Crtical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

InthH SURFHVYV RI DSSO\LQJ %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:-V DFFR.
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most significant
on the amounts recognizedhe financial statements

(@) Application of ECL to Financial Assets at Amortized Cost and Financial Assets at FVC

BDO Unibank Group usdke general approatthcalculate ECL for all debt instruments
carried at amortized cost and FVOCI, together with loan commitments and financial
guarantee contractShe allowance for impairmestased on the ECLs associated with
the probability of default of a financial instrument in the next 12 months, unless there f
been a significant increase in credit risk since origination of thalfinatrament, in

such case, a lifetime ECL for the instrument is recogiiizisds where significant
judgement is required.

BDO Unibank Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of
reporting period, whetherld QDQFLDO LQVWUXPHQW: -V FUHGLW
initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the
remaining life of the financial instrumi@ete Note.3.5).

(b) Evaluation of Business ModeliApgéiadgg Financial Instruments

BDO Unibank Group manages its financial assets based on business models that mai
adequate level of financial assets to match its expected cash outflows, largely its core
IXQGLQJ DULVLQJ IUlvaldaxy aririiddldan didbwdeiBents to
borrowers, while maintaining a strategic portfolio of financial assets for trading activitie
corsistent with its risk appetite.

BDO Unibank Group developed business models which reflect how it manageslits por
RI' ILQDQFLDO LQVWUXPHQWY %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:
at entity level or as a whole but shall be applied at the level of a portfolio of financial
instruments (i.e., group of financial instruments that are managed byg@B®@ Unibank
Group) and not on an instrumédatinstrument basis (i.e., not based on intention or
specific characteristics of individual financial instrument).

In determining the classification of a financial instrument, BDO Unibank Group evaluat
in which business model a financial instrument or a portfolio of financial instruments b
to taking into consideration the objectives of each business model established by BDC
Unibank Group (e.g., hefor-trading, generating accrual income, direchingtto a
VSHFLILF OLDELOLW\ DV WKRVH UHODW H alidRen#ri@ 8 C
strategies.
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Testing the Cash Flow Characteristics of Financial Assets and Continuing Evaluation «
the Business Model

In determining the classification of financial assets, BDO Unibank Group assesses
whether the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to ca:
flows that ar&PPlon the principal outstanding, with interest representingaioeeof

money and credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding. The assessir
as to whether the cash flows meet the test is made in the currency in which the financi
asset is denominated. Any other contractual term that changesgher tomount of

cash flows (unless it is a variable interest rate that represents time value of money anc
credit risk) does not meet the amortized cost criteria. In cases where the relationship
between the passage of time and the interest rate oatfugalimstrument may be
imperfect, known as modified time value of money, BDO Unibank Group assesses the
modified time value of money feature to determine whether the financial instrument sti
meets the SPPI criterion. The objective of the assesstoa@tegmine how different

the undiscounted contractual cash flows could be from the undiscounted cash flows th
would arise if the time value of money element was not modified (the benchmark cash
flows). If the resulting difference is significantSR1el criterion is not met. In view

of this, BDO Unibank Group considers the effect of the modified time value of money
element in each reporting period and cumulatively over the life of the financial
instrument.

If more than an infrequent sale is made out of a portfolio of financial assets carried at
amortized cost, an entity should assess whether and how such sales are consistent wi
the objective of collecting contractual cash flows.

In making this judgmem®DO Unibank Grougonsiders certain circumstances
documented in its business model manual to assess that an increase in the frequency
value of sales of financial instruments in a particular period is not necessarily inconsisit
with aheldto-collectbusiness model if BDO Unibank Group can explain the reasons for
WKRVH VDOHV DQG ZK\ WKRVH VDOHV GR QRW UHIO!
objective for the business model.

In 2021 an@020, th&8DO Unibank Group and thearent Bank disposeticertan

debt securities from its amortized cost portfolio in accordance with its investment polic
Such disposalteave qualified under the permitted sale events set BB®itUnibank
*URXS:V DQEDRNUWEWVLQHVY PRGHO LQ wxabdhelL QJ |
requirements of PFRS$ke Notd 0.3).

Distinction Between Investment Propertiescangi€vAssperties

BDO Unibank Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property.
In making its judgment, BDOnibank Group considers whether the property generates
cash flows largely independent of the other assets held by BDO Unibank Group.
Owneroccupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the
property but also to the other resegrased in the supply process.
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Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental or for capital appreciatic
and another portion that is held for use in the supply of services or for administrative
purposes. If taportions can be sold separately (or leased out separately under finance
lease), BDO Unibank Group accounts for those portions separately. If the portion
cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for as investment property only

if insignificahportion is held for use in the supply of services or for administrative
purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so signifi
that a property does not qualify as investment property. BDO Unibank Group conside
eachproperty separately in making its judgment.

Distinction Between Operating and Findoic€ deimaets where BDO Unibank Group is the
Lessor

BDO Unibank Group has entered into various lease agreamanéssor. Critical
judgment wasxercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either
operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant risks anc
rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure to make tf
right judgment will result in either overstatement or understatement of resources.

Determination of Lease Term

In determining the lease term, management considers all relevararfdcto
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise apsioeveainot

exercise a termination option. Renewal options and/or periods after termination option
are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended or
terminated.

For leases of land and office spaces, tterddbat are normally the most relevant are

(i) if there are significant penalties should BDO Unibank Grotgrprieate the

contract, and (ii) if any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant
remaining value, BDO Unibank Group is reddgreertain to extend and not to

terminate the lease contract. Otherwise, BDO Unibank Group considers other factors
including historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to
replace the leased asset.

BDO Unibank Group didot include the renewal period as part of the lease term of the
land and office spaces because the terms of most of the contracts are renewable upor
mutual agreement of the parties.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exerciseldBID@dJUnibank

Group becomes obliged to exercise or not. The assessment of reasonable certainty is
only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, whi
affects this assessment, and that is within the controBB®@é&nibank Group.
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Classification and Fair Value Deterpfidatipired Properties

BDO Unibank Group classifies its acquired properties as Premises, Furniture, Fixtures
and Equipment if used in operations, chattels asNoent assets held foresal

(presented under Other Resources account) if expected to be recovered through sale
rather than use, real properties as Investment Properties if intended to be held for cap
appreciation or lease femnciabssets if qualified as such in accordaitbd’FRS %r

as Other properties (presented under Other Resources account) if held for sale but the
depreciable properties (other than building) are not yet disposedentitimpears. At

initial recognition, BDO Unibank Group determines the fair value ofjthissdc

properties through internally or externally generated appraisal. The appraised value is
determined based on the current economic and market conditions as well as the physi
condition of the propertieg.heBDO Unibank* URX S -V PHWKRIGRIGGR I\ LQ
the fair value of acquired properties are further discussed ihS\ote

Assessment of Significant Influence on Entities in which BDO Unibank Group Holds L¢
Ownership

The management considers that the BDO Unibank Group and the Pardrav@ank
significant influence on NLEX Corporation even though it holds less than 20% of the
ordinary shares in the latter. In making this judgment, management considered the BI
Unibank* URXS DQG WKH 3DUHQW %DQN:-V YRWLQJ ULJK
to nominate a director in NLEX Corporation as granted in the Amended and Restated
6KDUHKROGHUV: $JUHHPHQW $56%

ARSA provides that investors shall be entitladrtonate one director for as long as it
owns at least 10% of the equity of NLEX Corporation, or shall be entitled to nominate
two directors for as long as it owns at least 16.5% of the equity of NLEX Corporation.

Failure to make the right judgment wilitein either overstatement or understatement of
resources, lialties, income and expenses.

Determination of Timing of Sati$f@etimnmance Obligations

BDO Unibank Groumetermines that its revenues from services for account
management, loadrainistratiorandfees from annual credit card membership shall be
recognized ovemtie. In making its judgment, BDO Unibank Groopsiders the timing

of receipt and consumptiof benefits provided BDO Unibank Grougo the

customers As the works performedBDO Unibank Grougecomes entitled to

payments. This demonstrates that the customers simultaneously receive and consum
the benefits of thBDO Unibank GroupV UHQGHULQJ Rl WKHVH UHW|
services as it performs.

In deermining the best method of measuring the progressBiDMéJnibank

Group:V UHQGHULQJ RI DIRUHPHQWLRQHG VHUYLFHYV
method, which uses direct measurements of the value to the customer of the services
transferred to datelative to the remaining services promised as basis in recognizing
revenues. Sucheasurements include results of performance completedandate

time elapsed
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Detanination of Branch Licenses Having Indefinite Useful Lives

The BDO UnibanlGroup-V OLFHQVHY ZHUH UHJDUGHG DV KDY
considering there is fareseeable limit to the period over which such assets are
expected to generate net cash inflows f@ @ Unibank Group The assessment

having indefinite ud livesis reviewed periodically and is updated whether events and
circumstances such as the period of control over these assets and legalimitsimilar

on the use of these assets continue to support such assessment.

RecognitiofPadvisions and Contingencies
Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and

contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed
Note 219and relevant diksures are presented in Note 3

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of esti
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a mater
adjustment to the cgimg amounts of resources and liabilities within the next reporting period

(@)

(b)

Estimation of Allowance for ECL

The measurement of the allowance for ECL on financial assets at amorazreddasist
instrumend measured at FVO® an area that requires the use of significant assumption
about the future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelibostmwiers
defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and
estimation used in measuring ECL is further detailed in Note 4.3.

The carrying value Bhancial assetsYOCI, Investment securitiessamortized cost and
Loars and Other Bceivablesnd the analysis of the allowance for impairment on such
financial assetare shown in NoteKd.2,103 11, and B respectively.

Fair Value Measurement for Financial Instruments

Management applies valuaterhniques to determine the fair value of financial instrume
where active market quotes are not available. Valuation techniques are used to deter
fair values which are validated and periodically reviewed. To the extent practicable, r
use obswable data, however, areas such as counterparty credit risk, volatilities and
correlations require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions could
the reported fair value of financial instruments. The BDO Unibank Grsijydgseent to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

7KH FDUU\LQJ YDOXHV RI WKH %'2 8QLEDaufifidanéaX S -\
assets at FYOGInd the amous of fair value changes recognized during the years on
those assets are disclosed in NIlddsandl0.2, respectively.
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Determination of Fair Value of Derivatives

The fair value of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted in an active marke
is determined through valuation techniguesiallyusing theliscounted cash flow
model

Valuation techniques are used to determine fair values, which ard aatidate

periodically reviewed. To the extent practicable, models use observable data, howeve
areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations requ
management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions and saoaldtaffect

reported fair valuef financial instrumentd he value produced by a model or other
valuation technique, in some instances, is adjusted to allow for a number of factors as
appropriate, because valuation techniques Ggpropriately reflect all factors market
participants take into account when entering into a transaction. Valuation adjustments
are recorded to allow for model risks;asiki spreads, liquidity risks as well as other
factors. Management believes thathaluation adjustments are necessary and
appropriate to fairly state financial instruments carried at fair value in the statement of
financial position.

BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank use judgment to select a variety of methods
makeassumptions that are mainly based on conditions existing at the end of each repc
period.

Estimation of Useful Lives of Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment, Investmen
Other Resources

BDO Unibank Group estimates the usefuslofepremises, furniture, fixtures and
equipment, investment properties and other properties, including traddroarputer
software licensbased on the period over which the assets are expected to be available
use.The estimated useful livedtuése assetse reviewed periodically and are updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

7TKH %'2 8Q lgeddvgliNniranch licensesere regarded as havimgefinite useful
lives considerintpere is no foreseeabhait to the periodver which such assate

expected to generate net cash inflows for the BDO Unibank Group. The assessment «
having indefinite useful liveseviewed periodically and is updated whether events and
circumstances such as the period of control over thaseaasisegal or silar limits on the
use of these assets contitmugupport such assessment

Actual results, however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by chan
factors mentioned above.

The carrying amounts aiemisesfurniture fixturesandequipmentare analyzed in
Note 12 while investment properties and other resources, includemarkgoodwill
and branch licenseme analyzed in Note$and b, respectively.



(€)

(f)

(9)

-43-

Determination of Appropriate Discount Rate in Measabihggesease

BDO Unibank Group measures its lease liabilities at present value of the lease payme
that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease contract. The lease paymen
discounted using a reasonable rate deenmeainagement equal to the BDO Unibank
*URXS:V LQFUHPHQWDO ERUURZLQJ UDWH ,Q GHWHFE
management considers the term of the leases, the underlying asset and the economic
environment. Actual results, however, may vary duarigeshin estimates brought about
by changes in such factors.

'"HWHUPLQDWLRQ RI $VVXPSWLRQV IRU ODQDJHPHQW

Investment properties are measured using the cost modé&dir Vakie disclosed in

Note 13to the financial statemergsdietermined by BDO Unibank Group using the
discounted cash flows valuation technique which are mainly based on existing market
conditions and actual transactions at each reporting period such as selling price under
installmensalesexpected timing of sale and appropriate discount rates. The expected
selling price is determined by either an independent or internal appraiser on the basis
current appraised values of the properties or similar properties in the samandcation
condition (see Note5).

For investment properties with appraisal conducted prior to the end of the current
reporting period, management determines whether there are significant circumstances
during the intervening period that may require adjustonaatitanges in the disclosure

of fair value of those properties significant change key inputand sources of
information used in the determination offdievalue disclosed for those assets may
result in adjustment in the carrying amoftitite asets reported in the financial
statements their fair value will indicate evidence of impairment.

Determination of Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets

BDO Unibank Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting perio
andreduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficiel
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilize
Significant judgment is applied by the management to determineuthiecduahererred

tax assets that can be recognized based on the likely timing and level of BDO Uniban}
*URXS: -V IXWXUH WD[DEOH LQFRPH 7KH %'2 8QLEDC
performance in determining the sufficiency of the future taxable incopEott the
recognition of deferred tax assets.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets, which management assessed to be utilized
within the next two to theeyears, as of December 3212hd2®0is disclosed in
Note 3L.1.
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Impairment of Nimranclassets

Except forgoodwill and othantangible assets with indefinite useful lives, PFRS
requires that an impairment review be performed when certain impairment indicators &
SUHVHQW %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:V SROLF\fiRaQcidlVWLP
assets is discussed in detdllate 2.2. Though management believes that the
assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the financial statements
appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may materially
affect the assessment of recable values and any resulting impairment loss could have
a material adverse effect on the results of operations.

Impairment losses recognized in pafibss are disclosed in No& 1

Valuation of Pestiployment Defined Benefit

The GHWHUPLQDWLRQ RI %'2 8QLEDQN *UdtyplSyriverREOL J
and other retirement benefits is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions use
by actuaries in calculating such amounts. Thosgtiess are described in No&2
andinclude, among others, discount rates, expected rate of return on plan asset and s
increase rates. A significant change in any of these actuarial assumptions may gener;
affect the recognized expense, other comprehensive income or losses and the carryin
amount of the postmployment benefit obligation in the next reporting period.

The amounts of pogimployment benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of the
movenents in the estimated present value ofgragtoyment benefit obligation, as well
as the significant assumptions in estimating sugatmol are presented in No&22

Recognition of Reward Points

BDO Unibank Group provides rewards points to it&ibgrclients and customéased

on the montko-date average daily balance they maintain in their personaRea&Ad
points are redeemable in a wide selection of reward categories, including travel,
merchandise of third parties, reward credits d@raggificates. Certain loyalty points for
credit card have no expiration date unless the credit card is cancelled but for other rew
program, unredeemed points may expire at some future date.

BDO Unibank Group sets up a liability to cover the cdatuk reward redemptions for
points earned to date. The estimated liability is based upon points earned by the clien
the current cost per point of redemption. The estimated points to be redeemed are
measured and adjusted based on many factodsngdut not limited to past redemption
behavior of the clients, product type on which the points are earned and their ultimate
redemption rate on the points earned to date but not yet redeemed.

BDO Unibank Group continually evaluates its estimatesafards based on developments
in redemption patterns, cost per point redeemed and other factors. The estimated liak
for unredeemed points is impacted over time by enroliment levels, amount of points ee
and redeemed, weigh#eerage cost per pgiredemption choices made by the clients ant
other membership rewards program changes. The calculation is most sensitive to che
the estimated ultimate redemption rate. This rate is based on the expectation that a Ie
majority of all points eaed will eventually be redeemed and the rewards will be redeem
through goods or services supplied by a third party or affiliated retail partners based ol
%'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:V SDVW H[SHULHQFH
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The carrying value of the rewards points accrued by BDO Unibank Group are present:
as part of Accrued expenses under Other Liabilities account in the statement of financ
position as disclosed in Note 21.

Valuation of Legal Policy Reserves

Legal policy reserves represent estimates of present value of future benefits and expe
in excess of present value of future gross premiums. These estimates are based on
interest rates, mortality/morbidity tables, and valuation method subject ¢twihens

of thelnsuranceCode and guidelines setGy

The liability for life insurance contracts uses the discount rate as provided by the IC wi
other assumptions based on best estimate with regard to significant recent experience
and appropriate ngin for adverse deviation from the expected experience. At each
reporting date, these estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes will be refle
in adjustments to the liability. The main assumptions used relate to mortality, morbidit
lapse, ashdiscount rate.

For life insurance contracts, estimates are made as to the expected number of deaths
lapses for each of the years in which the BDO Unibank Group is exposed to risk. The
BDO Unibank Group uses mortality tables and lapse rates &uthjeajuidelines set by
thelC as the basis of these estimates. The estimated number of lapses, deaths, illnes
injury determines the value of possible future benefits to be paid out, which will be fact
into ensuring sufficient covert@gerves, which in return is monitaageinst current and
future premiums.

Fair Value Measurement of Share Options

TheBDO Unibank Groupestimates the fair value of the executive stock option by
applyinghe BlackScholes Option pricing melgconsidering the terms and conditions on
which the stock optioplanwasgranted. The estimates and assumptions used include,
DPRQJ RWKHUV WKH RSWLRQ -Ye&irt&féStrade) epddictd R G L
dividend yield, volatility of tB>0O Unibank GroupV VKDUH SULFH DQG II
BDO Unibank GroupV F RiPdhd&es. Changes in these factors can affect the fair vall
of stock options at grant date.

RISK MANAGEMENT

With its culture of managing risk prudently within its capacity and capabilities, the BDO

Unibank Group will pursue its strategy launglness plans to provide consistent quality service
to its customers, to achieve its desiredtnng target returns to its shareholders and satisfy or

abide by the needs of its other stakeholders, including its depositors and regulators.

The BDO Unibak Group believes that, as there are opportunities, there are associated risk

and the objective is not to totally avoid risks, but to adequately and consistently evaluate,
manage, control, and monitor the risks and ensure tBi2@h&nibankGroup is adegptely

compensated for all the risks taken. Good risk management involves making informed and

rational decisions about the level of risks the institution wants to take, in the pursuit of its
objectives, but with consideration to return commensuratéeviisktaking activity.
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7KH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:V JRDO LV WR UHPDLQ D VWUR
events. Hence, tlBDO UnibankGroup ensures:

X  strong financial position by maintairadgquateapital ratios;
X soundmanagement of liquidity; and,

x ability to generate sustainable earnings commensurate with the risks taken.

For credit risk, market risk, and liquidity riskBb® UnibankGroup ensures that these are
within Boardapproved operating limits. For operal risk (which includes legal, regulatory,
compliance risks), and reputational risks, these are invariably managed by the developmen
RI ERWK D VWURQJ "FRQWURO FXOWXUHu DQG DQ HIIHF
monitors and updates optwaal policies and procedures with respect B2 Unibank
*URXS:V DFWLYLWLHY DQG WUDQVDFWLRQV

Risk management at BDO Unibank Group begins at the highest level of the orgaktization.
the helm of the risk management infrastructure is the BOD welspassible for establishing

and maintaining a sound risk management system. The BOD assumes oversight over the «
risk management process and has the ultimate responsibility for all risks taken. It regularly
UHYLHZV DQG DSSUR Yerakce/ioKrisks, QsvadiLagy issWUsIRels Stratédy/ and ri:
philosophy.

The BOD has constituted the Risk Management Committee (RMC) as thesBalard
Committee responsible for the oversight of the risk management program. Considering the
importance bappropriately addressing credit risk, the BOD has also constitlizediigve
Committee. ThE&xecutiveCommittee is responsible for approwreglitspecifidransactions,
while the RMC is responsible for approvisigappetite levels, policies, askitolerance limits
related to credit portfolio risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, operational risk
(includingousiness continuitisk IT risk, information securitgnd cybesecurityisk,data

privacy riskandsocial mediesk), consumer protection risikd environmental and social risk
WR HQVXUH WKDW FXUUHQW DQG HPHUJLQJ ULVN H[SR
strategic direction and overall risk appetite.

LWKLQ %'2 8QLED€al riskliRaxi&evheRt system is the Assets and Liabilities
Committee (ALCO), which is responsible for managi@x@eUnibank* UR X S - V

statement of financial position, includingBB® Unibank* URXS -V OLTXLGLW\ L(
rate and foreign exchange related risks. In addition, ALCO formulates investment and
financial policies by determining the asset allocation and funding mix strategies that are
likely to yield the targeted financial results.

BDO Unibank Group operates anterprisaviderisk management system to address the

risks it faces in its banking activitielse Risk Management Group (RMG) is mandated to
adequately and consistently evaluate, manage, control, and monitor thekowesli rof

theBDO Unibank* URXS -V DFWLYLWLHV DFuU.&\keditymiadtkeg L11H U H Q
liquidity, interest ratgnd operational risksicludingousiness continuity rigkK, risk,

information securifgybersecurityand datgrivacy riskto optimize the riskeward balance

and maximize return on capital. RMG also has the responsibility for recommending to the
appropriate body, risk policies across the full range of risks to wBiBiOthinibankGroup

is exposed. RMG funatially reports to the RMC.
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The evaluation, analysis, and control performed by the Risk Function, in conjunction with th
Risk Takers, constitute the risk management process. The risk management process is ap
at three levels: the transaction I¢lelbusiness unit level, and the portfolio level. This
framework ensures that risks are properly identified, quantified and analyzed, in the light of
its potential effect on tHB®DO Unibank* UR XS -V EXVLQHVYV 7KH JRDO RI
process isotensure rigorous adherence tadBB® Unibank* URXS -V VWDQGDUGYV
in risk measurement and reporting and to make possd#pthranalysis of the deployment

of capital and the returns that are delivered to the shareholders.

In 2021, lhere is no significant change on the policies and process for managhgride

the methods used to measure the risk of the BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank
except for the performance of the comprehenswewof the financial struments
paricularly foloan accounts, to asseskerallity to thesignificant increase in credit risk in
response to theontinuingmpact of COVID19 pandemjaipdating othe BDO Unibank

* U R XTBeasungystento capture the complex computation @8ed Overnight Financing
Rate(SOFR) in relationto the LIBOR phase ouand adhering tthe protocols set by
International Swaps and Derivatives Aason (ISDA) orLIBOR Reform(see Note 4.6)

4.1 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that there could be insufficient funds available to repay depositors, t
fulfill commitments to lend, or to meet any other liquidity commitments. BDO Unibank
Group manages liquidity risk by holding sufficiantl@ssets of appropriate quality to meet
funding requirements, managel controliquidity gapshrough Maximum Cumulative

Outflow (MCO) limitsregular liquidity stress testiogensure positive cashflow across all
identified stress scenayiasd estaishment of a Liquidity Contingency Plan, to ensure
adequate liquidity under both buskasssual and stress conditions.

The analysis of the maturity groupings of resources, liabilitiestzouk a#ms as of

December 31, 2@ and 2@0in accordance with account classification of the BSP is presentec
in the succeeding pages. The amounts disclosed in the maturity analysis are the contractu
cash flows using the primary contractual maturities or behavioral assumptions on core leve
(eg., core deposit liabilities and core deposit substitutes with maturities within one year hav
been classified in the more than three years category), if the latter is more relevant for purp
of profiling the liquidity gap.
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BDO Unibank Group

21
More
One to Than Three More Than More
Three Months to One Year to Than Three
Months One Year Three Years Years Total
Resources:
Cash and other
cash items P 69,105 P - P - P - P 69,105
Due from BSP and
other banks 150,526 22,027 55,300 147,145 374,998
Trading and investment
securities 22,687 31,904 140,229 421,441 616,261
Loans and other
receivablesnet 503,503 252,927 395,115 1,299,358 2,450,903
Other resourcesnet* - 118 46 112,318 112,482
Total Resources 745,821 306,976 590,690 1,980,262 3,623,749
Liabilities and Equity:
Deposit liabilities 563,666 177,738 595,385 1,484,107 2,820,896
Bills payable 24,278 89,567 55,139 35,447 204,431
Insurance contract
liabilities** 349 ( 613 206 65,386 65,328
Otherliabilities 41,159 4,099 4,601 58,687 108,546
Total Liabilities 629,452 270,791 655,331 1,643,627 3,199,201
Equity - - - 424,548 424,548
Total Liabilities and Equity 629,452 270,791 655,331 2,068,175 3,623,749
On-book gap 116,369 36,185 ( 64.641) ( 87.913 -
Cumulative ofbook gap 116,369 152,554 87,913 - -
Contingent assets 263,000 81,896 20,865 23,227 388,988
Contingent liabilities 325,897 82,924 28,606 23,100 460,527
Off-book gap ( 62,897 ( 1,028 ( 7,741 127 ( 71,539
Net Periodic Gap 53,472 35,157 ( 72,382 ( 87,786 71,539
Cumulative Total Gap P 53,472 P 88,629 P 16,247 (P 71,539 P -

* Other resources include Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment, Investment Properties and Other Resources.
** |[nsurance Contract Liabilities with mattoirétytafinree montbsngeahave negative aging because the renewal premiums (inf
greater than the expected insurance benefit liability.
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BDO Unibank Group

20
More
One to Than Three More Than More
Three Months to One Year to Than Three
Months One Year Three Years Years Total
Resources:
Cash and other
cash items P 74,851 P - P - P - P 74,851
Due from BSP and
other banks 177,536 625 3,147 192,617 373,925
Trading and investment
securities 78,817 20,246 102,007 307,740 508,810
Loans and other
receivablesnet 446,216 249,633 345,380 1,260,752 2,301,981
Otherresourcesnet* - 108 40 115,185 115,333
Total Resources 777,420 270,612 450,574 1,876,294 3,374,900
Liabilities and Equity:
Deposit liabilities 589,956 22,147 30,071 1,967,977 2,610,151
Billspayable 34,050 33,142 112,819 29,733 209,744
Insurance contract
liabilities** 409 443 ( 460 58,018 58,410
Other liabilities 36,785 1,596 1,623 63,570 103,574
Total Liabilities 661,200 57,328 144053 2,119,298 2,981,879
Equity - - - 393,021 393,021
Total Liabilities and Equity 661,200 57,328 144,053 2,512,319 3,374,900
On-book gap 116,220 213,284 306,521 ( 636,025 -
Cumulativen-book gap 116,220 329,504 636,025 - -
Contingent assets 225,816 56,673 26,387 16,559 325,435
Contingent liabilities 279,492 58,342 26,171 16,462 380,467
Off-book gap ( 53,679 ( 1,669 216 97 ( 55,032
Net Periodic Gap 62,544 211,615 306,737 ( 635,928 55,032
Cumulative Total Gap P 62,544 P 274,159 P 580,896 (P 55,033 P -

* Other resources siehedeises, Furniture, Fixtures and Eduv@stemént Properties and Other Resources.
** Insurance Contract Liabilities withemédugtto three mamithsnore thare to three ybarsnegative aging because the renewal
premims (infloasggreater than the expected insurance benefit liability.
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Parent Bank

21
More
One to Than Three More Than More
Three Months to One Year to Than Three
Months One Year Three Years Years Total
Resources:
Cash and other
cash items P 66,440 P - P - P - P 66,440
Due from BSP and
other banks 143,601 21,971 55,296 146,141 367,009
Trading and investment
securities 8,166 27,987 119,732 342,08 497,968
Loans and other
receivables net 494,423 239,634 371,315 1,294,611 2,399,983
Other resourcednet* - - - 13481 13481
Total Resources P 712630 P 289,592 P 546,343 P 191744 P 3,466,006
Liabilities and Equity:
Deposit liabilities 538,429 175,500 595,264 1,442,52 2,751,714
Billspayable 17,687 89,068 52,305 37,114 196,174
Other liabilities 37.139 2,806 2,543 52,18 94.6%
Total Liabilities 593,255 267,374 650,112 1,531,804 3,042,545
Equity - - - 423,46 423.48
Total Liabilities and Equity 593,255 267,374 650,112 1,955.26 3,466,006
On-book gap 119,375 22,218 ( 103,769 ( 37,823 -
Cumulative ofbook gap 119,375 141,593 37.824 - -
Contingent assets 259,638 63,697 2,998 3,022 329,355
Contingent liabilities 322,537 64,872 10,972 3.021 401,402
Off-book gap ( 62,899 ( 1.17% ( 7.973 1 ( 72,047
Net Periodic Gap 56,476 21,043 ( 111,748 ( 37.823 72,047

Cumulative Total Gap P 56,476 P 77,519 (P 34,229 (P 72,047 P -

* Other resources siehedeises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment, Investment Properties and Other Resources.
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Parent Bank

20
More
One to Than Three More Than More
Three Months to One Year to Than Three
Months One Year Three Years Years Total
Resources:
Cash and other
cash items P 72,301 P - P - P - P 72,301
Due from BSP and
other banks 173,187 602 3,137 191,434 368,360
Trading and investment
securities 63,707 14,954 87,606 233,189 399,456
Loans and other
receivablesnet 436,324 238,203 325,923 1,259,236 2,259,686
Other resourcesnet* - - - 135,580 135,580
Total Resources P 745519 P 253,759 P 416,666 P 1,819.439 P 3,235,383
Liabilities and Equity:
Deposit liabilities 569,949 19,984 29,793 1,928,565 2,548,291
Bills payable 25,974 32,629 110,932 33,332 202,867
Other liabilities 33.307 242 - 58,622 92,171
Total Liabilities 629,230 52,855 140,725 2,020,519 2,843,329
Equity - - - 392,054 392,054
Total Liabilities and Equity 629,230 52,855 140,725 2412573 3,235,383
On-book gap 116,289 200,904 275,941 ( 593.13% -
Cumulative ofibook gap 116,289 317,193 593,134 - -
Contingent assets 216,952 54,412 3,278 1,579 276,221
Contingent liabilities 270,656 56,271 3,322 1,605 331,854
Off-book gap ( 53,704 ( 1,859 ( 44 ( 26 ( 55,633
Net Periodic Gap 62,585 199,045 275,897 ( 593,160 55,633

Cumulative Total Gap P 62,585 P 261,630 P 537,527 (P 55,633 P -

* Otheresources includes Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment, Investment Properties and Other Resources.

The negative liquidity gapthe MCO is due to the timing difference in the contractual
maturities ofesourceand liabilities. The MCO measures the maximum funding requirement
theBDO Unibank Groupnay need to support its maturing obligations. To ensure that the
BDO Unibank Groip maintains a prudent and manageable level of cumulative negative gap,
theBDO Unibark Groupmaintains a pool of highly liquid assets in the form of tradable
investment securities. Moreover, the BOD has approved the MCO Limits which reflect the
BDO Unibank GroupY RYHUDOO DSSHWLWH IRU OLTXLGLW\ UL\
year.Compliance to MCO Limits is monitored and reported to the BOD and senior
management.

In case of breach in the MCO Limit, B G elevates the concern to the BOD through the
RMC for corrective actidoy senior managemertdditional measures maitigate liquidity

risks include reporting of funding concentration, séort liquidity reporting, available funding
sources, and liquid assets analyise frequent analysis of projected funding source and
requirements as well as pricing strategiescussed thoroughly during the weekly ALCO
meetings.
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Pursuant to applicable BSP regulation&@& Unibank Groups required to maintain

reserves against deposit liabilities which are based on certain percentages of deposits. The
required reserves against deposit liabilities shall be kept in the form of deposits placed in th
BDO Unibank Grouglemand deposiiccounts with the BSP. The BSP also requirB®te
Unibank Grougo maintain asset cover of 100% for foreign curdgroyminated liabilities of

its FCDU.

4.1.1Liquidity Risk Stress

To augment the effectiveness ofBEO Unibank* UR X S -V JD S eBQMUhibdrinkvy W K
Group regularly assesses liquidity risk based on behavioral and hypothetical assumptions L
stress conditionsSurvivability and resilience of BI2O Unibank Groupare assessed for a
minimum stress period of 30 days for all crisis scenarios enumerated in BSRoC#8(lar
Guidelines on Liquidity Risk Mearag€he results of these liquidity stress simulations are
reported monthly to RC.

4.1.2Foreign Currency Liquidity Management

The liquidity risk management policies and objectives described in this section also apply tc
management of any foreign currency to whicB@Bi@ UnibankGroup maintains significant
exposure. Specifically, Bi2O Unibark Group ensures that its measurement, monitandg
control systems account for these exposures as walDOHgnibankGroup sets and

regularly reviews limits on the size of the cash flow mismatches for each significant individu
currency and iaggregate over appropriate time horizons BDiaeUnibankGroup also

assesses its access to foreign exchange markets when setting up its risk limits.

4.2 Market Risk

%'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:V H[SRVXUH WR PDUNHW ULVN WK
theprice of a financial instrument, relates primarily to its holdings in foreign exchange
instruments, debt securities, equity securities and derivatives. BDO Unibank Group manag
its risk by identifying, analyzing and measuring relevant or likely starkéteMarketand
LiquidityRisk Managemebinit of the Parent Barmecommends market risk limits based on
UHOHYDQW DFWLYLW\ LQGLFDWRUV IRU DSSURYDO E\ ¢

4.2.1Foreign Exchange Risk

BDO Unibank Group manages its exposure to effects of fluctuations in the foreign currency
exchange rates maintaining foreign currency exposure within the existing regulatory
guidelines and at a level that it believes to be relatively conservative for a financial institutio
engaged in that type of business.

%'2 8QLEDQN *URXS: -V QHW IR 6t¢vinpued-bEht&DreélghttuHgreyr V X U
resources less foreign currency liabilities. BSP regulations impose&/capoqufa®ifying

capital or USKS0 million, whichever is lower, @n EDQN-V FRQVROLGDWHG Q
exchange position%'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:-V IRUHLJQ H[FKDQJH HJS
the dayto-day, ovethe-counter buying and selling of foreign exchange in BDO Unibank
*URXS:V EUDQFKHYV Dhange-radingvith t&hbtdte A€okt and other
financial institutions. BDO Unibank Group, being a major market participant in the
Philippine Dealing System, may engage in proprietary trading to take advantage of foreign
exchange fluctuations.

BDO UnibanN *URXS:-V IRUHLJQ H][F Kobdayisl gildesi Rywikelimritdsd! H Q C
IRUWK LQ %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:V 5LVN ODQDJHPHQW 0D
prescribed ceilings mandated by the BSP. At the end of each day, BDO Unibank Group
reports to lhe BSP on its compliance with the mandated foreign currency exposure limits.
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In addition, it also reports to the BSP on the respective foreign currency positions of its
subsidiariesThe breakdown of the financial assets and financial liabilitiésreigtoand
pesedenominated balances as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 follows:

BDO Unibank Group

2021 2020
Foreign Philippine Foreign Philippine
Currencies Pesos Total Currencies Pesos Total
Resources:

Cash and other cash items

and due from BSP P 107 P 373,904 P 374011 P 118 P 383,369 P 383,487
Due from other banks 68,401 1,691 70092 64,877 412 65,289
Trading and investment

securities:

At FVTPL 6,622 41,312 47934 5,701 31,409 37,110

At FVOCI 86,804 83,989 170793 88,748 96,133 184,881

At amortized cost 164,529 233,005 397534 153,492 133,327 286,819
Loans and other receivables 331,327 2,119,576 2,450903 292,865 2,009,116 2,301,981
Other resources 6,214 1,246 7460 8,824 438 9,262

P 664,004 P_28%723 P_3518/27 P 614,625 P 2,654,204 P 3,268,829
Liabilities:

Deposit liabilities P 463,368 P 2,357,528 P 2,820896 P 418,262 P 2,191,889 P 2,610,151
Bills payable 120,920 83,511 204431 126,894 82,850 209,744
Insurance contract liabilities 8,702 56,626 65328 8,376 50,034 58,410
Other liabilities 16,951 80,666 97617 6,850 86,890 93,740

P 609,941 P 2,578,331 P__3,18872 P 560,382 P 2,411,663 P__ 2,972,045

Parent Bank

2021 2020
Foreign Philippine Foreign Philippine
Currencies Pesos Total Currencies Pesos Total
Resources:
Cash and other cash items
and due from BSP P 33 P 369,067 P 369100 P 41 P 377,339 P 377,380
Due from other banks 64,188 161 64349 63,015 266 63,281
Trading and investment
securities:
At FVTPL 2,759 1,857 4616 3,037 1,825 4,862
At FVOCI 74,197 41,768 115965 71,907 55,015 126,922
At amortized cost 159,235 218,147 377382 146,757 120,915 267,672
Loans and other receivables 330,424 2,069,559 2,399983 291,879 1,967,807 2,259,686
Other resources 5,784 968 6.752 8,756 78 8,834
P 63,620 P 2,70,527 P 3,338147 P 585,392 P 2,523,245 P 3,108,637
Liabilities:
Depositliabilities P 450,484 P 2,301,231 P 2,751715 P 401,030 P 2,147,261 P 2,548,291
Bills payable 119,738 76,436 196174 126,711 76,156 202,867
Other liabilities 15,927 69,452 85379 6.188 77,727 83,915

P 586,149 P 2,447,119 P 3,033268 P 533,929 P 2,301,144 P 2,835,073
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4.2 2interest Rate Risk

BDO Unibank Group preparas interest ratgap analysia the Banking Bodlo measure

the sensitivity of its resources, liabilities arobol items to interest rate fluctuatiohbe

Banking Bok is a term foresourceR Q D BEsta@rknYof financial pasit that are

expected to be held to maturity, usually consisting of cusiangetd and deposits from

retail and corporate customefse Banking 8ok can also include those derivatives that are
used to hege exposures arising from the Bankouk Bctivity, includinigterest rate rigk

The focus of analysis is the impact of changes in interest rates on accrual or reported earni
This analysis would give management a glohthserepricing profile of its interest sensitive
resources and liabilitieshe Banking Book

An interest rate gap report is prepared by classifying all resources and liabilities into variou:s
buckets according to contracted maturities d branticipated repricing dates if floating, or
based on behavioral assumptions if more applicable. In the interest rate gap presented, loz
and investments are profiled based on next repricing if floating or contracted maturity if fixe
rate while nomaturity deposit liabilities are considereeratnsensitive. The difference in

the amount of resources and liabilities maturing or being repriced in any time period catego
would then give BDO Unibank Group an indication of the extent to whickpoged to the

risk of potential changes in net interest incdnterest rate financial instruments (e.g., interest
rate derivativgsnay be used to hedge the interest rate exposures in the Banking Book. The
are howeveno outstanding interest rateidatives used as hedges in the Banking Book.

The analyses of the groupings of resources, liabilities-badloitems as of
December 31, 20 and 2@0based on the expected interest realization or recognition are
shownbelow andn the succeeding pages.

BDO Unibank Group

21
More More
One to Than Three  Than One More
Three Months to Year to Than Five Non-rate
Months One Year Five Years Years Sensitive Total
Resources:
Cash and other
cash items P - P - P - P - P 69,105 P 69,105
Due fromBSP and
other banks 41,40 - - - 333,528 374,998
Trading and
investment
securities 8,346 31,238 231,337 297,406 47,934 616,261
Loans and other
receivablesnet 1,140,250 287,117 904,358 119,178 - 2,450,903
Other resourcesnet* - - - - 112,482 112,482
Total Resources 1,190,066 318,355 1,135,695 416,584 563.049 3.623.749
Liabilities and Equity:
Deposit liabilities 328,737 48,785 48,092 13,868 2,381,414 2,820,896
Bills payable 42,137 89,567 72,727 - - 204,431
Insurance contract
liabilities** ( 369 ( 1,322 1,038 39,713 26,263 65,328
Other liabilities - 33 438 4 108,071 108,546
Total Liabilities 370,510 137,063 122,295 53,585 2,515,748 3,199,201
Equity - - - - 424,548 424,548

Total Liabilities and Eqyit
(Balance carrried forwar® 370,510 P__ 137,063 P_ 122295 P 53,585 P 2,940,296 P 3,623,749

* Other resources includes Premise&&uragued Equipment, Investment Properties and Other Resources.
** Insurance Contract Liabilitiesatitiieof one to three mamthsiore than three months thawve yegative aging because the
renewal premiums (inflow) are greater than the expectdilmiltyrance benefit
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BDO Unibank Group

202
More More
One to Than Three Than One More
Three Months to Year to Than Five Non-rate
Months One Year Five Years Years Sensitive Total
Total Liabilities and Equity
(Balance brought forwar® 370,510 P__ 137,063 P 122,295 P__ 53,585 P_ 2,940,296 P 3,623,749
On-book gap 819,556 181,292 1,013,400 362,999 (__ 2,377,247 -
Cumulative ofvook gap 819,556 1.000.848 _ 2,014,248 2.377.247 - -
Contingent assets 7,583 4,151 - - - 11,734
Contingent liabilities 2,523 4,164 - - - 6,687
Off-book gap 5,060 ( 13 - - - 5,047
Net Periodic Gap 824,616 181,279 1,013,400 362,999 (_ 2,377.24% ( 5,047
Cumulative Total Gap P__ 824,616 P 1,05,895 P2,019,295 P 2,382,294 P 5047 P -
20
More More
One to Than Three Than One More
Three Months to Year to Than Five Non-rate
Months One Year _Five Years Years Sensitive Total
Resources:
Cash and other
cash items P - P - P - P - P 74851 P 74,851
Due from BSP and
other banks 76,419 - - - 297,506 373,925
Trading and
investment
securities 66,844 19,653 243,498 141,705 37,110 508,810
Loans and other
receivablesnet 1,03%420 267692 821195 179674 - 2,301,981
Other resourcesnet* - - - - 115,333 115,333
Total Resources 1,176,683 287,345 1,064,693 321,379 524,800 3,374,900
Liabilities and Equity:
Depositliabilities 379,153 45,248 59,749 13,294 2,112,707 2,610,151
Billspayable 38,852 30,744 117,622 22,526 - 209,744
Insurance contract
liabilities** ( 180 21 605 39,976 17,988 58,410
Other liabilities - 17 112 3 103,442 103,574
Total Liabilities 417,825 76,030 178,088 75,799 2,234,137 2,981,879
Equity - - - - 393,021 393,021
TotalLiabilities and Equit
(Balance carried forwardp__ 417,825 P 76,030 P 178,088 P__ 75799 P 2,627,158 P_ 3,374,900

* Other resources includes Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment, Investment Properties and Other Resources.
** Insurance Contract Liabilities with maturity of one to three months have negative aging becausarthgresatewtdigréngums
expected insurance benefit liability.
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BDO Unibank Group

20
More More
One to Than Three Than One More
Three Months to Year to Than Five Non-rate
Months One Year Five Years Years Sensitive Total

Total Liabilities anBquity
(Balacebrougfibrward) P 417,825 P 76,030 P 178,088 P 75799 P 2,627,158 P 3,374,900

On-book gap 758,858 211,315 886.605 245580 (__ 2,102,358 -
Cumulative ofvook gap 758,858 970,173 1,856,778 2,102,358 - -
Contingent assets 3,434 1,637 - - - 5,071
Contingent liabilities 9,605 3.362 - - - 12,967
Off-book gap ( 6.173 ( 1,725 - - - ( 7,896
Net Periodic Gap 752,687 209,590 886,605 245,580 (__ 2,102,358 7,896

Cumulative Total Gap P__ 752,687 P_ 962,277 P1,848,882 P 2,094,462 (P 789 P -

Parent Bank

21
More More
One to Than Three  Than One More
Three Months to Year to Than Five Non-rate
Months One Year Five Years Years Sensitive Total
Resources:
Cash and other
cashitems P - P - P - P - P 66,440 P 66,440
Due from BSP and
other banks 40,800 - - - 326,209 367,009
Trading and
investment
securities 6,023 27,987 202,032 257,306 4,66 497,968
Loans and other
receivablesnet 1,133,066 279,191 868,587 119,139 - 2,399,983
Other resourcesnet* - - - - 134,61 134,61
Total Resources 1,179,889 307,178 1,070,619 376,445 531.8% 3,466,008
Liabilities and Equity:
Deposit liabilities 312,535 44,502 47,101 18,239 2,329,38 2,751,714
Billspayable 35,546 89,068 71,560 - - 196,174
Other liabilities - - - - 94.6% 94.6%
Total Liabilities 348,081 133,570 118,661 18,239 2,423,994 3,042,545
Equity - - - - 423,48 423,48
Total Liabilities and Eqyit 348,081 133,570 118,661 18,239 2.847.45 3.466.06
On-book gap 831,808 173,608 951,958 358,206 (__ 2,315,580 -
Cumulative ofvook gap 831,808 1,005.416 _ 1,957,374 2,315,580 - -
Contingent assets 5,231 2,634 - - - 7,865
Contingent liabilities 131 2,634 - - - 2,765
Off-book gap 5,100 - - - - 5,100
Net Periodic Gap 836.908 173,608 951,958 358,206 (__ 2,315,580 ( 5.100

Cumulative Total Gap P_ 836,908 P 1,010,516 P1,962,474 P 2,320,680 P 5100 P -

* Other resources include Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment, Investmas®uopesties and Other
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Parent Bank

20
More More
One to Than Three Than One More
Three Months to Year to Than Five Non-rate
Months One Year _Five Years Years Sensitive Total
Resources:
Cash and other
cash items P - P - P - P - P 72,301 P 72,301
Due from BSP and
other banks 76,050 - - - 292,310 368,360
Trading and
investment
securities 60,618 14,954 213,307 105,715 4,862 399,456
Loans and other
receivablesnet 1025,361 261,052 792,783 180,490 - 2,259,686
Other resourcesnet* - - - - 135,580 135,580
Total Resources 1,162,029 276,006 1,006,090 286,205 505,053 3,235,383
Liabilities and Equity:
Deposit liabilities 363,719 40,255 59,014 17,297 2,068,006 2,548,291
Billspayable 30,776 30,232 115,735 26,124 - 202,867
Other liabilities - - - - 92,171 92,171
Total Liabilities 394,495 70,487 174,749 43,421 2,160,177 2,843,329
Equity - - - - 392,054 392,054
Total Liabilities and Equity 394,495 70,487 174,749 43,421 2,552,231 _ 3,235,383
On-book gap 767,534 205,519 831,341 242,784 (__ 2,047.178 -
Cumulative ofbook gap 767,534 973,053 1,804,394 2,047,178 - -
Contingent assets 1 1,146 - - - 1,147
Contingent liabilities 6,244 2,881 - - - 9,125
Off-book gap ( 6.243 ( 1,73% - - - ( 7,979
Net Periodic Gap 761,291 203,784 831,341 242,784 (__ 2,047,178 7,978
Cumulative Total Gap P__761,291 P 965,075 P1,796,416 P 2,039,200 (P 7979 P -

* Other resources include Famitses, Fixtures and Equipment, Investment Properties and Other Resources.

7KH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS DQG WKH 3DUHQW %DQN:-V PDL
categorized as limits on:

x Valueatrisk (VaR)2 The RMG computes the VéRnchmarked at a level, which is a
percentage of projected earnings. The BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank use tt
VaR model to estimate the daily potential loss that the BDO Unibank Group and the
Parent Bank can incur from its trading book, basadaomber of assumptions with a
confidence level of 99%. The measurement is designed such that exceptions over limit:
should only arise in very exceptional circumstances.

x Stop loss? The RMG sets the amount of each-bislaring activity at a percentaginef
budgeted annual income for such activity.

X Nominal position?2 The RMG sets the nominal amount to preventtoading, excessive
concentration, and to limit financial loss supplementing other established limits.
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x Trading volume The RMG sets the wohe of transactions that any employee may
execute at various levels based on the rank of the personnel makingaagmisk
decision.

x Earningsatrisk (EAR) 2The RMG computes tHeAR based on the repricing profile of
the Banking Book and benchmarks against projected annual net interest income and
capital.

9D5 LV RQH RI WKH NH\ PHDVXUHYV LQ %'2 8QLEDQN *UR
market risk.VaR is defined as a statisesimate of the maximum possible loss on a given
position during a time horizon within a given confidence interval. The BDO WBiibapk

and the Parent Bank use a 99% confidence level anday 26@ervation period in VaR
calculation. The BDO UnibatkURXS DQG WKH 3DUHQW %DQN:V 9D5
percentage of projected earnings and is used to alert senior management whenever the
SRWHQWLDO ORVVHV LQ WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS DQG
levels. Because tfi@aR measure is tied to market volatility, it therefore allows management t
react quickly and adjust its portfolio strategies in different market conditions in accordance
with its risk philosophy and appetite. The VaR model is validated throttgisthgck

Although VaR is an important tool for measuring market risk, the assumptions on which the
model is based do give rise to some limitations, including the following:

X A oneday holding period assumes that it is possible to hedge or dispose of positions
within that period. This is considered to be a realistic assumption in almost all cases bu
may not be the case in situations in which there is severe market illiquidity for a prolong
period;

x A 99% confidence level does not reflect losses that mapegmod this level. Even
within the model used, there is a one percent probability that losses could exceed the V

X VaR is calculated on an @felay basis and does not reflect exposures that may arise on
positions during the trading day;

x The use ohistorical data as a basis for determining the possible range of future outcome
may not always cover all possible scenarios, especially those of an exceptional nature;

X The VaR measure is dependent upon the BDO Unibank Group and theRBxénhiN - V
position and the volatility of market prices. The VaR of an unchanged position reduces
the market price volatility declines andwacsa.

The limitations of the VaR methodology are recognized by supplementing VaR limits

with other positionrad sensitivity limit structures, including limits to address potential
concentration risks within each trading portfolio. In additioBDeUnibank Group and
theParent Bank use a wide range of stress tests to model the financial impact of a variety o
exceptional market scenarios on individual trading portfolios &iQ@hdnibank Group
andthe 3B DUHQW %DQN:-V RYHUDOO SRVLWLRQ 6WUHVYV 9D
complementary measure of risk. While VaR deals with risk during tioresabfy, stress

testing is used to measure the potential effect of a crisis or low probability event.



-59-

A summary of the VaR position of the trading portfolios at December 31 follows:

221 220
VaR Stress VaR VaR Stress VaR

BDO Unibank Group

Foreign currency risk P 8) (P 103 (P 30 (P 480
Interest rate risk Peso ( 53 ( 889 ( 85) ( 1,083
Interest rate risk USD ( 13 ( 359 ( 46) ( 581)

(P 74 (P___1,350 (P 16) P___ 2,143

Parent Bank

Foreign currency risk (P 4 (P 56 (P 30 (P 479
Interest rate risk Peso ( 15 ( 252 ( 33)( 31)
Interest rate risk USD ( 2 ( 36 ( 27 ( 373

(B 20 (P 344 (P 90 (P___ 1,155

For theBDO UnibankGroup, the earnings perspective using an EAR approach is the more
UHOHYDQW PHDVXUH IRU WKH LQWHUHVW-RPQWHUQYNYV
assumption and also because the component of earnings in focuerestenicdme.

EARis a measure of likely earnings volatility for accrual portfolios. The appropriate yield cL
used is the relevant benchmark rate and the volatilities of the relevant benchmark interest r
curve are calculated saniio the methodmployed for VR. The volatility calculations make

use of actual prdefined time series data, usingfitekDUV - ZRUWK RI \HDUO\ FK
99% confidence level. The frequency of measurement for EAR is ntoARI$iress Test

uses 300asis poirgtincrease in Ubinteresrates and 40fasis pointgicrease in Peso
interestrates.

TheEAR before tax in a rising and declining interest rate scenario for financial assets and
liabilitiesrepriced during 20 and 2@0is shown belownd in the succeied page

BDO Unibank Group

21
Change in Interest Rates (in basis points)
-100 +100 -50 +50

Change on annualized

net interest income (P__833) P 8331(P__416% P 4,165
As a percentage of the BDO

Unibank* URXS -V QHW

interest income for 2021 ( 6.34% 6.34% ( 3.17% 3.17%

EAR P 24347

As a percentage of the BDO
BQLEDQN &t RXS -V
interest income for 2021 18.54%

Average (1yr) EAR P 24,391

Stres€AR P_ 31,984
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BDO UnibankGroup

20
Change in Interest Rates (in basis points)
-100 +100 -50 +50

Change on annualized

net interest income P_ 7933 P 7933 (P__ 3,966 P 3,966
As a percentage of the BDO

B8QLEDQN *URXS:-V QHW

interest income for 2020 ( 5.93% 5.93% ( 2.97% 2.97%

EAR P 23,844

As a percentage of the BDO
SBQLEDQN nfdd RXS -V

interest income for 2020 17.83%
Average (1yr) EAR P 18,468
Stres€AR P 31,236

Parent Bank
21
Change in Interest Rates (in basis points)
-100 +100 -50 +50

Change on annualized

net interest income (P__8,404 P 8404(P__4,202 P 4,202
As a percentage of the Parent

%DQN-V QHW LQWHUHVW

income for 2021 ( 6.79% 6.79% ( 3.39% 3.39%

EAR P 24,735

As a percentage of the Parent
% D Qnbt iMerest

income for 2021 19.97%
Average (1yr) EAR P__ 24,627
Stres€AR P 32,233
220
Change in Interest Rates (in basis points)
-100 +100 -50 +50

Change on annualized

net interest income (P__8,089 P 8089(P__ 4,043 P 4,044
As a percentage of the Parent

%DQN-V QHW LQWHUHVW

income for 2020 ( 6.35% 6.35% ( 3.18% 3.18%

EAR P 24,494
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Parent Bank

2P0
Change in Interest Rates (in basis points)
-100 +100 -50 +50

As a percentage of the Parent
% D Qnbst iterest

income for 2020 19.24%
Average (1yr) EAR P 18,938
Stres€AR P 31,466

4.2.3Price Risk

The BDO UnibanlGroup and the Parent Baaleexposed to equity securities price risk
because of investments in equity securities held by BDO Unibank Group and Parent Bank
classified on the statement of financial positioerets financial assets at FVvOQinancial
assets at FVTPL. The BDO Unibank Group and the ParentaBsntk exposed to

commodity price risk. To manage its price risk arising from investments in listed equity
securities, BDO Unibank Groumintaingdiversifiel portfolio. Diversification of th

portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by BDO Unibank Group.

The tabldbelowsummarizes the impact of equity prices on listed equity sedassified as
financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets at FV@TIO UnibankGroup and Brent
%DQN-V QHW S UdBquity\asidi Beeethbey BIRPAMG 2Q0. The results are based

on the volatility assumption of the benchmark eiqadigx, which wa&52%6 and9.726 in 21

and 2@Q, respectivelyor securities classifiedfimancial assets at FVTPL and FV@&durities
with all other variables held constant and all the BDO Unibdik XS DQG WKH 3DUFL
equity instruments moved according to the historical correlation with the index

Impact on Impact on Other
Net Profit After Tax Comprehensive Income
Increase Increase
21 20 201 2021 2020 2019
BDO Unibank Group
Financial assets at
FVTPL P 806 P 1,554 P 335 P - P - P
Financial assets at
FVOCI - - - 148 350 203

P 806 P 1554 P 335 P 148 P 350 P 203

Parent Bank

Financial assets at
FVOCI P - P - P - P 30 P 291 P 48

P .- P .- P - P 30 P 291 P 48




-62-

4.3 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty in a transaction may default and arises from
lending, trade finance, treasury, derivatives and other activities undertaken by the BDO
Unibank Group. RMG undertakes several functions with respect to credihagiement
including credit analysis, risk ratings for corporate accounts, and development and
performance monitoring of credit risk rating and scoring models for both corporate and
FRQVXPHU ORDQV ,W DOVR HQVXUHV WddpbceaduPesB QL EL
are adequate to meet the demands of the business.

RMG also subjects the loan portfolio to a regular portfolio quality review, credit portfolio
stress testing and rapid portfolio reviews based on specific and potential events fihett may ai
borrowers in particular geographic locations or industries.

BDO Unibank Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the
amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers. Such risks are
monitored on a regular basis and subject to an annual or mord feageenApproval for

credit limits are secured from the Credit Comeni@m the industry segments, set limits and
exposures are monitored angbréed to the RMC

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of mrdowers
potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing the
lending limits when appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtainin
collateral or corporate and personal guarantees.

4.3.1Credit Risk Assessment

/IRDQ FODVVLILFDWLRQ DQG FUHGLW ULVN UDWLQJ DUF
management of credit risk. On an annual basis, loans are reviewed, classified as necessar
and rated based on internal and external factors tbaitafferformance. On a monthly

basis, loan classifications of impaired accounts are assessed and the results are used as b
for the review of loan loss provisions.

%'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:V GHILQLWLRQ RI LWV ORERQ FODV\
ratings are as follows:

x Current : Grades AAAto B
X Watchlisted : Grade B
x Especially Mentioned X Grade C
X Substandard : Grade D
X Doubtful : Grade E
X Loss : Grade F

Once an account is Watchlisted or Adversely Classifisskuhiag risk rating grade is
aligned based on the above classification.
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(a) Current

These are individual credits that do not have a greataormal risk and do not possess

the characteristics of adversely classified loans. These are crediesthimaapparent

ability to satisfy their obligations in full and therefore, no loss in ultimate collection is
anticipated. These are adequately secured by readily marketable collateral or other forr
of support security or are supported by sufficient eredlifinancial information of

favorable nature to assure repayment as agreed.

(b) Watchlisted

Since early identification of troublesome or potential accounts is vital in portfolio
PDQDJHPHQW D ":DWFKOLVWHGHU FODained. MheeeWLRQ R
accounts are not adversely classified but they require more than normal attention to
prevent these accounts from deteriorating to said category.

Past due or individually impaired financial assets comprise accounts under the following ris

ratings:

(c) Adversely Classified

(i)

Especially Mentioned (EM)

It is an adverse classification of loans/accounts that have potential weaknesses
DQG GHVHUYHVY PDQDJHPHQW:-V FORVH DWWHQWLR
uncorrected, may affect the repayment of the loan and thus increase credit risk to
BDO UnibankGroup.

(i) Substandard

(iii)

(iv)

$FFRXQWYVY FODVVLILHG DV "6XEVWDQGDUGU DUH L
have weltlefined weakness/(es) that may jeopardize repayment/liquidation in full,
either in respect of the business, cash flow or financiedrpagitich may include
adverse trends or developments that affect willingness or repayment ability of the
borrower.

Doubtful

$FFRXQWYV FODVVLILHG DV ""RXEWIXOu DUH LQGLY
more severe weaknessee t#aK RVH FODVVLILHG DV "6 XEVWDQC
the basis of currently known facts, conditions and values make collection or liquidati
highly improbable, however, the exact amount remains undeterminable as yet.
&ODVVLILFDW L Re@edbécause Bh\spedifi¢ péniding factors, which may
strengthen the assets.

Loss

$FFRXQWYV FODVVLILHG DV "/RVVU DUH LQGLYLGXD
considered uncollectible or worthless, and of such little value that their cordasuance
bankable assets are not warranted although the loans may have some recovery or
salvage value.

This shall be viewed as a transitional category for loans and other credit
accommodations, which have been identified as requirirgffrditeng the
current reporting period even though partial recovery may be obtained in the future.
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*URXS:V PDQDJHPHQW RI

credit ratings.

4.3.2Credit Quality Analysis

The following table sets out information about the credit qudbansfand other receivables,
financial assets measured at amortizechndsty OCI debt investments. Unless specifically
indicatedor financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross carrying &mounts
loan commitments and other contingent accptisamounts in the table represent the amoun
committed.As of December 31, 2@ and 2@Q, there are n®OCl financial assets in both BDO

Unibank Group and Parent Barfinancial statements.

The following table shows the exposure titariek as of December 3122@nd 2@0for
each internal risk grade and the related allowarg@Lfor

BDO Unibank Group

FUHGLW ULVN

7 K L ostidppidyd L V
review of individual credits whose main objective is to help monitor and maintain sound anc
healthy risk asset portfolio. Parameters of the credit portfolio review are structured so as tc
reflect both sides of the risk management equatioaswacedit quality and process. This

function actuates the philosophy that credit quality is derived from sound risk management
process. The credit quality of financial assets is managed by BDO Unibank Group using in

Receivables from customerscorporate

Grades AAAto B:
Grade B :
Grade C
Grade D
Grade E
Grade F

ECL allowance

Carrying amount

. EM

Receivables from customersconsumer

Grades AAAto B :
Grade B
Grade C
Grade D
Grade E
Grade F

ECL allowance
Carrying amount

Other receivables
Grades AAAtOB :
Grade C
Grade D
Grade E
Grade F

ECL allowance

. EM

. EM

21

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Current P 1,733,845 P - P P 1733,845
. Watchlisted 106 30,835 502 31,443
5 81,131 2,009 83,145
: Substandard 4,403 7,059 11,462
. Doubtful 5,578 5,578
. Loss - - 3,882 3,882
1,733,956 116,369 19,030 1869,355
( 7.513 ( 17,209 ( 13,237 ( 37,95%
P 1726,443 P 99,164 P 5,793 P 1831,400
Current P 473,747 P P 160 P 473,907
: Watchlisted 9 181 62 252
1,506 107 1,613
: Substandard 1,356 8,078 9434
. Doubtful 16,658 16,658
. Loss - 28,974 28,974
473,756 3,043 54,039 530,838
( 5,553 ( 509 ( 21,248 ( 27,304
P 468,202 P 2539 P 32,793 P 503,534
Current P 114,790 P 22 P 238 P 115,050
- 41 41
: Substandard 503 407 258 1168
. Doubtful 16 249 265
. Loss - 1,29 1,29
115,309 470 2674 118,453
( 79 ( 77 ( 2328 ( 2484
P 115,230 P 3B P 46 P 15,969

Carrying amount
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BDO Unibank Group

2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Debt investment securities at
amortized cost
Grades AAAto B: Current P 397,595 P - P - P 397,595
Grade E . Doubtful - - 1146 1146
Grade F . Loss - - 264 264
397,595 - 1410 399,005
ECL allowance ( 61 - ( 1410 ( 147))
Carrying amount P 397,534 P - P - P 397,84
Debt investment securities at FVOCI
Grades AAAto B: Current P 165,461 P - P - P 165,461
Loan commitments and other
contingent accounts
Grades AAAto B: Current P 112,403 P - P - P 112,403
Grade B : Watchlisted - 461 - 461
Grade C . EM - 42 - 42
112,403 503 - 112,906
ECL allowance ( 289 - - ( 289)
Carrying amount P 11214 P 503 P - P 112,67
2@0
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Receivables fropustomers corporate
Grades AAAto B: Current P 1,557,559 P - P - P 1,557,559
Grade B : Watchlisted 38 63,088 1,420 64,546
Grade C . EM 99 95,710 2,611 98,420
Grade D : Substandard - 4,414 1,435 5,849
Grade E . Doubtful - - 4,769 4,769
Grade F . Loss - - 4,795 4,795
1,557,696 163,212 15,030 1,735,938
ECL allowance ( 6,253 ( 11,699 ( 10,056 ( 28,009
Carrying amount P 1,551,442 P 151,513 P 4974 P 1,707,929
Receivables from customee®nsumer
Grades AAAto B: Current P 475,080 P - P - P 475,080
Grade B : Watchlisted 9 406 118 533
Grade C . EM 1 3,681 128 3,810
Grade D : Substandard - 3,062 6,084 9,146
Grade E . Doubtful - - 22,699 22,699
Grade F . Loss - - 16,496 16,496
475,090 7,149 45,525 527,764
ECL allowance ( 7,795 ( 997 ( 19,619 ( 28,41)
Carrying amount P 467,295 P 6,152 P 25,906 P 499,353
Other receivables
Grades AAAto B: Current P 93,453 P 37 P - P 93,490
Grade B : Watchlisted - - 78 78
Grade C . EM 1 - - 1
Grade D . Substandard 501 414 355 1,270
Grade E : Doubtful 17 - 303 320
Grade F . Loss 51 - 1,920 1,971
94,023 451 2,656 97,130
ECL allowance ( 157 ( 18) ( 2,262 ( 2,43)

Carrying amount P 93,872 P 433 P 394 P 94,699
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BDO Unibank Group

220
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Debt investment securities at
amortized cost
Grades AAAto B: Current P 287,067 P - P - P 287,067
Grade E . Doubtful - - 1,079 1,079
Grade F . Loss - - 263 263
287,067 - 1,342 288,409
ECL allowance ( 248 - ( 1,349 ( 1,590
Carrying amount P 286,819 P - P - P 286,819
Debt investment securities at FVOCI
Grades AAAto B: Current P 174,559 P - P - P 174,559
Loan commitments and other
contingent accounts
Grades AAAto B: Current P 96,509 P - P - P 96,509
Grade B : Watchlisted - 145 - 145
Grade E . Doubtful - - 16 16
96,509 145 16 96,670
ECL allowance ( 319 ( 3) - ( 319
Carrying amount P 96,195 P 142 P 16 P 96,353

The tabldbelowsets out the credit quality of trading debt securitibe BDO Unibank
Groupmeasured at FVTRkee Notd 0.1).

221 220
Grade:

AAA P 4449 P 4,030
AA+ to AA 330 107
A+ to A- 371 706
BBB+ to BBB 4440 4,152
BB+ to BB 516 185

P 10166 P 9,180

The tabldelowshows an analysis of counterparty ceggibsures arising from derivative
transactionsf theBDO Unibank Group Outstanding derivative exposures to counterparties
are generally to investment grade counterparty banks. Derivative transactionbavith non

counterparties are on a fully secbeeis.
Over-the-counter

Central Other Bilateral
Total Exchangetraded Counterparties Collateralized
Notional Fair Notional Fair Notional Fair Notional Fair
Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value
2@1
Derivative assés P 190129 P 6,232 P 131 P 1 P 163556 P 2468 P 26442 P 3,763
Derivative liabilities 201482 5742 1,792 - 171809 2,462 27,881 3,280
20
Derivative assets P 169,313 P 4,468 P 186 P - P 143,909 P 1,769 P 25,218 P 2,699
Derivative liabilities 177,735 4,129 186 - 154,158 2,001 23,391 2,128

As of December 31021 and 2@0, the BDOUnibank Group held Cash and Other Cash Items,
Due from Other Banks and Due from B8Rling toP444103andP448,776respectively.

The financial assets are held with the BSP and financial institution counterparties that are r:
at least BBBo AAA+, based omxternal rating agencies



Parent Bank

Receivables from customerscorporate

Grades AAAto B: Current
Grade B : Watchlisted
Grade C EM

Grade D Substandard
Grade E Doubtful
Grade F Loss

ECL allowance

Carrying amount

Receivables from customersconsumer

Grades AAAto B: Current
Grade B : Watchlisted
Grade C EM
Grade D Substandard
Grade E Doubtful
Grade F Loss
ECL allowance
Carrying amount

Other receivables
Grades AAAto B: Current
GradeD . Substandard
GradeE Doubtful
GradeF Loss

ECL allowance

Carrying amount

Debt investment securities at

amortized st

Grades AAAto B: Current
Grade E Doubtful
Grade F Loss

ECL allowance

Carrying amount
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Debt investment securities at FVOCI
Grades AAAto B: Current

Loan commitments and other
contingent accounts
Grades AAAto B: Current
Grade B Watchlisted
Grade C EM
ECL allowance

Carrying amount

221
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

P 1728,038 P - P - P 1,728,038
- 30,830 502 31,332

- 81,131 2,009 83,140
- 4,03 7,059 11,462

- - 5,578 5,578

- - 3,878 3,878
1,728,038 116,364 19,026 1863,48

( 7477 ( 17,204 ( 13,233 ( 37,914
P 1720,561 P 99,160 P 5,793 P 1825,514
P 438,721 P - P - P 438,721
- 181 62 243

- 1,468 47 1,515

- 1094 8,013 9,107

- - 11,677 11,677

- - 26,860 26,860
438,721 2,743 46,659 488,123

( 5,192 ( 413 ( 19,752 ( 25,360
P 433,527 P 2,329 P 26,907 P 462,763
P 110,798 P - P - P 110,798
502 406 251 1,159

- - 211 211

- - 1,56 1856
111,300 406 2318 114,024

( 37 ( 77 ( 2,20 ( 2319
P 111,269 P 329 P 108 P 111,706
P 377427 P - P - P 377427
- - 1146 1,146

- - 264 264
377427 - 1410 378837

45 - ( 1410 ( 1455

P 377382 P - P - P 377382
P 14095 P - P - P 114,005
P 112,403 P - P - P 112,403
- 461 - 461

- 42 - 42
112,403 503 - 112,06

289) - - ( 289)

P 112,14 P 503 P - P 1P 617
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Parent Bank

2@0
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Receivables from customecsrporate
Grades AAAto B: Current P 1,554,068 P - P - P 1,554,068
Grade B . Watchlisted - 62,906 1,419 64,325
Grade C . EM - 95,710 2,611 98,321
Grade D . Substandard - 4,414 1,435 5,849
Grade E . Doubtful - - 4,769 4,769
Grade F . Loss - - 4,793 4,793
1,554,068 163,030 15,027 1,732,125
ECL allowance ( 6,200 ( 11,699 ( 10,053 ( 27,952
Carrying amount P 1,547,868 P 151,331 P 4,974 P 1,704,173
Receivables from customec®nsumer
Grades AAAto B: Current P 446,247 P - P - P 446,247
Grade B : Watchlisted - 406 4 410
Grade C . EM - 3,063 58 3,121
Grade D : Substandard - 1,121 5,714 6,835
Grade E . Doubtful - - 21,525 21,525
Grade F . Loss - - 14,232 14,232
446,247 4,590 41,533 492,370
ECL allowance ( 7,559 ( 677 ( 17,808 ( 26,037
Carrying amount P 438,689 P 3,919 P 23,725 P 466,333
Other receivables
Grades AAAto B: Current P 88,062 P - P - P 88,062
Grade D . Substandard 494 413 352 1,259
Grade E . Doubtful - - 291 291
Grade F . Loss - - 1,853 1,853
88,556 413 2,496 91,465
ECL allowance ( 62 ( 19 ( 2,209 ( 2.285
Carrying amount P 88,494 P 394 P 292 P 89,180
Debt investment securities at
amortized cost
Grades AAAto B: Current P 267,901 P - P - P 267,901
Grade E . Doubtful - - 1,079 1,079
Grade F . Loss - - 263 263
267,901 - 1,342 269,243
ECL allowance ( 229 - ( 1,349 ( 1,57)
Carrying amount P 267,672 P - P - P 267,672
Debt investment securities at FVOCI
Grades AAAto B: Current P 121,848 P - P - P 121,848
Loan commitments and other
contingent accounts
Grades AAAto B: Current P 96,509 P - P - P 96,509
Grade B : Watchlisted - 145 - 145
Grade E . Doubtful - - 16 16
96,509 145 16 96,670
ECL allowance ( 319 ( 3) - ( 319

Carrying amount P 96,195 P 142 P 16 P 96,353
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Thetablebelowsets out the credit quality of trading debt securdtibe Parent Bank
measured at FVTRkee Notd 01).

221 220
Grade:
AAA P 1756 P 1,707
AA+ to AA 5 2
BBB+ to BBB- 169 1,327
BB+ to BB 216 56
P 2146 P 3,092

Thetable belovehows an analysis of counterparty credit exposures arising from derivative
transactions. Derivative transactions of the Parent Bank are generally fully collateralized by

Qver-the-counter

Central Other Bilateral
Total Exchangetraded Counterparties Collateralized
Notional Fair Notional Fair Notional Fair Notional Fair
Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value
2@1
Derivative assets P 163687 P 2469 P 131 P - P 163556 P 2469 P - P
Derivative liabilities 171940 2462 131 - 171809 2462
2@0
Derivative assets P 144,095 P 1,769 P 186 P - P 143,909 P 1,769 P - P
Derivative liabilities 154,345 2,001 186 - 154,159 2,001

Asof December 31, 20 and 2@0, the Parent Bank held Cash and Other Cash Items, Due
from Other Bankand Due from BSP taling toP433449andP440,661respectively. The
financial assets are held with the BSP and financial institution counterparties that are rated
least BBB to AAA+, based emternalatingagencies
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4.3.3Concentrations of Credit Risk

The BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank monitor concentrations of credit risk by
sector and by geographic location. An analysis of concentrations of credit risk
(gross of allowance) at the reporting date is dtwlawwvand in the succeeding page

BDO Unibank Group

21 20
Receivables  Trading and Receivables  Trading and
Cash and Cash from Investment  Cash and Cash from Investment
Equivalents* _Customers** Securities Equivalents* _ Customers** Securities

Concentration by sector:

Financial and

insurance activities P 547,827 P 397,823 P 438014 P 531,246 P 335,487 P 355,937
Activities of private

household as

employers and

undifferentiated goods

and services and

producing activities

of households

for own use - 356,129 - - 315,727 -
Real estate activities - 307048 21656 9 308,681 20,856
Wholesale and retail

trade - 282,446 953 - 271,485 863
Electricity, gas, steam

and airconditioning

supply - 282036 23345 4 265,210 24,195
Manufacturing - 206445 14198 - 195,586 12,482
Transportation and

storage - 88,043 4,190 1 92,578 4,411
Arts, entertainment and

recreation - 77010 715 - 77,734 -
Construction - 68951 102 - 69,067 1,050
Information and

communication - 42,845 5962 - 34,477 2,306
Accommodation and

food service activities - 39937 - - 39,699 4,097
Education - 37,199 - - 32,296 -
Human health and social

work activities - 30653 901 - 29,859 853
Water supply, sewerage

waste managemeantd

remediatioractivities - 26912 148 - 24,017 -
Agriculture, forestry and

fishing - 15,266 - - 15,a1 -
Mining and quarrying - 10175 1279 - 16,172 1,089
Professional, scientific

and technical services - 9,642 975 - 10,255 946
Administrative and

support services - 7,592 1,262 - 8,237 -

Public administrative and

defense; compulsory

social security - 693 2629 - 723 2,524
Activities ofextraterritorial

andorganizations and

bodies - - - - 5 -
Other service activities 54 113348 64475 122 121,396 44,843

P 547,881 P 2,400,193 P 580804 P 531,382 P 2,263,702 P 476,452

Concentration by location:
Philippines P 400581 P 2261065 P 486987 P 409,805 P 2,137,037 P 381,831
Foreign countries 147300 139128 93817 121,577 126.665 94,621

P 547881 P 240Q193 P 58Q804 P 531,382 P 2,263,702 P 476,452

* Cash and cash equivalents include cash and other cash items, due frone\BSstangwitiesadeaagBE@NEntsertain interbank loans receivat
andnvestment securities at amo(tized\wist2.5).
**Receivables frawnoers are reported as gross of allowance but net of unearned interests or discounts.
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Parent Bank

21 20
Receivables  Trading and Receivables  Trading and
Cash and Cash from Investment  Cash an€ash from Investment
Equivalents* _Customers** Securities Equivalents* _ Customers** Securities

Concentration by sector:

Financial and
insurance activities P 535932 P 397733 P 414478 P 520,663 P 334,720 P 320,309
Electricity, gas, steam and

airconditioning supply - 281990 21731 4 265,067 22,842
Real estate activities - 308053 16953 4 310,133 15,245
Transportation and

storage - 88607 3,630 1 93,701 3,694
Wholesale anetail

traded - 278173 953 - 268,590 863

Activities of private
household as
employers and
undifferentiated goods
and services and
producingactivities
of households

for own use - 347713 - - 307,500 -
Manufacturing - 205679 12891 - 195,035 10,855
Arts, entertainment and

recreation - 76004 715 - 76,699 -
Construction - 68,108 102 - 68,752 1,050

Accommodation and

food service activities - 39688 - - 39,484 4,097
Information and

communication - 42634 3,802 - 34,276 324
Human health and social

work activities - 30392 901 - 29,693 853
Water supply, sewerage

waste management and

remediatioractivities - 26870 148 - 24,014 -
Mining and quarrying - 19122 1279 - 16,150 1,089
Agriculture, forestry and

fishing - 14600 - - 14,368 -
Professional, scientific

and technical services - 9,601 975 - 10,241 946
Administrative and

support services - 7,430 1,262 - 8,182 -
Education - 4,373 - - 5,043 -
Public administrative and

defensecompulsory

social security - 693 2,629 - 723 2,524
Activities of

extraterritorial and

organizations

bodies - - - - 5 -
Other service activities - 113088 15098 - 122,119 11,097

P 535932 P 2351551 P 497547 P 520,672 P 2,224,495 P 395,788

Concentration by location
Philippines P 391881 P 2212423 P 410296 P 400,914 P 2,098,414 P 310,300
Foreign countries 144051 139128 87251 119.758 126.081 85,488

P 535932 P 2351551 P 497547 P 520,672 P 2,224,495 P 395,788

* Cash and cash equivalents include cash and other cash items, due frone\RS$eargdwitieademagEeNEntertain interbank loans receiva
andnvestment secuatigesortized ¢ss¢ Note 2.5).
**Receivables from customers are reported as gross of allowance but net of unearned interests or discounts.
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4.3.4 Collateral Held as Security and Other Credit Enhancements

BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank hold collateral against credit expmsures fr
customers in the form of mortgage interests over property, other registered securities over
assetsfinancial collateral including deposits, debt and equity seandtgsarantees.

Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateratiaastestime of borromg

and are updated periodicalyollateral generally is not held éneen due from other banks,
interbank loans and investment securities, except when securities are held as part of rever:
repurchase and securities borrowing activity.

There is no significant change on the quality of the collateral and otheesbamtgments
held against the ciedxposuresxcept for the fair value of the collaterals driven by the change
in market conditions.

Estimate of the fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held against the
following credit exposures af December 31 follows:

BDO Unibank Group Parent Bank
2021 220 2021 220
Receivable from customers
corporate
Property P 643,403P 575,492P 632,969P 571,158
Equity securities 119,361 115,910 17,459 115,741
Hold-out deposits 31,257 104,036 30,986 103,941
Debt securities 2,298 2,559 1,252 2,474
Others 105,236 237,625 105,024  229.483

901,555 _ 1,035,622 887,690 _ 1,022,797

Receivable from customers

consumer
Property 558,874 515,491 545,335 515,491
Hold-out deposits 52 2,864 52 2,844
Debt securities 989 423 989 128
Equity securities 146 805 146 100
Others 212603 218,756 202,216 _ 218,590

172,64 738,339 748,738 _ 737,153

Other receivables:
Property 1832 1696 1668 1696
Others 17,095 16,729 15,800 14,135

18,927 18,425 17,468 15,831

P1693,146 P1,/92,386P 1653,896 P1,/75,781

As ofDecember 312@1 and 2@0 no collateral is held for due from other banks and trading
and investment securities.
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The BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Banke hecognized certain properties arising from
foreclosures in settlement of loan account amouotiPig523and A.3479 respectivelyn
2021 andP13,757 and P13,748spectively, in 20(see Note4and 15.h

%'2 8QLEDQN *UR X 8Sisposihd tQezbllatelifor impaired loans and receivables
is normally through sale of these assets after foreclosure proceedings have taken place.

The general creditworthiness of a corpamadéndividualcustomer tends to be the most
relevant indicatof credit quality of a loan extended to it (see Note 4.3.2). However,
collateral provides additional security anBE@ UnibankGroup generally requests that
corporateand individuaborrowers provide it. THEDO UnibankGroup may take collateral
in the form of a first charge over real estate, floating charges over all congoratieidual
assets and other liens and guarantees.

While theBDO UnibankGroup is focused on corporated individuaF XVWRPHU YV -
creditworthiness, it continuously argutarly updates the valuation of collateral held against
all loans to corporatand individuatustomers. Most frequent updating, however, is required
when the loan is put on a watch list and the loan is monitored more closely. The same app
to creditimpaired loans, as tB®O UnibankGroup obtains appraisalsvaluatiorof
collateral to provide input into determining the management credit risk actions.

(a) Receivable from Custonigther Receivables

The net carrying amounta@ditimpaired (loans under Stages 2 and 3) receivables and tr
value of identifiable collateral held against those loans and advances as of December 3
and 2020 are as follows:

BDO Unibank Group

2021 2020
Net Carrying Identifiable  NetCarrying Identifiable
Amount Collateral Amount Collateral
Receivable from customers:
Corporate P 104,957 P 63,098 P 156,487P 103,993
Consumer 35,332 74,986 32,058 65,409
Other receivables 739 2,895 827 3,106
Parent Bank
2021 2020
Net Carrying ldentifiable  Net Carrying ldentifiable
Amount Collateral Amount Collateral
Receivable from customers:
Corporate P 104,953 P 63,083 P 156,305 103,810
Consumer 29,236 69,602 27,644 64,668
Other receivables 437 2,438 686 2,910

For each loan, the value of disclas®ldteralrfainly collateral properjies capped at the
nominal amount of the loan that it is held against.
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(b) Debt Investment Securities

The BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank invest irtoltatteralized debt securities
issued by various government and corporate erifitiesraximum exposure to credit
riskof debt investmerstecuitiesis equivalento their carrying amount as of

December 31, 2021 and December 31,&&2@wn below

BDO Unibank Group Parent Bank
2021 2020 2021 2020
Debt securities:
At amortized cost P 397534 P 286,819P 377382 P 267,672
At FVOCI 165461 174,559 114095 121,848
At FVTPL 10106 9,180 2,146 3.092

P 573,101P 470,558P 493,623 P 392,612

4.3.5Amounts Arising from Expected Credit Losses

At each reporting date, BDO Unibank Group assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cosind debt financial assets carried at FVOCI areionpdited (referred to as
Stage?2 and 3 financial assets). A financat ascreditmpaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flowfahthal asset have
occurred.

The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the
likelihood of defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of default correlations
between counterparties. BRO Unibark Group measures credit risk using PD, LGD

and EAD.

(a) SignificamcreaseGrediRisk(SICR)

$V RXWOLQHG-V@VB)YF6 LPEHLUPHQW P RBBE Onigdbk/y DGR
Groupbased on changes in credit quality since initial recognition of the finandal asset.
financial asset thatisnotcredPSDLUHG RQ LQLWLDO UHFRJQLWLH
credit risk continuously monitored by Bi2O UnibankGroupas its ECL is measured at

an amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL that results from possible default events
within the next 12 months. If an SICR since initial recognition is identified, the classifica
ZLOO EH PRYHG W Ryéta&emetHo be Eettiaited. QURh assessment is
based oithe following criteria in determining whether there has been a significant increas
in credit risk: (i) qualitative indicators, suctetl®sses, intermittent delays in payment or
restructuing; and (ii) quantitative test based on movement in risk rating afdePD.
borrowers can be moved to Stage 1 upon completion of the seasoning period which she
be 6 months of continuous payment with no incident of past due.

When determining whethe risk of default on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,BIREO UnibankGroup considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quiitative and qualitative information and analysis, basedBidGhe
Unibank* URXS-V KLVWRULFDO H[SHULHQFH DQG H[SHUW
forwardlooking informatiorfFLlI).
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The objective of the assessment is to identify whatBé€CRhas occurred for an
exposure by comparing:

X

X

(i)

the remaining lifetime PD as at the reporting date; with

the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initia
recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevahifoges in prepayment
expectations).

Credit risk grading

TheBDO UnibankGroup allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a
variety of data that is determined to be predictive of the risk of default and applying
experienced cregitdgment Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and
quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of default. These factors vary dependir
on the nature of the exposure and the type of borrower.

The credit grades are defined and calibrated sutitethak of default increases
exponentially at each higher risk grade so, for example, the difference PD between ¢
AAA and AA rating grade is lower than the difference in the PD between a B and

B- rating grade.

(i) Generating the term structure of PD

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of
PD for exposures. THRDO UnibankGroup collects performance and default
information about its credit risk exposures analyzed by jurisdiction or region and by
type of poduct and borrower as well as by credit risk grading. For some portfolios,
information from external credit reference agencies is also used.

TheBDO UnibankGroup employs statistical models to analyze the data collected anc
generatgethe term structer of PD estimates.

(i) Determining whether credit risk has significantly increased

TheBDO UnibankGroup assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly sinc
initial recognition at each reporting date. Determining whether an increase in credit
risk is significant depends on the characteristics of the financial instrument and the
borrower. WAt is considered significant varies across financial asseBD@ the
UnibankGroup.

The credit risk may also be deemed to have increased significantly since initial
recognition based on qualitative factors linked ®RIeUnibank* URXS -V FUHG!|
risk management processes that may not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitatiy
analysis on a timely basis. This will be the case for exposures that meet certain
heightened risk criteria, sucmeisloss, significant drop in risk ratiagd intermittet
delaysn payments.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative
initial recognition, then the loss allowance on an instrument returns to being measur
as 12month ECL.
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In 2021and 2020 heeassumptions and estimation technique s reviewed to
considethe continuingmpact otthe COVID-19pandemic.n this regard e BDO
Unibank Group and the Parent Bank performed comprehensive reviefinahthal
assetgarticuarlyfor loan accounts to assess vulnerahilgyng froncurrent
economic conditignvhich resulted in theansferof the classification of some loans
from Stage 1 to either Stage 2 or 3 (see Spte 3

(b) Definition of Default

TheBDO UnibankGroup considers a financial asset to be in default when:

x the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations B8RIaeUnibankGroup in
full, without recourse by tiBO UnibankGroup to actions such as realizing security
(if any is held);

x the borrower is more than 90 days past due on any material credit obligation to the
BDO UnibankGroup; or,

X itis becoming probable that the borrower will restructure the asset as a result of
EDQNUXSWF\ GXH WR WKH ERUURZHU: -V LQDELOLW\

In assessing whether a borrower is in defauBCi@eUnibankGroup considers
indicators that are qualitative (e.g., breaches of covenant) and, quantitative (overdue or
nortpaymet).

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default as well as thei
significance may vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

These criteria have been applied to all financial instruments heBD tdaibank Group
and are consistent with the definition of default used for internal credit risk management
purposes. Such definition has been consistently applied in detedifA® Pand LGD
throughout the ECL calculations of Bi2O Unibank Group

An instrument is considered to have cured when it no longer meets any of the default cr
for a consecutive periodgikmonths. The cure period sets the tolerance period wherein t
borrowers are allowed to update the paynrentsnpliance with ehregulatory requirements
on transfer between stages

(c) Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of PD, LGD and
EAD.

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplyingnioatt?PD by LGD
and EAD. lifetime ECL is calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and
EAD.

7KH PHWKRGRORJ\ RI HVWLPDWLQJ 3'V LV GLVFXVVH(
WHUP VWUXFWXUH RI 3"



-/77-

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The BDO Unibank Group
estimates LGD parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against
defaulted counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority o
the claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to th
financial asset. For loans secured by retail properp-i@dne (LTV) ratios are a key
parameter in determining LGD. LGD estimates are recalibratedei@ndiéfconomic
scenarios and, for real estate lending, to reflect possible changes in property prices. Th
are calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the effective interest rate as the
discounting factor.

EAD represents the expected exposutiee event of a default. The BDO Unibank

Group derives the EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential
changes to the current amount allowed under the contract and arising from amortization
The EAD of a financial asset is its greerying amount at the time of default. For

lending commitments, the EADs are potential future amounts that may be drawn under
the contract, which are estimated based on historical observations andbfakingrd
forecasts. For financial guarantéesERAD represents the amount of the guaranteed
exposure when the financial guarantee becomes payable. For some financial assets,
EAD is determined by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various
points in time using scenario and statiséichniques.

As described in the previous page, and subject to using a maximwmaoh 2D

for Stage 1 financial assets, the BDO Unibank Group measures ECL considering the
risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including any beivower
extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for credit risk
management purposes, the BDO Unibank Group considers a longer period. The
maximum contractual period extends to the date at which the BDO Unibank Group
has the rightotrequire repayment of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or
guarantee.

For portfolios in respect of which the BDO Unibank Group has limited historical
data, external benchmark information (e.g., PD from external credit rating agencies,
Basel LGD issuedire usetb supplement the internally available data. The portfolios
for which external benchmark information represents a significant input into
measurement of ECL include exposures to foreign borrowers and low default
borrower segments.

Therehave been no significant changes in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made by the BDO Unibank Group in 2021.

(d) Collective Basis of Measurement of ECL

Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the basis of shared risk characecistiss

instrument type;
credit risk gradings;
collateral type;

LTV ratio for retail
mortgages;

date of initial recognition;

remaining term to maturity;

industry; and,

geographic location of the borrower.

X X X X
X X X X
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The groupings amibject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a particular
group remain appropriately homogeneous.

7KH JURXSLQJY DUH VXEMHFW WR WKH UHJXODU UHY
order to ensure that credit exposures withartecular group remain appropriately
homogenous.

(e) Forwarboking Informatieinl)

(f)

TheBDO UnibankGroup incorporateBLI into both the assessment of whether the
credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recogriteon and
measurement of ECL.

TheBDO UnibankGroup has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and
credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historic:
data, has estimated relationships between-ataomic variables and credit risk and

credit losses.

The relevant macconomic variables for selection generally include, but are not limited
to, Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growdte unemployment rat@flation rateforeign
exchangeatesstock market index, oil prices and interest rates.

Predicted relationships between the key regormic indicators and default and loss
rates on various portfolios of financial assets have been developed based on analyzing
historical data over the pa6tto 15 years.

The significance of the selected macomomic variables as predictors of default may
change over time as historical information is added. As such, the generated
macreeconomic models are updated at least on an annual basis.

As with ay economic forecasts, the projections and likelihoods of occurrence are
subject to a high degree of inherent uncertainty, and therefore, the actual outcomes ma
significantly differerftom theprojections. ThBDO Unibank Grougonsiders these
forecasts to represent its best estimate of the possible outcomes and &ashenaly
nontlinearities and asymmetries within tB®RJnibank Groupifferent product types
establish that the chosen scenarios are appropriately representative of the range of pos
scenarios.

Management has also considered other FLisawoporated within the above economic
scenarios, such as any regulatory, legislative, or political changes, but are not deemed t
a significant impact on the calculation of ECL. Management reviews and monitors the
appropriateness of FLIs at leastuadly.

ModifieBinanciadssets

The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including
changing market conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a currer
or potential credit deterioration of the cugtom
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When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in
GHUHFRJQLWLRQ WKH GHWHUPLQDWLRQ RI ZKHWKH!
significantly reflects comparison of:

X its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; with

x the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data on initial recognition and the
original contractual terms.

When modification results in derecognition, a new loangsimsmband allocated to
Stage 1 (assuming it is not creaitaired at that time).

The BDO Unibank Group renegotiates loans of customers in financial difficulties

UHIHUUHG WR DV fUHVWUXFWXULQJ:- WR PD[LPL]JH F
RI GHIDXOW B8QGHU WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS: -V UHV\
granted on a selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt but the debtor
made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractualdetragabtor is
expected to be able to meet the revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extendingdheity deferment of principal payment,
changing the timing of interest payments and amending the terms ofdoantsdor
such loans a®resumer and corporate loamsl credit card receivablédl proposals for
loan restructuringre for approval by the BDO Unibank GraelgxecutiveCommittee.

JRU ILQDQFLDO DVVHWYV PRGLILHG DV SDUW RI WKH 9
the estimate of credit loss will reflect the probability to collect interest and principal.

$V SDUW RI WKLV SURFHVV WKH %'2 8QLEm@N *URXS
performance against the modified contractual terms and considers various behavioral
indicators.

Generally, restructuring is a qualitative indicasor 8fCRand an expectation of

forbearance may constitute evidence that an exposure-ispaeit (see Note 4.3.2).

A customer needs to demonstrate consistently good payment behavior over a period of
time (in accordance with the new terms for six consecutive months doefane}he
exposure is no longer considered toreditimpaired/in default or the PD is considered

to have decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to being measured at an amoun
equal to Stage 1.

In response to the unprecedented impaittsd OVID-19 pandemic, the BDO Unibank
Group and the PameBank granted to its customers the mandatory reliefs provided by the
government througBayaihan to Heal as One (BetyanihandipdBayanihan to Recover as
Once Act (Bayaniharinladdition, it entered into voluntary renegotiations of terms of
loans of some other customers with a view of maximizing recovery of the contractual
amount of obligationThese relief measures were granted to eligible borrowers to allow
them to get back into the habit of paying loans which includes payment religg includi
extension of contractual terms, principal and interest relief, as well as extension of ballo:
payment terms (see Notg.3

Financial reliefs provided by B8O Unibank Group and the Parent Bankl mandated

by the government were assessed to bsubmtantial modification and has not resulted

in material modification loss as the present value of the original cash flows and the pres:
value of the revised cash flows using the original effetdnest rate were substantially

the same.
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The following tables provide a summary of the outstgpritiegpalbalancenet of
allowance for impairmeot modified loans provided by tBBO Unibank Grouand
the Parent Banksof December 31, 2021 a2@?0:

BDO Unibank Group

2021 20D
Stage 1 (Performiny
Corporate P 68,893 P 187,822
Consumer 121,081 144,598
189,974 332,20
Allowance for impairment ( 1,403 ( 2,080
P 188,570 P 330,340
Stage 2 (Underperforming
Corporate P 98,434 P 83,289
Consumer 1,075 1448
99,509 84,737
Allowance for impairment ( 15,798 ( 8,645
P 83,711 P 76,092
Stage INon-performing)
Corporate P 5673 P 877
Consumer 7,542 7,933
13215 8,810
Allowance for impairment ( 4709 ( 2,740
P 8,506 P 6,00
Parent Bank
2021 2020
Stage 1 (Performiny
Corporate P 68,893 P 187,822
Consumer 120,081 143,057
188,974 330,879
Allowance for impairment ( 1,367 ( 2,05)
P 187,66 P 328,82
Stage AUnderperforming)
Corporate P 98,434 P 83,289
Consumer 1,054 1,38
99,488 84,63
Allowance for impairment ( 15,793 ( 8.633
P 83,695 P 76,002
Stage 3 (Nonperforming)
Corporate P 5673 P 877
Consumer 7,006 7,389
12679 8,266
Allowance for impairment ( 4521 ( 2,545

P 8,158 P 5721
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(g) Writeoffs

The BDO Unibank Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, héaen it
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery of the financial asset. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery inclumssation of enforcement actiaityl, whes the BDO
8QLEDQN *URXS:V UHFRYHU\ PHWKRG LV WKURXJK IR
the collateral is less than the outstanding contractual amounts of the financial assets to
be writteroff. The BDO Unibank Group artie Parent Bank have ktilowever,

enforceable right to receive payment even if the financial assets have been written off
except in certain cases

The BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank had written off certain accounts from
which it no longer have an enforceable riglgdeivgpayment amounting #1,054and
P1,015espectivelyin 202, andP654and B33 respectively, in 20

(h) Credit riskxposure

TheBDO Unibank Group and the ParetDQN -V PD[LPXP H[SRVXUH WHF
to the carrying value of its financial asseshiown beloand in the sueeding page.

BDO Unibank Group

Gross Fair Financial
Maximum Value of Net Effect of
Exposure Collaterals Exposure Collaterals
2021
Loans and discounts:
Corporate P 1,8®,355 P 901,55 P 967,800 P 901,555
Consumer 530,838 772,664 - 530,838
Reverseepurchase
areements 17,095 17,095 - -
Sales contracts receivables 1.283 1.832 - 1.283
P 2418571 P 1693,146 P 967,800 P 1433,676
2020
Loans and discounts:
Corporate P 1,735,938 P 1,035,622 P 700,316 P 1,035,622
Consumer 527,764 738,339 - 527,764
Reverseepurchase
agreements 16,729 16,729 - -
Sales contracts receivables 1.016 1.696 - 1.016

P 2,281,447 P 1,02,386 P 700,316 P 1,564.402
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Parent Bank

Gross Fair Financial
Maximum Value of Net Effect of
Exposure Collaterals Exposure Collaterals
2021
Loansand discounts:
Corporate P 1,863,42 P 887,80 P 975,88 P 887,80
Consumer 488,13 748,738 - 488,13
Reverseepurchase
areements 15,800 15,800 - -
Sales contractsceivables 1,226 1.668 - 1,226
P 2,368,577 P 16538% P 975,88 P 1377,08
2020
Loans and discounts:
Corporate P 1,732,125 P 1,022,797 P 709,328 P 1,022,797
Consumer 492,370 737,153 - 492,370
Revers®epurchase
Agreements 14,135 14,135 - -
Sales contracts receivables 977 1.696 - 977

P 2,239,607 P 1,775,781 P 709,328 P 1,516,144

An analysis of the maximum credit risk exposure relating to Stage 3 financial assets as ¢
December 31, 202nd 2@0is shown belownd in the succeeding page.

BDO Unibank Group

Gross Fair Financial
Maximum Value of Net Effect of
Exposure Collaterals Exposure Collaterals
2021
Loans and discounts:
Corporate P 19,0 P 6455 P 12,5 P 6,455
Consumer 54,039 68,085 - 54,039
Sales contracts receivables 214 3 - 214
P 73,283 P 74,84 P 12,575 P 60,708
2020
Loans and discounts:
Corporate P 15,030 P 6,050 P 8,980 P 6,050
Consumer 45,525 60,572 - 45,525
Sales contracts receivables 233 375 - 233

P 60,788 P 66,997 P 8,980 P 51,808
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Parent Bank

Gross Fair Financial
Maximum Value of Net Effect of
Exposure Collaterals Exposure Collaterals
202
Loans and discounts:
Corporate P 19,05 P 6455 P 1251 P 6,455
Consumer 46,659 66,296 - 46,659
Sales contracts receivables 212 302 - 212
P 65,89 P 73,053 P 1251 P 53,326
20
Loans and discounts:
Corporate P 15,027 P 6,049 P 8,978 P 6,049
Consumer 41,533 58,390 - 41,533
Sales contracts receivables 206 347 - 206
P 56,766 P 64,786 P 8,978 P 47,788

The following table sets out the gross carrying amounts of the exposures to credit risk ot

financial assets with low credit risk measured at amortized cost and debt securities at
FVOCI as of December 31:

BDO Unibank Group Parent Bank
Notes 202 20 2021 2020

Cash equivalents 8,9 P_444,103 P 448,776 P__433449 P_ 440661
Debt securities
At FVOCI 102 165461 174559 114095 121,848
At amortized cost 103 399005 288409 378837 269,243

P_564,466 P 462,968P 492932 P 391,091

Cash equivalents includes loansasamalints de from BSP anftlom otherbanks.
Debt securities includes government and corporate bonds. These are held by the BSP,

financial institutions and othmyunterparties that are reputable and with low credit risk;
hence, ECL is negligible.

() Loss allowance

In 221 and 202xhe BDO Unibank Group and the Parent Bank performed recalibration
of its existing ECL model to incorporatehe mostecent defaulind recovergxperience

of theBDO Unibank Group and the Par&#dnk and developments in the macroeconomic
environment.Independent macroeconomic variables used to tdreda® couldeither

be dictated by their statistical significance in the model or economic signifipatssee
updated to ensure that models are robust, predictive and reliable.
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The following tables show the reconciliation from the opening to the closing balance of
the loss allowance by class of financial instrument.

BDO Unibank Group

2@1
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Receivables from customerg
corporate
Balance at January 1 P 6,254 P 11,69 P 10,056 P 28,009
Transfers to:
Stage 1 414 ( 419 - -
Stage 2 218 ( 217) ( 1 -
Stage 3 ( 7 ( 17 24 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowan¢e 743) 6,20 1,646 7,1@
New financial assets originated
or purchased 3529 877 3,960 8,366
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 2227) ( 1,19) ( 1,32) ( 4,730
Write-offs - - ( 1256) ( 1,256
Foreign exchange 75 22 16 458
Balance at December 31 P 75183 P 1726 P 132 P 379%
Receivables from customerg
consumer
Balance at January 1 P 7,795 P 97 P 19619 P 28411
Transfers to:
Stage 1 3,290 ( 630 ( 2,660 -
Stage 2 ( 210 379 ( 169 -
Stage 3 ( 2,693 ( 393 3,085 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 3,099 160 10152 7213
New financial assets originated
or purchased 1273 109 1015 2,397
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 809 ( 118 ( 2,239 ( 3,557
Write-offs - - ( 7,573 ( 7,575
Foreign exchange 2 - 13 15
Balance at December 31 P 5,554 P 504 P 2126 P 27,3@
Other receivables
Balance at January 1 P 151 P 18 P 2262 P 2431
Transfesto
Stage 1 13 ( D ( 12) -
Stage 2 1 ( 1) -
Stage 3 ( 6) - 6 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowande 80 52 154 1%
New financial assets originated
or purchased 22 18 527 567
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 22 ( 1) ( 474) ( 507)
Write-offs - ( 135 ( 135
Foreign exchange 1 - 1 2
Balance at December 31 P 79 P 77 P 238 P 2,44
Debt investment securities at
amortized cost
Balance at January 1 P 248 P - P 1342 P 1590
Net remeasurement of loss allowande 180 - - ( 180)
New financial assets originated
or purchased 10 - - 10
Foreign exchange 5 - 68 73
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 22) - - ( 22)
Balance at December 31 P 61 P - P 1410 P 1471
Debt investment securities at FVOCI
Balance at January 1 P 137 P - P - P 137
Net remeasurement of loss allowande 75 - - ( 75)
New financial assets originated
or purchased 12 - - 12
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 24 - - ( 24)

Balance at December 31 P 50 P - P - P 50
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BDO Unibank Group

2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loan commitments and other
contingent accounts
Balance at January 1 P 314 P 3 P - P 317
Netremeasurement of loss allowande 29 - - ( 29
New financial assets originated
or purchased 66 - - 66
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 65 ( 3) - ( 68
Foreignexchange 3 - - 3
Balance at December 31 P 289 P - P - P 289
2@0
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Receivables from customérporate
Balance at January 1 P 6,609 P 549 P 8,412 P 15,570
Transfers to:
Stage 1 65 ( 65) - -
Stage 2 ( 1,639 1,639 - -
Stage 3 ( 32 ( 12]) 153 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 220 8,429 1,212 9,861
New financial assets originated
or purchased 3,226 1,333 1,493 6,052
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 2,166 ( 65) ( 999) ( 3,230
Foreign exchange ( 29 - ( 215 ( 244
Balance at December 31 P 6,254 P 11,699 P 10,056 P 28,009
Receivables from customénsumer
Balance at January 1 P 5,050 P 681 P 8,767 P 14,498
Transfers to:
Stage 1 462 ( 120 ( 342 -
Stage 2 ( 201 249 ( 48) -
Stage 3 ( 1,407 ( 1,249 2,656 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 3,060 1,446 10,616 15,122
New financial assets originated
or purchased 1,609 276 1,675 3,560
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 779 ( 289 ( 1,199 ( 2,257
Write-offs - ( 2,497 ( 2,497
Foreign exchange ( 4) ( 2) ( 9) ( 15)
Balance at December 31 P 7,795 P 997 P 19,619 P 28,411
Other receivables
Balance at January 1 P 116 P 269 P 2,213 P 2,598
Transfers to
Stage 1 41 - ( 41) -
Stage 2 1 ( 2) 1 -
Stage 3 ( 21) - 21 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowande 3) ( 249 674 422
New financial assets originated
or purchased 37 10 523 570
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 19 ( 10) ( 675) ( 704
Write-offs - - ( 452) ( 452
Foreign exchange ( 1) - ( 2)( 3)
Balance at December 31 P 151 P 18 P 2,262 P 2,431
Debt investment securities at
amortized cost
Balance at January 1 P 151 P - P 1,402 P 1,553
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 90 - - 90
New financial assets originated
or purchased 42 - - 42
Foreign exchange ( 8) - ( 60) ( 69
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 27) - - ( 27)

Balance at December 31 P 248 P - P 1,342 P 1,590
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BDO Unibank Group

2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Debt investment securities at FVOCI
Balance at January 1 P 100 P - P - P 100
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 41 - - 41
New financial assets originated
or purchased 27 - - 27
Foreign exchange ( 1) - - ( 1)
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 30) - - ( 30)
Balance at December 31 P 137 P - P - P 137
Loan commitments and other
contingent accounts
Balance atanuary 1 P 114 P - P - P 114
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 21 1 - 22
New financial assets originated
or purchased 220 2 - 222
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 39 - - ( 39
Foreign exchange ( 2) - - ( 2)
Balance at December 31 P 314 P 3 P - P 317
Parent Bank
2@1
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Receivables from customerg
corporate
Balance at January 1 P 6,200 P 11,89 P 10,053 P 27,952
Transfers to:
Stage 1 398 ( 398 - -
Stage 2 218 ( 213 ( 1) -
Stage 3 ( 7 ( 15 22 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowande 709) 6,187 1646 7,12
New financial assets originated
or purchased 355 877 3,959 8,38
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 22B) ( 1,150 ( 1,39) ( 4,75)
Write-offs - - ( 1,256 ( 1,259
Foreign exchange 75 222 16 45
Balance at December 31 P 7477 P 17,204 P 13,233 P 37,914
Receivables from customerg
consumer
Balance at January 1 P 7,558 P 671 P 17808 P 26037
Transfers to:
Stage 1 2,832 ( 409 ( 2,438) -
Stage 2 ( 209 370 ( 164 -
Stage 3 ( 2,663 ( 349 3,012 -
Net remeagement of loss allowance( 2,599 159 9,5@ 7,08
New financibassets originated
or purchaed 1033 58 797 1,888
Derecognitia of financial assets ( 763 ( 86) ( 183) ( 2,681)
Write-offs - - ( 6,967 ( 6,967
Foreign exadmnge 2 - 13 15
Balance at &cember 31 P 5194 P 414 P 972 P 25360
Other receivables
Balance at January 1 P 62 P 19 P 2204 P 2285
Transfes to:
Stage 1 13 ( D ( 12) -
Stage 3 ( ] - 1 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowande 44) 55 89 100
New financial assets originated
or purchased 21 15 52 5%
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 21 ( 1) ( 465 ( 497
Write-offs - - ( 13B) ( 129
Foreign exchange 1 - 1 2

Balance at December 31 P 31 P 77 P 2,210 P 238
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2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Debt investment securities at
amortized cost
Balance at January 1 229 P - P 1342 P 1571
Net remeasurement of loss allowange 175 - - ( 175)
New financial assets originated
or purchased 5 - - 5
Foreign exchange 5 - 68 73
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 19 - - ( 19
Balance at December 31 45 P - P 1410 P 1455
Debt investment securities at FVOCI
Balance at January 1 108 P - P - P 108
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 63 - - ( 63)
New financial assets originated
or purchased 8 - - 8
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 16) - - ( 19
Balance at December 31 37 P - P - P 37
Loan commitments and other
contingent accounts
Balance at January 1 314 P 3P - P 317
Net remeasurement of loss allowande 29 - - ( 29
New financial assets originated -
or purchased 66 - - 66
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 65 ( 3) - ( 69
Foreign exchange 3 - - 3
Balance at December 31 289 P - P - P 289
2@0
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Receivables from customérs
corporate
Balance at January 1 6,520 P 538 P 7,991 P 15,049
Transfers to:
Stage 1 46 ( 46) - -
Stage 2 ( 1,639 1,638 - -
Stage 3 26) ( 108 134 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 219 8,405 961 9,585
New financial assets originated
or purchased 3,212 1,331 1,485 6,028
Derecognition ofinancial assets ( 2,103 ( 59) ( 303) ( 2,469
Write-offs - - - -
Foreign exchange ( 29 - ( 215 ( 244)
Balance at December 31 6,200 P 11,699 P 10,053 P 27,952
Receivables from customérs
consumer
Balance at January 1 4,549 P 541 P 7,243 P 12,333
Transfers to:
Stage 1 141 ( 61) ( 80) -
Stage 2 ( 139 174 ( 35) -
Stage 3 1,279 ( 339 1,614 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 3,302 375 11,009 14,686
New financial assets originated
or purchased 1,410 116 1,172 2,698
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 422 ( 137 ( 73D ( 1,290
Write-offs - - ( 2,379 ( 2,375
Foreign exchange ( 4) ( 2) ( 9) ( 15)
Balance at December 31 7,558 P 671 P 17,808 P 26,037
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Parent Bank

2@0
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Other receivables
Balance at January 1 P 46 P 269 P 2,136 P 2,451
Transfers to:
Stage 1 ( 2) - 2
Stage 2 1 ( 2) 1
Stage 3 5 1 ( 6) -
Net remeasurement of loss allowande 3) ( 249 647 395
New financial assets originated
or purchased 36 10 523 569
Derecognition ofinancial assets ( 20) ( 10) ( 645) ( 675
Write-offs - - ( 452) ( 452
Foreign exchange ( 1) - ( 2)( 3)
Balance at December 31 P 62 P 19 P 2,204 P 2,285
Debt investment securities at
amortized cost
Balance at January 1 P 141 P - P 1,402 P 1,543
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 85 - - 85
New financial assets originated
or purchased 35 - - 35
Foreign exchange ( 8) - ( 60) ( 68)
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 24) - - ( 24
Balance at December 31 P 229 P - P 1,342 P 1,571
Debt investment securities at FVOCI
Balance at January 1 P 72 P - P - P 72
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 34 - - 34
New financial assets originated
or purchased 20 - - 20
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 18) - - ( 189
Balance at December 31 P 108 P - P - P 108
Loan commitments and other
contingent accounts
Balance at January 1 P 114 P - P - P 114
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 21 1 - 22
New financial assets originated
or purchased 220 2 - 222
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 39 - - ( 39
Foreign exchange ( 2) - - ( 2)
Balance at December 31 P 314 P 3 P - P 317

The following table sets outezonciliation of changes in the total loss allowance.

BDO Unibank Group Parent Bank
202 220 2021 2020

Balance at January 1 P 60,895P 34,433P 58270P 31,562
Net remeasurement of loss

allowance 14163 25,558 14,03 24,807
New financial assets originated

or purchased 11418 10,473 10,84 9,572
Derecognition of financial assets ( 8,508 ( 6,287 ( 7,99) ( 45129
Write-offs ( 8,966 ( 2949 ( 8,35) ( 2,827
Foreign exchange 551 ( 333 551 ( 339

Balance at December 31 P 69%3 P 60895P 67373P 58,270
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()) Significant Changes in Gross Carrying Amount Affecting Allowance for ECL

The tables beloand in the succeeding pageside information how the significant changes
in the gross carrying amount of financial instrumentsira@02Q0 contributed to the
changes in the allowance for ECL.

BDO Unibank Group

202
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Receivables from customerg
corporate
Balance at January 1 P 1557696 P 163212 P 15,030 P 1,733
Transfers to:
Stage 1 13,931 ¢( 13,93D ( 1) -
Stage 2 ( 1,875 1,930 ( 55) -
Stage 3 ( 47 ( 552 1,023 -
New financial assets originated
or purchased 1,306,81 5575 5,714 1,318,50
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 1,14286 ( 39,866 ( 1,425 ( 1,183,47)
Write-offs - - ( 1,256 ( 1.256
Balance at December 31 P 1733,956 P 116,89 P 19,08 P 1869,355
Receivables from customerg
consumer
Balance at January 1 P 475,090 P 719 P 45525 P 527,764
Transfers to:
Stage 1 10,022 ( 3,144 ( 6,879 -
Stage 2 ( 2,097 2,465 ( 369 -
Stage 3 ( 22,68) ( 2,207 24,893 -
New financial assets originated
or purchased 131,086 293 3,877 135,86
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 117,659 ( 1513 ( 5435 ( 124,60y
Write-offs - - 7.575 ( 7.575
Balance at December 31 P 47376 P 3,08 P 54,039 P 530,838
Other receivables
Balance at January 1 P 94,023 P 451 P 2656 P 97130
Transfes to
Stage 1 71 ( 14) ( 57) -
Stage 2 ( 10 13 ( 3) -
Stage 3 ( 85 ( 3) 88 -
New financial assets originated
or purchased 25808 168 1,076 27,052
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 4,498 ( 145 ( 957 ( 5,59
Write-offs - - ( 139 ( 135
Balance at December 31 P 115,309 P 470 P 2,614 P 118,453
Debt investment securities at
amortized cost
Balance at January 1 P 287067 P - P 1342 P 288409
Amortization ( 1,202 - - ( 1,202
New financial assets originated
or purchased 166073 - - 166073
Foreign exchange 9,068 - 68 9,136
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 63419 - - ( 6341)
Balance at December 31 P 397595 P - P 1410 P 399005
Debt investment securities at FVOCI
Balance at January 1 P 174559 P - P - P 174559
Amortization ( 483 - - ( 483
Fairvaluegain ( 5579 - - ( 5579
New financial assets originated
or purchased 474062 - - 474062
Foreign Exchange 4986 - - 4986
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 482087 - - ( 482087)
Balance at December 31 P 165461 P - P - P 165461
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BDO Unibank Group

2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loan commitments and other
contingent accounts
Balance atanuary 1 P 96,509 P 145 P 16 P 96,60
Transfers to
Stage 1 48 ( 48 - -
Newfinancial assets originated
or purchased 54277 451 - 54,728
Derecognition of financial assets ~ ( 38.,43) ( 45 ( 16 ( 38,492
Balance at December 31 P 11248 P 503 P - P 112,906
202
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Receivables from customérs
corporate
Balance at January 1 P 1,675,381 P 7,980 P 10,647 P 1,694,008
Transfers to:
Stage 1 2,363 ( 2,363 - -
Stage 2 ( 133,928 133,932 ( 4) -
Stage 3 ( 3,223 ( 784 4,005 -
New financial assets originated
or purchased 793,998 25,413 4,004 823,415
Derecognition of financial assets ~ ( 776,897 ( 966 ( 3,629 ( 781,48%
Balance at December 31 P 1,557,696 P 163,212 P 15,030 P 1,735,938
Receivables from customérs
consumer
Balance at January 1 P 496,344 P 3,029 P 14,669 P 514,042
Transfers to:
Stage 1 8,845 ( 10,11y 1,272 -
Stage 2 ( 3,695 3,890 ( 195) -
Stage 3 ( 25,136 ( 2,763 27,900 -
New financial assets originated
or purchased 455,090 14,188 9,518 478,796
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 456,358 ( 1,077 ( 5,142 ( 462,57y
Write-offs - - ( 2,497 ( 2,497
Balance at December 31 P 475,090 P 7,149 P 45,525 P 527,764
Other receivables
Balance at January 1 P 47,185 P 325 P 2,883 P 50,393
Transfers to
Stage 1 ( 28) 16 12 -
Stage 2 ( 2) - 2 -
Stage 3 18 ( 22) 4 -
New financial assets originated
or purchased 103,346 300 820 104,466
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 56,496 ( 168 ( 613) ( 57,277
Write-offs - - ( 452) ( 452
Balance at December 31 P 94,023 P 451 P 2,656 P 97,130
Debt investment securities at
amortized cost
Balance at January 1 P 263,736 P - P 1,402 P 265,138
Amortization 2,605 - - 2,605
New financial assets originated
or purchased 102,273 - - 102,273
Foreign exchange ( 7,576 - ( 60) ( 7,639
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 73.97) - - ( 73,97)
Balance at December 31 P 287,067 P - P 1,342 P 288,409
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BDO Unibank Group

20D
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Debt investment securities at FVOCI
Balance at January 1 P 134,123 P - P - P 134,123
Amortization 336 - - 336
Fair value gain 4,069 - - 4,069
New financial assets originated
or purchased 193,217 - - 193,217
Foreign Exchange ( 4,362 ( 4,369
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 152,82% - - ( 152,823
Balance ddecember 31 P 174,559 P - P - P 174,559
Loan commitments and other
contingent accounts
Balance at January 1 P 457,736 P 1 P 44 P 457,781
Transfers to
Stage 2 ( 25) 25 - -
New financial assets originated
or purchased 65,525 119 - 65,644
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 426.72y - ( 28) ( 426,75%
Balance at December 31 P 96,509 P 145 P 16 P 96,670
Parent Bank
202
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Receivables from customerg
corporate
Balance at January 1 P 1554,068 P 163,80 P 15,027 P 1732,125
Transfers to:
Stage 1 13,707 ( 13,70y - -
Stage 2 ( 1,88) 1,922 ( 54) -
Stage 3 ( 470 ( 550 1020 -
New financial assets originated
or purchased 1,301391 5,635 5713 1,31439
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 1,138,790 ( 39,866 ( 1,423 ( 1,180,80
Write-offs - - ( 1,256 ( 1,256
Balance at December 31 P 1728,038 P 116,364 P 190% P 186343
Receivables from customerg
consumer
Balance at January 1 P 446,247 P 4590 P 41,533 P 492,370
Transfers to:
Stage 1 7,056 ( 1,318( 5,738 -
Stage 2 ( 1,89) 2,227 ( 340 -
Stage 3 ( 21,199 ( 1908) 23,098 -
New financial assets originated
or purchased 99,753 145 482 100,80
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 91,258 ( 993 ( 5,409 ( 97,6®)
Write-offs - - ( 6,967 ( 6,967
Balance at December 31 P 438,721 P 278 P 46,659 P 488,13
Other receivables
Balance at January 1 P 88,556 P 13 P 2496 P 91,46
Transfes to
Stage 1 71 ( 14) ( 57) -
Stage 2 ( 10 13 ( 3) -
Stage 3 ( 73 ( 2) 75 -
New financial assets originated
or purchased 23,597 135 843 24575
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 8471 ( 139 ( 908 ( 1,883
Write-offs - - ( 129 ( 129

Balance at December 31 P 111,300 P 406 P 2318 P 114,024
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Debt investment securities at
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Balance at January 1
Amortization
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Balance at December 31

Other receivables
Balance atanuary 1
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Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

New financial assets originated

or purchased

Derecognition of financial assets

Write-offs

Balance at December 31
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2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P 267901 P - P 1342 P 269243
1189 - - ( 1186)
157763 - - 157763
8,746 - 68 8,814
( 55797) - - ( 55797
P 377427 P - P 1410 P 378837
[ 121848 P - P - P 121848
( 339 - - ( 339
( 2.86) - - ( 2.861)
445300 - - 445300
4,249 - - 4,249
( 454107 - - ( 454107)
P 114095 P - P - P 114095
P 96,509 P 145 P 16 P 96,60
48 ( 48 - i,
54,27 451 - 54,728
( 38,43) ( 45 ( 16 ( 38.492)
P 11248 P 503 P - P 112,96
20
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P 1,660,571 P 7,433 P 9,636 P 1,677,540
1,919 ( 1,919 - }
( 133,669 133,669 - -
( 1,444 ( 524 1,968 -
791,337 25,150 4,057 820,544
( 764,645 ( 779 ( 534) ( 765,959
P 1,554,068 P 163,030 P 15,027 P 1,732,125
P 465,938 P 2,262 P 12,126 P 480,326
( 5,608 ( 354 5,962 -
( 3,159 3,208 ( 49) -
( 24,457 ( 1,463 25,921 -
456,539 1,308 3,875 461,722
( 443,008 ( 370 ( 3,927 ( 447,303
- - ( 2,375 ( 2,379
P 446,247 P 4,590 P 41,533 P 492,370
P 45,128 P 324 P 2,170 P 47,622
( 147 17 130 -
9 ( 17) 8 -
19 - ( 19) -
89,424 300 1,227 90,951
( 45,877 ( 217 ( 568) ( 46,656
B} - ( 452) ( 452
P 88,556 P 413 P 2,496 P 91,465
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Parent Bank

2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Debt investment securities at
amortized cost
Balance at January 1 P 247,449 P - P 1,402 P 248,851
Amortization 2,608 - - 2,608
New financial assets originated
or purchased 96,702 - - 96,702
Foreign exchange ( 7,259 - ( 60) ( 7,314)
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 71,609 - - ( 71,608
Balance at December 31 P 267,901 P - P 1,342 P 269,243
Debt investment securities at FVOCI
Balance at January 1 P 89,431 P - P - P 89,431
Amortization ( 27) - - ( 27)
Fair value gain 2,381 - - 2,381
New financial assets originated
or purchased 160,325 - - 160,325
Foreign exchange ( 3,414 - - ( 3,419
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 126,843 - - ( 126,843
Balance at December 31 P 121,848 P - P - P 121,848
Loan commitments and other
contingent accounts
Balance at January 1 P 457,736 P 1P 44 P 457,781
Transfers to Stage 2 ( 25) 25 - -
New financial assets originated
or purchased 65,525 119 - 65,644
Derecognition of financial assets  ( 426,72Y - ( 28) ( 426,75%
Balance at December 31 P 96,509 P 145 P 16 P 96,670

(k) Sensitivity Analysis on ECL Measurement

Set out below are the changes t@BH© Unibank* U R X12-monthECL as of

December 322021 and 202@hat would result from reasonably possible changes in these
parameters from the actual assumptions usedBDthéJnibank* URXS -V HFRQRP|
variable assumptians

Change in MEVs Impact on ECL
Increase Decrease
Increase Decrease in MEV in MEV
2021
Corporate or
Commercial Loans:
GDP growth rate +1% -1% -6.8%6 6.8%
Inflation rate +1% -1% 2.1% -2.6%
Credit Card Receivables
or Personal Loans:
GDP growth rate +1% -1% -1.2 1.%%
Unemployment rate +1% -1% 1.2% -1.2%
Home/Housing Loans:
GDP growth rate +1% -1% -0.6% 0.0
Inflation rate +1% -1% 0.1% -0.1%
Auto Loans:
GDP growth rate +1% -1% -0.5% 0.5%

Unemployment rate +1% -1% 3.7% -3.7%
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Change in MEVs Impact on ECL
Increase Decrease
Increase Decrease in MEV in MEV
2020
Corporate or
Commercial Loans:
GDP growth rate +1% -1% -1.7% 1.7%
Inflation rate +1% -1% 0.1% -0.1%
Credit Card Receivables
or Personal Loans:
GDP growth rate +1% -1% -5.00 5.00
Unemployment rate +1% -1% 0.20 -0.26
Home/Housing Loans:
GDP growth rate +1% -1% -3.0% 3.0
Unemployment rate +1% -1% 2.00 -2.006
Inflation rate +1% -1% 02% -02%
Auto Loans:
GDP growth rate +1% -1% -0.5% 0.5%
Unemployment rate +1% -1% 30% -30%

4.4 Operational Risk
2SHUDWLRQDO ULVN LV WKH ULVN RI ORVV GXH WR %'2

x  failure to comply with defined operational procedures;
X inability to address fraud committed internally or externally;

X inability to handlsystem failures; and,

X inability to cope with the impact of external events.

BDO Unibank Group manages its operational risks by instituting policies to minimize its
expected losses, allocating capital for the unexpected losses and having insurance and/o
business continuity plan to prepare for catastrophic losses.

Framework

True to its commitment to sound management and corporate governance, BDO Unibank
Group considers operational risk management as a critical element in the conduct of its
business 8QGHU %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:V 2SHUDWLRQDO 5LV
the BOD has the ultimate responsibility for providing leadership in the management of
operational risk in BDO Unibank Group.

The RMG provides the common risk language and mamageofeeacross BDO Unibank

Group as well as monitors the implementation of the ORM framework and policies. The
business process owners, as risk owners, are responsible for identifying, assessing and lim
the impact of risk in their businesses/opanati
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TheBDO UnibankGroup continues to conduct periodic Risk and ContreASsdssment
(RCSA) so that business process owners could document both their operational risks and
control mechanisms they have put in place to manage those risks. This ORM tool allows
theBDO UnibankGroup to identify risks the business/operation faces, assess the severity
of those risks, evaluate the adequacy of key controls associated to the identified risks, and
proactive action to address any deficiencies identified.

TheBDO Unibank Goup also continues to use Key Risk Indicators (KRI) as alerts for
operational risk vulnerabilities. Reporting of top KRIs to the BOD through the RMC is done
quarterly.

The BDO Unibank Group likewise uses Loss Data Collection, Analysis and Reporting tha
allows thé8DO Unibank Groupo gaher data per Basel loss event category across business
lines. The collected data are processed for information and appropriate escalation, root cau
analysis, control effectivenasd enables action plans to prevent recurrence.

These ORM tools are continually being reviewed and enhanced to proactively manage
operational risks. The Operational Risk Management Solution (ORMS) was implemented
to automate the reporting of BDO Uniddn* U R X S - VKRI& &rgl\bperational losses.

The bankwide information asset inventory is regularly reviewed to address operational risks
arising from information security concerns. The inventory identified critical applications anc
sensitive databaGe RQ WKH %'2 8QLEDQN *URXS:V FODVVLILFD)\
as well aprotection measures in place to mitigate these risks. Under the purview of
information security is data privacy. BB® Unibank* URXS:V GDWD SULYDF\ |
acordance with thR.A.No. 10173Data Privacy Act of 2012

Information technology risks which include current and prospective negative impact to
earnings arising from failure of IT systems and realization of cyber security threats are
appropriately managed through policies and measures that are integrated i &1ikO
*UR X S -td-daybperations.

Operational risks arising from health, safety and environmental issues are appropriately
PDQDJHG WKURXJK SROLFLHYVY DQG PHDVXUHV WKDW DL
Dayto-day operations. These include Emrmental Consciousness, Occupational Health

and Safety, and Community Health and Safety.

TheBDO Unibank Group continues to review its preparedness for major disaster scenarios
and implements required changes in its Business Continuity Plan.

4.5 Anti-Money Laundering Controls

The Anti-Money LaunderindAML) Program of th&DO Unibank Group and thearenBank

is articulated in the Boaagproved Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Prevention
Program (MTPPYlanual The MTPP encapsulates the policies and procedures covering the:
(i) onboarding of clients, Know Your Client and required due diligence; (ii) customer risk
assessment; (iil)-ging monitoring of transactions; (iv) regulatory reporting;

(v) recorekeging; (vi) training of adfficers andtaff including BD; (vii) Independent
Compliance Testi¢CT); and (viii) Institutional Risk Assessment.
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The MTPP provides the framework for Bi2O Unibank Group and the Parent Bamk
adhere with the AMand Counteferrorism Financing Laws and Regulations:

1. R.A. No. 9160rhe AntMoney Laundering Act of(2DOILA) as amended by

R.A. No 9194 (2003); R.A. 10167 (2012); R.A. (IRB6Y); R.A. No. 10927017) and

R.A. No. 115212021); togethevith applicable Implementing Rules and Regulations (IRR)
2. BSP Circular No. 7q8011), as amended by BSP Circular No. 950 (2017); and

BSP Circular No. 1022 (2018)
3. R.A. 10168The Terrorism Financing Prevention and SuppressiamdAts tRRO12

R.A. 10697Strategic Trade Management Aen@@$3RR; and the

R.A 11479%Anti-Terrorism Act (2020)

The Chief Compliance Officer directly reports to the BOD through the Board Audit
Committee and is also a member of the AML Committee of thé Pam&nThe

AML Committee, composed of senior officers from various units, is tasked to oversee
WKH RSHUDWLRQDO LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ RI %'2-V $0/ &7

4.6 Impact of LIBOR Reform

As disclosed in Note 2.2(a), tH2BUnibankGroupcurrently has exposure to contracts which
reference LIBOR and extend beyond 2021, including swaps which will transition under the
ISDA protocols.

In 2020, thé>arenBank established a steering committee, consisting of key finance, risk,
information tehnology treasury, legal and compliance personnel and external advisors, to
oversee thBDO UnibankGroupLIBOR transition plan. This steering committee put in

place a transition project for those contracts which reference USD LIBOR to transition them
to SOFR, with the aim of minimizing the potential disruption to business and mitigating
operational and conduct risks and possible financial losses. This transition project is consic
changes to systems, processes, risk management and valuatias mweatleds, managing

related tax and accounting implications. As at December 31, 2021, changes required to sy
processes and models have been identified and have been partially implemented. There h
been general communications with counterpdmtiespecific changes to contracts required by
LIBOR reform have not yet been proposed or agreedBO@dJnibankGroup has identified

that the areas of most significant risk arising from the replacement of LIBOR are: (i) updatin
systems and processegctvicapture LIBOR referenced contracts; (i) amending affected
contracts, or existing fallback/transition clauses not operating as antagdtedreviewing
mismatches in timing of derivatives and loans transitioning from LIBOR and the resulting
impact on economic risk management

TheBDO UnibankGroupcontinues to engage with industry participants and the B&sure
an orderly transition to SOFR anthimize the risks arising frahetransition The BDO
Unibank Grougontinuato identify and assess risks associated with USD LIBOR replacemel
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The following table contains details of all of the financial instruments that the BDO Unibank
Group and the Parent Bank hold at December 31f@02&h LIBOR rate thahave not yet
transitioned to SOFR or an alternative interest rate bendnwdRecember 31, 2021:

Carrying value Notional amount
BDO Unibank Group
USD LIBOR P 353,525 P 366,610
GBP LIBOR 2,959 3,226
EURLIBOR 1,218 460
JPY LIBOR 135 47
P 357,837 P 370,343
Parent Bank
USD LIBOR P 352,347 P 309,088
GBP LIBOR 2,959 3,226
EURLIBOR 1,218 460
JPY LIBOR 135 46
P 356,659 P 312,820

The breakdown of the financial instruments betweederorative financial assets and
liabilities and derivatiiestruments are as follows:

Carrying value Notional amount
BDO Unibank Group

Non-derivative financial asséts

Loans and other receivables P 158,669 P -
Non-derivative financial liabiliti@s

Bills payable 41,534 -

Other liabilities 9,282 -
Derivatives

With positivdair values 6,223 183,02

With negativéair values ( 5,89) 187,33

P 210,079 P 370,343
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Carrying value Notional amount
Parent Bank

Non-derivative financial asséts

Loans and other receivables P 157,976 P -
Non-derivativdinancial liabilitie$

Bills payable 41,534 -

Other liabilities 9,282 -
Derivatives:

With positive fair values 2,430 154973

With negative fair values ( 2,32) 157,82

P 208,901 P 312,820

The following are the key risks for Bi2O Unibank Grougarising from the transition.

x Liquidity risk: There are fundamental differences between LIBOR and the various
alternative benchmark rates whicrBB© Unibank Grouwill be adoptingLIBOR are
forwardlooking term rates published for a period (argemonths) at the beginning o
that period and include an inbemk credit spread, whereas alternative benchmark rates
are typically riskee overnight rates published at the end of the overnight period with no
embedded credit spread. These differences will result in additiertainiy regarding
floating rate interest payments which will require additional liquidity management. The
BDO Unibank Grougs liquidity risk management policy has been updated to ensure
sufficient liquid resources to accommodate unexpected increasesigt rates.

x Litigation risk: If no agreement is reached to implement the interest rate benchmark refo
on existing contracts (e.g., arising from differing interpretation of existing fallback terms)
there is a risk of prolonged disputes with copentiees which could give rise to additional
legal and other costs. TBIBO Unibank Groups working closely with all counterparties
to avoid this from occurring.

X Operational risk: Thé&'2 8 Q L E D Q NcurteR Xe&ashty management system is
undergoing upgrades to fully manage the transition to alternative benchmark rates and t
is a risk that such upgrades are not fully functional in time, resulting in additional manua
procedures which give rise te@iional risksTheBDO Unibank Groups working
closely with its system provider to ensure the relevant updates are made in good time al
theBDO Unibank Groughas alternative manual procedurggacewith relevant controls
to address any potentialagye



$ % & 0% C9 )&
+ %% " # 5 $ I % % |
% # % ( % $$ # -
%$ % $ (% ! Uo#
+ % # $ # 0 %"

mIin o+ %% % 1&" 1 %
& " 02"#3 $% &' ' "0 I
I &" % %% 1 % 02"#
3$"( + & % $$+ 1% O
4 ' ( 02" #3 $ "% $ &"
- &" % 02"#3 $ % $

+ # % $ % $ $ (
% $ / + /
- I " # % $ ( % !
02"#3 $ & %% % $ ( % ( 0
2"#3 $ % $ " ( I $ #6/
- $ #6" $ ( '%/#1 +

71 1 % /I ( 02"#3 $
% 8
)* %% 9( - )9- * ! o #6/
y*- % | 1.1 #6/ :
;1 % ) % - % ¥ ! .1 #e/
)* $ + 0L el %$ ! 9-

$
) * $ my *1,. "< $ < %

% " = / % / " ,
- $ > 9-  $ - $
-3 < 1g
? # ! . ! | % +
"6 % !$ $ !



02"#3 $ % % $ " $% +
% # | ] + $% P %% !
+ 1 $ 5 > 02" # >
% S % " /
+ mo- $ 3
2 14 + "#] % "
%% / % %% $ ( % ! " 10
4 ows | e $ >
4 1 %/ #! %
% % "#)0&* / $ $ %
$ % 1 # 0&
" + YOA™ $ %
%$ - @A (% % 0& + !
% I $ P % |/
- @A ( % "% |/ 9- %
2 - 0& $ $
/| @A "% 9- $ I % . Al "
7( "# $ $ / . %$
1 9- % " "< $ < % % =
/ % /" , .-
0 %" 4
02"#3 $ #5 $ 3 ) %$
! $3 B?*" #6" $ 1 %/ #
10 %" I /8
p
#3 % %
&% '())
- $
9_ *'('++ **('*
' - ( (
“H(+ <0+
- $ ) () )*(),
_ ? $ K[ K *"(*
0 . (. (=1
- 5,8 '+, - (+
- ? #6C )(= *(+) )(, -(-*-
$ 8
- (' % %
$ ! #1/ *-0 *)0
- $ 2 '+0 "0
- 9-? "0 "0



43 % %

0 %"
- 3
9- 17 17
147 1 4
- $ 71 74
-7 $ 77 77
0 ) 4 *) 4 *
- 3 1 [ 47
- 7?7 #6C 1 7 7
$ 8
- ( I $ 1$
$ ! #1/ 7. 4.
- % 7 7
N 1
' ! $ 3 02" #3 $ # o+
%$ /% " YO #6/
) 1
44
/I $+ %$ % + L%/ #
$5% % #6" 5 (% &
% %% + Lo " %% / %
- &&& + ! 1'$ % ) 0§ *
S % 6" + + !
$ ne" %
- 02"#3 $ #5 && & + $
! /8
))
"#$ %

=i
1 n
o

%

(523
1n(n

o

IN



2 1 3% 4
! I $+
%$ % ( + )A o
/ &&& " % # ( 02"#3 $
% + " @ ; A( ' )@A* % $ /!
6 $ - 02 "#3 S ! %S/
A?2% %% ( % ! .+ I +
- 02"#3 $5 6 % ( $ !
$ ' ( % ( #! % @A
! "l + I+
$+ % #
- 02" #3 $5 #5 A? 10 %"
> "
))
"# $ %
- #1@ D
. A( * %0 1. 47.
- 1/
%
- #1@ D
L A *0
- I/
"B ? ) B? 1
"#
% !+ | "o ( ! #+ 6
% > - B? %% A?/ $ % 6 % !
02"#3 $5 ( $!
- 02"#3 $ ! %$ / B 2% %% ( % !
+ n +
-$% 6 % ( # 02"#3 $%
"l $ %$ ! 116" +
# % "<+ %+ 6 %/ !

$ % % !! # 6 6"



- 02"#3 % #5 && & B? 10 %"
%% > " /
))
"# $ %
+ " " B ) 0 1.
?( ' B
%
+ " " B ) 0 17.
?( " B
3 n
, 5 553 5
02"#3 $5 % $ " > % $
I+ $+ I % # + |/
% $ " - " 102" #
3% $ I'$ 6% # | 6% #
+
= O I 02"#3 $5! + + $% $
% & % $ % | I ( + +
" 0% " B? 4 %"
$% & $% D ) $ % *
I % % + 1 % %
$H%N15 $ % D$ + + $
$ % - + / $
N ! + 4+ I
$% 71 % % D$ + 6 + 9
$ / +
$% 5 6 & &$ + " H# %
$% 5 & & " H | " "%+
$ + % $ +
$ ! $ +
$%"'75 D % % % ! / +
$ $ " %
- % " /| 02"#3 $ % % I %
"/ % % % % %

& 6 % %



B " % ! !
$ % & ! ! ! 02" #3 $5
s - % % ! % $ "/ %
% n %$ $ n %
, n /
% + ’$ n n $ % $ %
+ $ 102" #3 $ + $ "
$ % ! + $ 8
% ?+ % , % +
% " "
) 5563 6
% !'% ) + * 0 0 %"
1 /8
5
& 15 1
% % % 4 & 5 & "75
&% '())
15
B %, %
& % *( - (+ 7 ) ) (-
& $ (Lt /. -/ N/ . /. /. ('
% )-(+' (+ ol X (*
& % +
& % ) 8 8 ' )
& $ /. */. */. . /. /. /
% ' */ . */. )+ +/ */ . **/
$ %
&+ % "# | 8 )0, + 8 8 8 8 )0+
O] ) * + )1 (*) * (-
O] W * + ) (*) * +(H+
15 - )+ )+ (+* N+ *+ (=+-
9 55
$ $
0%
% > +(*)* + -) ! - + * *
&%$ % (s )/ )/ + 8 -(,
@] =) 0* + ( ) ) -+
( ) 0] + O - H(-
% $ % *(*+ ( 0) ins (- * 0)
8 (+* * * ) + X -
3 & ol (d () )>* )(-)* + *+(
3 64 & 5
O‘I% (.(+ ( (- 0+ +)( *() oG
) " * 6 '(+*' . */ . / ‘(_ '+
& " - * - ) 8 wok ("
(O (+ s 0% (- :C (ot
' ( ) ( +(-) ( -+ )()) 0-C-
"7 5 6
$ 8 8] ) ) ) (* ) (-
&+ %
( % 8 8 8 8 8 (*- (*
$!
! 8 8 8 8 8 +* +*




& 15
% % % 5 & 75
0 %"
?+
B % , %
& % 4 1 44 1
& ’$ ) *) *) *) 4*) 4*) *
% 1 11 ) * 1
& % +
& % 4 6
& $ ) *) 1*) *) 4* ) 4*) 1
% ) 7*) * ) 1*) 7*
$ %
&+ % "# | 6 7 6 6 6 6 7
44 4 714 77 44
4 4 714 77
- + 7 7 7 47 71 7
9,$
$ $
0%
% > 4 4 11 7
&%$ % 17 77 7 6 7
4 47 41 7 71
4 7 1 7 4 77
% $ % 7 4 1 7 4 4 71
-8 7 1 1 111
% % 411 77 1 1 71 1 4
% !B
% 774 17 7 44 7 7
0! ,
)" *6 4 ) 7 ) * 1
& 11 7 71 6 41
1 71 77 177 74 7
- " 4114 1 4 4 77
% %
$ 8 7 7 7 7 74
&+ %
( % 6 6 6 6
$!
! 6 6 6 6 71 71




0 %"
?+
B % , %
& %
& $
%
& % +
& %
& $
%
$ %
&+ % " #
- +
9,%
$ $
0%

% >
&%$ %
% $ %

-8
% %
% !B
%
0!

)r e
&

% ! %
$ 8
&+ %

%

$!

& 15 1
% % % 4 5 & "75
7 7 1 1
4 * ) 7*%) 4*) 4*) *) 7 4%
47 1 4 a1 7 1 4
7 6 4 7
*) 1*) 1*) ) ) 47%) 4+
7 ) *) 1*) ) 7*) *
6 1 6 6 6 6 1
77 47 7 7 11 41 71
77 47 11 7 11 a1 47
4 11 74 7 47 417
147 1 17 41 4 44
4 4 6 1
444 4 4 7
1 4 77 4
14 1 4 77 7
7 1 7
777 1 41 71 41 1 7
4 4 11 741 4 4 141
4414 ) 7* 74 ) 41
7 4
1 74 47 4
1.4 4 1 74 7 47 447
4 1 7
6 6 6 74 74
6 6 6 ) 7+ 14




%

%

o2"

#3 $5 %% ' %
! %
))
(-+- 7 417
-(+-/ ) * ) 1 *
)(- 44 4
*+(' 4 7
¢ ) 1+ ) 77*
*)(+ 4 7 77 4
'(H'( + 7
*x()* [ ) 7 * ) 7 *
()'(=* 17 44 4 4
0-( - 447
+(./ ) 14 * ) *
Q0 4 41 44 1




"3 1"443
3
5 6
% I+
% I
"# $ %
B
% > 8
%
0!%
0!% " #
A 4
&+ %
B BE- A
B BE &
B
% > 8
0$ n
$ n
&
I+ D

ll44

333 14
4 5
¥ ! "
[ $
))
555
; 4 4
5 .
( 8 ( (
i *( , 8 ' *( , ' *( -
-() 8 -() -()
GG 8 ) )50
_(*! 8 _(*l _(*!
o 8 (o e
8 *_( % *_( % *_( %
8 (- (- (-
' ( ) +(5)- '( ()= (0.,
)(#) (+, 8 )(#) (+, )+
) *(* 8 ) ) (++
(O 8 O+ O+
(+ 8 (- (-
8 (%) (% (%
(N (=% (£+0-) '0'Q




02"#3 &

B
"% > 8
%
0!%
0!% " #
A +
&+ %
B BE- A
B BE &
B "
"% > 8
0$ n
$ n
& "
o+ =
%
B
"% > 8
%
0!%
0!% "#
A +
&+ %
B BE- A
B BE &

"% > 'B B
E '% E
174 6 174 174
4 6 4 4 1
4 6 4 4
4 6 4
6
44 4 4 4
6 1 1 1
6 47 44 47 44 47 44
744 44 414
6
177 6 177 4
47 6 47 47
4 4 4
6 7 7 7
1 7 17 44
))
555
; 4 4
5 .
”(** 8 ”(** ”(**
)G 8 G G
,*('* 8 ’*('* ’*('*
) (+ 8 ) (+ )()0)
() 8 () ()
(') 8 =-('+) 0
8 *(’ , *(, , *(, ,
8 (. (. (@
'0-( ) (+ (" (- '(")O-+




%

1)

555
; 4 4
5
"% > 8
0o " ICHC 8 ) (- )+ (H
$ " (- 8 (- +(-,
! (- 8 +)( - +)( -
ot D
" 8 (%) )(*.) )(*)
'+, )(*) ("Q.+ (- (+t
"% > 'B B
E "% E
"% > 8
% 1 6 1 1
0!'% 1 6 1
0'% "# 4 6 4 4
A +" 4 6 4 1
447 6 447 447
&+ % 11 6 11 4
B BE-A 6 74 74 74
B BE & 6
14 147 4 1
"% > 8
0% 74 6 74 41
$ " 41 6 41 4 47
" 4 7 6 4 7 4 7

4 1 4 1 41 7




& /| B? " ) !
! " 6! / %
6 " " %
+ / + B?
" ! I'$ % !
I/ + 8
A+ 8( $ ) < = + % # |
% %
A+ 8 $ ( % /
n ) $ *
A+ 8 $ ! " "
) AT s
-+ /] I I "
[+ 1 $ ! + %
B$$ ! % % # + A+
( $ + "% ,
$3 + $
% # %5 "
B + % / +( %#$
$" 3 % + (
% # + I % / "
# 1 $ "
"ol %
C 02"#3 $ + ( % |,
% # / + " $ "
! $ % I+ !

% A+ /

+ 11
I+
[ A
> +
+ -1+
A+ "o
) + 1 %$
"t % #
! % "
%
% # + |
" H#
$
I+ % "
"ol
% | #
$ /!
% > P+
$ ! % &!
% R
A+

!
*.



- ! ! 10 %" $
! + $ n n / $
2( 1$ ! %% |+
%$
"# $ %
1 1) 1
& $ '())
? 8
B BE- A8
9 6 ( )+(-) )+ 8 ",
3+ % " (*)- 8 8 *)-
$ ! (+1 '( I 8 *(1'
0+ +! 8 () 8 ()
() ) 8 o
B BE &8
3+ % " (+ 8 8 (+)
$ 0- 8 8 0-
9 6 ( () )++ 8 (
9( 6 ( 8 8 ) )
(+ )+ ) (
) (*+ ) - ) ) +(-)-
A" D
0+ + / +
I+ ( 8 (%)
0 %"
? 8
B BE- A8
9( 6 ( 7 4 6 7
3+ % " 7 6 6 7
$ " 47 7 6 11
0 + +! 6 174 6 7174
141 7 6 1
B BE &8
3+ % " 1 6 6 1
$ 4 6 6 4
9( 6 ( 4 7 6
9( 6 ( 6 6
47 44 7 47 44
7 74
A" D
0+ + / +




%

& $ '())
? 8
B BE- A8
3+ % "
0 + +!
$
9 6 (
B BE &8
3+ % "
$ n
9 6 (
9( 6 (
A" D
0O+ + / +
I+

$% 9

? 8
B BE- A8
3+ % "
0O + +!
$ n
9 6 (
B BE &8
3+ % "
$
9 6 (
9( 6 (
A" D
0+ + / +
I+
+ " | |
" $
02"#3 $
$% (
BE & + ! +

1 1) 1"
( 8 8 (
8 ) 8 )
))- 8 8 ))-
8 8
)(*- )(*, 8 *(o
-(-+ 8 8 -(-+
M0 - 8 8 )0 -
¢, )+) 8 (++
8 8 )+) )+)
(* )+) )+) (.
(*+ )( )+) ) (+
)(- 8 )(*,)
1 6 6 1
6 1 6 1
6 6
6 6
1 6 74
4 77 6 6 4 77
7 47 6 6 7 47
7 6 7 4
6 6
717
1 4 147
4
$ 3
% "+ !
%
BE-A |
% " $
A+



B BE- A A+ $
&+ % - B )2&B* - I +
+ + $ ) %S
P %" !
$" """ # &+ % %$

31" Lo B
$ + 1 %% #
+ % %# $ 9

% / ! % !

$#%0 "

/- >/ A+ A+

$9B + 1$6 % o+ %
+ % % LS
EA - EA ! %$ "

+ $$ " % (

% 1"+ "+ %S

$%B% 3 « - I+
% 6% / %% +
$$ %"

$1% 0 + +

-+ 128" 1 $$ )? *

/| A+ % " % 6
P 6 % # %#

! % / > |/

+ ( $ + %3



-t 4 & 5 5 5 ;, 56 =7&’74 : 5
15& 5
- $ %% > I+ 10
2"#3 % #5 | ! " / %
% > % Il $ R A B
"# $ %
1 1) 1
&% '())
? 8
% ( 8 8 . (
0!'% YR - 8 8 TR -
0! % # -() 8 8 -()
&+ % % > " (-, 8 8 e
A +" )- 8 (o )*0*
(+ 8 O+ -(*,
+ ( 8 ) ¢ ("
A" 8
0% 8 8 Y+, ),
$ " 8 )0’ (- ) (++
& 8 8 () ()
8 8 (+- (+-
8 ) (') Q) (-+-
0 %"
? 8
% 17 4 6 6 17 4
0!'% 4 1 6 6 4 1
0!'% "# 4 6 4
&+ % % > 6 6 4
A + " 7
41 71
11 6 4 71
A" 8
0% 6 6
$ " 6 7174 74 4
& 6 47 47
6 6 4 4
6 7174 47 77 7




%

1 1) 1
&% '())
? 8
% ”(** 8 8 (**
0!% ), 8 8 G
0!'% "# F(* 8 8 (*
&+ % % > - ()n 8 8 - ()H
A +" 8 8 )IGDI0) (B ]0))
(-+* 8 + (=)
+ +( 8 Y- 0 (-
A" 8
0% 8 8 Y+ )
$ " 8 )0’ () +(-,
" 8 8 +)(_- +)( -
8 ' (-0,
0 %"
? 8
% 1 6 6 1
0!% 6
0!'% "# 4 6 4
&+ % % > 4 1 6 6 4 1
A +" 6 1 1
41 14 447
1 717 6 1
A" 8
0% 6 6 41 41
$ " 6 7174 7 4 47
" 6 6 4 7 4 7
6 7174 1 1 4117
B ! ! " % % % I
6 %! % 35 ,% I+ -1
% % I+ Il ! " $
% 1! $ % >
$% *
$ % I I % | $$
02"#3 % #5 + $ !
% % ) 4%
% %
) * # " # " /
+ | 02"#3 % #5 6!l %
! " H % $5,% ! + + /
1 + 6 % % ! %



O!'% $ $ % " 02"
+ (% -+
+ $ % -
6" $ "
% # "/ %
6 % $ 33 ,% % +
$!1% ! , -
-+ I + % % >
$" 0 ( + % # |
$% * | #
A +" '$ + !
+ ! +" $
L% "+ 9% I/
% ! +
$%
- % o+ 1% $
6 6" $ % $ "
+ I 6 %!, 6" $
/" % %
" A+ %$ "
$$ %" B "
2"#3 $ # Il
$ "+t O # / ! [
+ % " %
5 "+ 8 "
$$ , % I+
$% * l #
0 % !
% I $

#

%

33

%

%S % -
%

> |/

$$ , %

%

%

$

#



- 4 5 6 86 & 555
0 102"#3 $ #5 + % $3 I %
n ! + !O %ll /ll /
"# $ %
1 1) 1
1&3$ '())
&+ % $ %
A 8 8 )-(* )-(*
%$ + % 8 8 )(-+, )(-+,
6 ! 8 8 (+) (+)
8 8 *( *(
0 %"
&+ % $ %
A 6 6 74 74
%$ + % 6 6 17 17
6 ! 6 6
6 6 7 7
%
1 1) 1
&% '())
&+ % $° %
A 8 8 ) (+ ) (+
%$ + % 8 8 (- (-
6 ! 8 8 (+)* (£)*
8 8 *( *(
0 %"
&+ % $ %
A 6 6 44 44
%% + % 6 6 7 7
6 ! 6 6




I+ 1 + % $% !
10 %" ) 7%/
$ + "
$$8 (! 5
- % , + $ |/
/ % 9% | 02"#3 $
% I $ >
%% " $ $ $3
& % I+ 1 $% %
$ $5°" % " |
% % 5 % "
02"#3 $ # "+
"+ % $$ /
# % I+ I+
!
I+ 1 + % $%
I/ $$ 8
$% (
A+ I+ 1/ +
! $3 /] < 11
$$ > > " %
$$ $ $ (!
+ M+ !
%$ $$ !
" 1+ A+
I %$ $,%
% < % $ %
! % #3% $
$#% (
A+ |+ %3 +
$ % $$ !
I %% "
- % ! $
I " %
% ( $% + $ %
|
| % + $$ 5( %
2 $$ %
'+ | $%
+ (
! 6! '
A+ | +

02"#3 $ #

% R

$ $$ +

+ '$ $
8%

#1 %

% # % #

! + % $9%

02" #3 $.
% $9$ 6



$1% Y ,
-+ ! ! % " 5
+ 1 % $% -+ % A+ 9 %
|+ % # $$ ! $ !
% $9% < 1o $3
- + ( "02"#3 $
! 6! B / ! TA+ I+
-, "665 4 & 555 4 & ) 5
- ! 02" #3 $ #1 %
$ % I $ 10 %" "<
I " 0 % % %
"# $ %
4 &
$ 5
4 & 1 9%
555 6 3 866 &1
&% '())
4 & 555 4. >
/% , - -) 8 *
& /$ * 8
5 & 1$5?
?2 +" 1% % ) (* - 8 ).(). 0+
‘(- . )0, "
0 %"
B BE- A8
/% 1 6
& /$ 6 7
A +" D
? +" 1% % 71 6 7 7
77744 71 7 7
%
&% '())
4 & 555 4. >
/% 8 8
& /$ * ' 8
5 & 1$5?
?2 +" 1% % ).(* 8 ).(* 8




#
0 %"
B BE- A >
/$
& /$
A +" D
?2 +" 1% %
L/ /$
$ n ll< | n %
6! $ %
-7 ! / %
$ I 02"#3 $
" % %
"# $ %
1&$ '())
'5 $ 5
5 $
11 15=7 1
6 1 5>
/$
& /$
0 %"
0%
0O+ + / +
I+ 8
/$
& /'$

B
A"
B + "
' 6!l + "%
6
7 6
7 177 6 7 177 6
7 47 7 177
+ n
% "/
! $
$ % I
# '< 1
% %
4 &
555
4 & 1%
$ 5 6 3 866 1
')(I ' )1() ’ 8 !( o
(++ 8 (++ 8
1) ') 8
-) 8
*(+) ). (+*- (++ 0*-
4 4 7 7 77
74 1 6 11
6
44 1 7 74 6 7711




%

1&$ '())

!5 ¢ 5

1'115=7
6 1 5>

1

/$

3< | 3@ << 3

- %$

0!'% 8

%

%

/

8

)

4 &
55 5
4 & 1 %
$ 5 6 3 866 1
N0)) ). (* 8 (-
) 8
- 8
¢ L 8 0%
4 1 7 177 6 77
14 6 11
6 6
4 7 7 47 6 7
"< 1" o
% "/ 02" #
[ + 1
L L
n mn /+
% % | + $
ol $
"# $ % %
)) ))
( 17 4 L 1
)-(° 71 ) (-- 77
(' 7 ('
i 4 (.. 1
x( 4 741 ' ( 11 4




= + $ I $ % /
% + (% + | "H# %
) 1*
- #$ 8+ ) * %$ /
& ! ( %
10 %" " I % 11 7
$ $ ! 0 !%
0!% , % + /
I /8
))
0? 0 .D7 . .D71.
- % % 741 4 7
$ + 02"#3 $5 % I % 74 44
71 $ + #5 % ! %
) *
% " / (+
I % ! 1/$
I# 4" "< A3
- ! $ $ / I/ 8
"# 3 % %
)) ))
B "# W+ 7 (!
A "# (- (.
_() 4 .*('* 4
- " H I /8
"#$ % %
)) ))
2 -(,, 41 *(*+ 11
! ) 4 -+ 1
$ 8 (, 7
_() 4 .*('* 4




)*

$ I %8
))
02"#3 $ 0? O 4. 1.
# 0? 0
$ / -
% % 1 $ +
02"#3 $5 % | % 7 41
$ + # % I %) * 0 1%
"4 (+ ! % 1/$$
I 1 :3 3# 3
- %$ ! /"
"# 3 % %
)) ))
B
BE- A (" 1 *., 74
B
BE & - 47 44 (,
&+ %
% >
6 -("* 4 4 --('+) 11
0 44 * () 7
4 & 555 4
- % ! 1 /8
"# $ % %
)) ))
0 + +1 0 774 ), 1
3+ % " (*)- 7 ( 1
$ " *(,- 11 ))-
(+ 74 *(, 74
9( 6 ( (. 7
*_('* 1 *(.' 74




to BE- A ! -0 % ) *
R BE- A 0 2" #3 $ #
"# $ %
1)
& % ) 1
- ) * 6 )*/
0+ % + 1 1
B , ) * - ) 7*) 77 *
- % ) * )/ 4
- $ 1
% 4 7
%
1)
& % 47 41
- ) ¥ 6 4/ 7 1
% ) * +/ /
o+ P BE- A P 02"#3 &
# I %8
1)
3+ % " ++07? .0 .D 44.D
$ ! 0?7+ 0 .D4 .D4 .
B 6 % % 1 10 %"
$ + 02" #3 $5 % ! $
1 1 10 %" $ + #5
% ! $
0 + + % "02"#3 $ !
1/ H! ! /$ B
L/ H! $ %% % $ "
+ $ /% !
$! 3 B /'$ %% %
, P/ & % + 1 % + + %
$ | H) *) *



- % ! + + | %
I+ I+ + ! " /"
F 1) *) ¥)7*G
))
4 : 5 B E
555 $ _5 '% A"
"# 3 %
L/ H 0%, X ) + 11 47 11 1
/s 0 *(* (e 7714 44
& /$ '(+, '
& ! G, 8 7 6
? +(*- 8 471 6 4
' ( 0) (=¥ 71 7 774 7
%
1/ H e )+, N& 117 71
$ +(-) ) ) 4 77 44
& /$ +(+ * 4 4 7
? +(*- 8 ) 471 6 4
" () ) )(*) 477 1
I BE-A! 02" #3 $ # %
4 $ + $ + II<
I + + + 1+ I 02"#3 $
# % 1 $ + 1 1
$ + - [ % % %
% / " ) 1~
) 4 & 555 4"
! % ! ! 1 /8
"# $ % %
)) ))
3+ % " (+ 1 -(-+ 4 77
$ " 0- 4 *)() - 7 47
9( 8
: ( (++ 74
( ) )+)
- (- 47 44 (.
%% ! / 8
"# $ % %
)) ))
B +,(+* 44 174 (- 1 1
$$5 % +'(+ * (-t
- (- 47 44 (.




I+
I+

o+ ¥

"# $ %

3+ % "
$ n

%
3+ % n

-+ L+ %
% ll!

( )
- !
|
0%
2 > 1 + )
B +
? 0> I+ )
BE &
? !
0! ,

$ " /
"# $ % %
)) ))
-+ 1 (- 74
1*(I* 4 *1(I! 7 1
++(,,' 1 (+, 1
- (- 47 44 (,
BE I %8
))
,0?2) 0 .D 1.D
)'0?+)0 .D4 4.D
,07? .D .
) '0?-'+0 .D4 4.D
" $ +
$" $ + % # ,$!
1 *
% I BE & I /8
"# 3 % %
)) ))
+(++ 7 ),()) 4
*_’( . 11 **’(+’_ 41
*+ (- ) 441* *) ) 7 *
0/ 771 )O)*
*(* 7 7* *() ) 7 *
i )/
)+ 6 )+
/ 7 . /




- | > 1+ ! BE & $
( /"]
"# $ % %
)) ))
! (+ ) 17 * o) 44
> 1+
) 8
B + y o+
0/ 771 . YO* I
9,%
BE & ++/ 1 /
or / / 6
)/ 7 * | 74
?2 >0+ ) *
$
6 ' )/
! (! 7 4 | 7
- # $ BE & ( %
$ + |/ 02"# 3% % IBE & (
% 77 411 $ +
2 > 1+ > 23A !
$ ! " ! $ B , $! "
! BE &/ I+ "# 3!
&%3$ % ) + > | BE & " $ 23A
02"#3 $ # % )4 4* HY1* $ +
1 $ + $ 0+ - %
%$ % $ 23A 02 "#3 $ #
% 1 $ + 10 %" 1 4
$ + 10 % )y 7 *
! 15 3& 5 )
- 18
"# $ % %
)) ))
3+ % "
(! 4 7 () 771
$ 11}
8
; 0 4 () 7
( *(+ 7 (+ 7
"( 447 - (+- 7
A
%S$ % (*-1 ) * 1) 1%
L 4 4 - ('+) 11




W T

%$ %

o+

3% #

"# $ %

3+ %
$ n

%
3+ %

% ! ! / 8
"# $ % %
)) ))
() 7 0 711
)"( 1 ) H(*-
C(* 4 4 '—-('+) 11
I $ " /
"# $ % %
)) ))
) 0+ 7 )-( 71
n(+ 1 ( 4
) (. 1 *(+ 17
C(* 4 4 '—-('+) 11
%% I+ % % >
"# $ % %
)) ))
)+, (+ 4 )-(-) 71 4
() 111 ( 4
HN ) 441~ . J)) 4 =
(7' ) 1 4* +(-* ) 1 71*
) ) * ) *
L 44 —(+) 11
I + % % > r" 02"#
I %8
))
" +0? +)0 .D 4 4.D 4 .
) '0?+*0 .D 4.D
" +0? +)0 4.D 4 4.D 4 .
) '0?-++0 .D 4.D



- 02"#3 $ # $ ! " I %
% > $! % 4 $ +
% 14 / 1/ $
% 7 P 02"#3 $
# - 3 / " ! $!
! / $ I % ( $
$ I 02"#3 $ # 0" %
/ " E&O6 $ % = % $
! + % / 02"#3 $5
#5 + % % > " % / "< o+ |
L/ + (! $ % + ! 02"#
3 $ " % % ! % ( % ! B?
- I+ % /I $$+ " &+ % %%
%n$ | % ( % !
"% 4 + % " $ /
n 3 !II< 3
- I 1/ 8
"#$ % %
)) ))
?2 +" 1% % 8
A 1 )0 ( 441 )(.0+) 7
+" J(-+ 7 J(-+ 7
% 5 "
$ +(- 4147 +(- 4147
$ +(s 47 +(' + 4
) (- 4 )W (X 71
2
) 4 . 1) *
Ll %% % 070 0) 7_*. J0-* ) 4*
(H ) *, SO L) 7 *
W(*(* 14 YQ++()-- 1
+" 8
& " # +" ) 1 ®) 1
?+ $
% -( 1 (+ 7
+" 1 +( 1 0=
+" 0+ 0), 11
& 8
+(~k‘ 1 * * 7
L %S % W) 7+ NEND) 4+
(. 7 (- 4 4
)3 4 ) (+ 4
% Sl +" 1% % ) ! *
n % % $ n /
"# 3 % %
)) ))
A - 1 1 +(+ 111
I+ + () 1 - ( 111
I+ +*(") 1 1 +*-(** 1
* (' 1 ) ( 77




SN ) o+ 1% % !
* $ ! I /8
"# 3 % %
)) ))
E (H+ (* 4 44 ¢+, 47 4
B, *(- 77 4 *p(* 7 7
)* (' 1 ) ( 77
' 1 048
))
A 0?, ,0 .D7 4. .D7 1.
+" '0? 0 7.D .D
- % % 8
"# $ %
))
A )(* 1 7 77
+" ( 7 47
)*(*+ 41 7 4
%
))
A +(”-
+ " + 4 4
( 7 4
& % > %% +" O 7 1
47 $ + | 02"#3 %
7 144 $ + ! #
+" 1% % ! 02" #3 $
% 71 7 $ + 7 1 7177 $ +
"< 1 / $ + % |
% 7 $ + 7 7 7 177
$ + | ! " I > O
/ ") 1*
&%$ % > | +" I 02"#3 %
# % 1 1 $ +
$ + 4 1 $ + ) *




)

33(4# # (4B# 3 | C#

- % % $ % > %$ % !
n
$% | N ( $%
/ n / $
#$ %
4 57 5 & 7868
49 5 75 #5
2 5 1 55 55 5
0 %"
47 141 777 41 17 41
)
$
% > 6 ) 41 a7 %) * 6 77%) 70
o
&%S$ % ) * ) 7+ 6 ) 7+ 6 6 6 71*
% *a ¢ . e C. 0+ -
0 %"
47 17 1 14 11 77 4
"%
$ I
% > 6 ) 1) 47 %) * 6 77%) 7
VAN
8%S$ % ) * ) 1* 6 ) 1* 6 6 6 ) 71*
% 4.7 71 7 11 7 7
4 14 1 1 7
"%
$ |
% > 6 ) ) 1174 % ) 4 6 7 %) *
VA
%S % ) * ) * 6 ) 1 * 6 6 6 7%
% 1 1 71 7 1 74 7
%
4 57 5 & 7868
49 5 75 #5
2 5 1 55 55 5
0 %"
1 77 17 171 7 14
"%
$
% > 6 ) 74% ) 414 * ) 1+ 6 *) 44
VA
%S % ) * ) 1* 6 ) * 6 6 6 ) 7
% () N (* O (* ( *(+
0 %"
1 1 1 1 77 1
C %
$
% > 6 ) 7 %) 141+ ) 17 * 6 7 1%) 11*
VA
&%S$ % ) * ) * 6 ) 1+ 6 6 6 ) 7+
% 17 1474 1 4 74
17 4 7 14 141
"%
$
% > 6 ) 71 ) 14 %) 4% 6 41%) 141*
VA
8%S$ % ) * ) * 6 ) 1 * 6 6 6 ) 7 *
% 1 4 17 44 1 7 777




1$ % |

%

' %
$
% >
%$ %
03%
? !
'< %
?+
B +
0%

% >
1

0 %"
I %
% >
%$ %

I %
$
%

>
%$ %

0 %"
I %
% >
%$ %

%

I %
$
% >
%$ %
0%
?
'< %
?+
B +
0%

% >
1

0 %"
I %
% >
%S$ %

I %
$
%

>
%$ %

0 %"
' %
% >
%$ %

2 + 0Op
I " #5

02" #3 $

"

"
L, ( $% [
4 57 5 & 7868
49 5 75 #5
2 5 1 55 55 5
47 71 7 11 77
47 4 1
6 ) *) 71 * 6 6 ) *
1 4 1 1) 1+ 6 14
6 6 6 ) * 6 ) 7 %) 71*
) 1x 6 6 ) *) * 6 ) 7*
6 7
6 ) 7% ) * ) 1+ 6 ) *) 11 *
+( (* X (*- ( 0+ fa C
1 1 71 7 1 74 7
1 4 7 1 11 74 7
) w) 1* ) * ) 1* 6 6 ) *
4 7 ) 41 * 6 71
6 1) 7)) * 6 6
6 ) * 6 6 6 6 ) *
6 ) 7 ) 11*) 147 * 6 ) *) 177+
4.7 71 7 11 77
4 57 5 & 7868
49 5 75 #5
2 5 1 55 55 5
17 1474 1 4 74
1 7
6 ) 1* ) 7)) * 6 6 ) *
1+ 4 11 1) 1* 6 14
6 6 6 6 6 ) 71%) 71*
) 1* 6 6 6 ) * 6 ) *
6 6 6 6
6 ) 4. ) 4*) 4* 6 ) 74* ) 1*
-(*) (s (> 0)* * (- * (4,
1 4 17 44 1 7 777
1 77 1 1 4 7 4
6 ) 1* ) 1) 1* 6 6 ) *
4 7 ) 41+ 6 7
6 6 6 ) * 6 6 ) *
6 ) 1*) * ) 47 6 ) 1*) 7*
17 1474 1 4 74
$% ! ! , ( $%
1 [1]
%$ $ ! 0 %

# o+ %S (%



I $  $% | 3 ($% 10 %"
" $ % 4 4
14 $ + 02" #3 $5! % 1
1 $ + #5 1 %
33
- 02"#3 $ # o+ ! .
C ,$ ! 6 % | 6+
! ? 616 % B B, 9($%
) * AT A" ) * %
I $
9 %$ [
02" #3 $ 4o $ 616
" ! 02"#3 $ A 6 %
S T % | - 02"#3 $
# $ " 1% $ B
+ n s 02"# 3% #% # $
$9 I'$ $%
! B 02"#3 & # %
% ! % /
- 102" # 3% #5
+ " $1 616 > $ 1 % B B
9( $% % !! $ 10 %"
$ 6 78685 6 1
55 5 5
) )) )
"# $ %
A + *52)% 5 % D ) 5
(+ 714 2.5 % D4 )) 5
%
A + *59%5 % D ) 5

?,5 % D1 * 5



' 7868#5 55 5

$

- % 102"#3 $
0 %" % + %
) *
"# 3 %
? !
'< %
B +
0% % >
& &% '())
0% % >
0 %"
%
? !
A
B +
0% % >
& 1&% '())
0% % >
0 %"
') 5 % 5
A " % 41 1
0 %" $ + | 02"
0 %" 0 %"
$ % ! $
- I, % $ +
#oo0," +
H % +
% ' $ , /
#5 % #
, $ 0+ 0 %"
I 02"#3 $
% ! $

#5 616
$ / n /
5
7 77
77 1
4 ) 4% 6
* ) 7 * ) 7 *
6 7 7
4* ) 7 4* ) *
*x (+ * 0+
77 74
7 1 11
71* ) 74* ) *
7 7 7
5
77 1 4
77 1
4 ) 4% 6
1* ) 7 %) 71*
* ) 74* ) 74*
* (* (
714 7
7 7 4
74* ) * ) 1*
177 1 4
O %ll
#3 $ 4
+ ! #
$ | A n ) *
02"#3 $
' % "% % !
% n
/ 02"#3 $
% " I $
% !
# " $ %



10 %" 02"#3 $ # %%
/ %%
- n n
% I n O %II O
2"#3 $ # /8
1&$ '())
"#$ %
@7 ) ) ! *
D D5 D5 D 5 D5 D5
A $% 7 4 1 71
B ) 1*) 1*) * ) 1* ) 47* ) 1*) 1*) 74 *
$ o+ )(+) ) ( O+ (- ( €S
%
@7 ) ) " *
D D5 D5 D 5 D5 D 5
A $% 4 11 1 11 7 4
B ) 1*) *) 4* ) 1*) 4% ) 1* ) 77*) 74*
$ o+ X )0* (+4) ( ( ( * (+
0 %"
02" #3 $
c 7 =
J J 3 J J J -
A $% 4 1 1 77
B ) 71%) * ) 14* ) 4% ) 1*) 4* ) 4*) 7*
$ o+ 7 7 44 1 1
#
c 7 =
J J J J J J -
A $% 74 7 17 71
B ) 77*) *) 1* ) 47+ ) * ) 1*) 14*) 1*
$ + 71 7 17 1 74
- 02"#3 $ # " $3 -
% I % " + % !
02"#3 $ $ + |

#



/I $ % 4 7

+ 02" #3 $ 44 1
$ + ! # & 5
" % 41 41 $ + !
02"#3 $ 41 1 4 $ + !
#1/ $ $ & 5 "
& 9,% % ! % ) 7*

5 5 & ;5 8 5

- 02"#3 $ # o+ > "
! 6 % ! I [+ & + "
$ % $ % " > " % %
3
- 9% 6 % /6 + % 4
7 77 ! 02"#3 %
$ + 4 [
# $ + = + % + " $% %
7 1 1! 02"#3 $ 7 1 !
# $ + - $ $ !
$ $ 9,% % ! %
) * 110 %" # +
%% % %
03 "3
&+ % $9$ " I'$ $% !
& % 1% + % $9% % % 7
4 4 7 44 02"#3 $
#5 | % $ + $ $ I1?
$ &% ) * 0o % | %
$3 , % 7
02"#3 $ #5 |
% $ + $ $ -,
$ 9,% 02"#3 $ #5 |
% $ + ) *
- % % $ %3 % "
! /" $
5
"# $ %
1&$ '())
0++ J(*+ )
' % $ 8 : *) *)/
"l %S %
) . (4 -/ ()1
% -(, (, +(-




02"#3 $
0 %"
' % $
Ll %S %
) *
%
' % $
Ll %% %
) *
%
%
1&$ '())
' % $
Ll %% %
) *
%
0 %"
' % $
Ll %S %
) *
%
' % $
Ll %% %
) *

%

5
1 74
) 711* ) 711 *
11* ) 4 * 4 *
17 4774 4
1
6 7 4* 74*
11* ) * 41 *
147 1
() (' ()
8 )/ )/
('-+/ )/ (*_/
(, (,) 0,
11 1
) 7F ) 7 *
7 * ) 7 * *
7 7
1 4 1 1
) 4x ) 4 ’
717* * *
177 4




+ % $9%
"# $ %
I %
$ %$ %
2
0%
B +
0% !
0 %"
I %
$ %$ %
I %
$ %$ %
2
0$
B +
0$ !
0 %"
I %
$ %$ %

%
/ll

/

$
5
& (e (+
1 *(* ()
). * |
/ t +)/
1 +*
8 (-1 (-1
() ( +(-
147 1
71 41 7
* ) * ) *
4* ) * *
1* ) 7% ) 71
) * ) *
17 4774 4




%
I %
$ %S$ % ¢y ) (+
I + (*_
0% / / +/
2 | ) *)/ * [
B , + . 8 ,
0% ! 8 . % ++*/
0 %"
I %
$ %$ % (, (,) 0,
I %
$ %$ % 177 4
7 147 77
0$ ) * ) * ) 47 *
? | ) * ) * ) *
B + ) 1% 6 ) 1%
0% ! 6 ) 4 * ) 4 *
0 %"
I %
$ %$ % 7 7 4
-+ L+ % $% 10 % " %
" $ ! ! $% < 1n $ %
$$ % 7 $ + | 02"#3 $5
! % 1 71 % + | #5 |
% I % " I + % %
+ % $93 $ 1
- + " % I %% + % $% 10 %"
/" + %% '/ % I+
| 4 $ +
0 2 n #3 $ n $ + $
+ % $9$ $ % %
! >" ! + % $3%
? $$ ()2 % ! !
$ % ! ! 8 + % $% !

BE & 6 !



10 %"

&+ % $$

"< 3%

- %$

GG GG&G
0!
0!

9( +
3/
%%

VA

BE &

3

%

'/ 6

%n$ %

/ % ! !/ 8
"# $ % %
)) ))
(- ()+
* 74 * 71
(* Q)
i8) 11 (*- 17
"# $ % %
)) ))
-(+) -(+)
(- F 1 0,) 14
(- 4 14 (- 4 11
(*- *(+! 11
*( ' 7 (|
|(, , |(|
‘() ‘()
(* ()
0). 444 0), 444
+ 7 +- 14
*+ 741 - 741
i 71 % 777
), 8 6
+ )* 4
8 8 14
8 8
8 8 1
(. +H( -+ 471
(+ 114 (" * 47
Q1) 4 * ) ) *
(et + (=) 4




%)

16 /7 5
0! $ % > $ ! b/ !
%% ! $ $ 1?7 +" 1%
% 6A A ? +" %
I $ ) . 9% I % $
" (% > + % | &
A6 % " ! !
0% )A-0*% $ '-% $ " 0$ A"
% I $ ) 1* -
B, ? " ) 4*
) 2 15 5
9( + % 1 1/ 8
"# $ % %
)) ))
7 5$5 5
0 /# 47 41. 8 6 +(,, 4
0 @& : 8 6 (+ 47
0 A! 1. 8 6 (& 7
0 + . 8 6 )(- 1
0A 417. 8 6 (+-+ 414
0o $ 44, 8 6 (++ 414
0& 8 6
9 % # 8 6 * 7
8 6 V(!
4 5%$5 5
07 8 6 )
07% ) $*A 8 6 )
0?2% ) *A 8 6
0?2% 2™ & 8 6 )
8 6 1
55& 5
=K$$ A & )=K$$ * . (+ 4 G+ 4
ASL $ 1. * 7 * 7
A & . )) )]
- A & - 1 - 1
0 8 6 .
'(*, 7 (
&& 2 & 751 & >
" ! ( 14 0+ 1
9( $ 1 + * 71 (' 4
9( % o+ %) * J * )(+ ) 70
0+ ) 744% Y+ +) *
0% 8 6 8 4
$ /% 8 6 8
Al 8 6 8 7
! (++) { 4
+ % H " (*- =+ 11
Ll %S % 1) * [ ) *
(* 74 (4 11
02"#3 $5 % ! " %
! # v ,$! 0OA! OA
0 / .44 7. 44, 02"#3 $ $ +
) * 1 .417. # $ + /

$+ $ "



& ! 10 A /
$ 7

+ % ! + n n
% +

02"#3 $5 " 0 %"
$ ,$! 1 /8

4 3% 5

02% )2 &
0°?

0?2% & @ EMM
0?2% 2K A MM
02% )$ * 'MM

3 "MM
02% )$ *A

02% ) *A

0?2% A% M

0?2% )= *A M

/0 # *
I # *

= 0?/ / ?
C )2K* $+ % %$ |/
A 10 %"
+ % 0? %

0?2% ) *A [ 6/ %

$ % " ! %
'10 %" #5
) YA %

&? $

010 $$+  +
"Hoo+ H#- [ LT
$$ + "

02"#3 & /" 0A
! &8

1'%

&&

I %$

#5

/

9

6!l!

" H#

[ # 1

+

%

))

))

0A * . 7.
0 /#

47

%



- I $ $ 3
0O 3% 0"
- I $ $ 3
K% 0+
+ ! $ &
- %% > !
||! $ % I
! 1
o /s
6
! 11
%
$ %
| v
/I 1 $
! " &
!
%% + %
[ B B
%% + %
"o &
& 751 &
! 1
1%) *$ +
+ +
! +
&57 6 =
! 1
6
- 6
9( " /1 $

**

10 A
10 /| # 0
$ + )
0A | #
" 5
))
()
+ 4
0] a7
v+ 47
8
41
7
" 1
-/ ) *
8 ) *
/ ) 7*
| = 0
))
( 1
**(,*_,_
e 47
7
0-+



&57 6 =. 6 =/

"%

& $ '())

555

9

) -

))

*('*' 7
X 74
)
+ 4
o
- 4
+ O
G+!1 ) 74
)L ) 4*
) * ) 74*
%% > ! % 102" #3 $5
0 %" 8
B 3
"75
(- ¢, () +(*
14 4
7 14
() O 0" (++
41 7 477
741 4 17
)( (. )+ 0
)G+ : O+ G
(+ ) (*-)
14 771 7 4 4
7 4 77 44
41 4 1
71 41 14 711
4 4
447 47
7 77 7 1
4 1 17 47 7
7) 47 4 4



A "75
0 %"
)- *
1 7 14 1 7
4 14 1
6 1
A 41 44 4
4 17
6 7 4 4
9 4 777
o 7 74
$ ! 7 71 1 44
3/ $ , ! L ( ! AR
! ( ( % " !
% | $ - 1% 1o $ 2
+ # 33 )2 *'% 9% # A 39= #?
# 1 & ? #1 9 ( & 0?2&@ O + &
YO + *0 /[ # 2 # 1 & Y&/ | (
1 7 $ + ) *
. I % ! |/ ) Vol %S % *!
02"#3 % I /8
))
n ! (- 1
8&%$ % : ) 4*
| '() 1
& /| %+% | / ! #/
/ $+ /| /
! $ [ A 02" # $ I V"% (
10 /# % 1
= | $$ + $
% "/ 0 /# ?& - [ %$
- / > 3% $% % %
- 02"#3 % > %S % /[ 4
$+ - # > %$%

/ 6/ + | / + " %



- 02"#3 $ #$ + %$ % % |

/ $ % " ! $
T / o " #
! % ! $+ "# ( - + " %
% %$ % [ % '/ %
$$ " 146 1/$< s
% % + - , 3 6 1/$ <
I % . . - 02"#3 %
# %$ % 1/$ < / + % /
$ < % % % % $ )==9*
nm "0 /#
* &7 & 55
$ : # oo
%" 1" + ( -2 #)-1 # &
+ " | ( "H - #$ 1 %
%$ % M
& / / %$ % " >
02"#3 $ #5 1 % "
/ > 10 %" - + " % %
%$ % " / % '/ %
$$ ° 1/s< " > .o %
% + - , 3 /3 < I % .

8& 55 5< 6 3

6 ] ! $$ (
$ ! 02"#3 $ # /
I % o ! %$ % / >
" 02"#3 $ #5 | %
, %
% > % % # 1 % ( 10 "&
$! % $ +
; - $ 9,%
% | %) *
- "75
% > % %$ !/ % 717 7
$ + o2" #3 $5 ! %
$ + #5 |
% - $ % > | %$ !/ $
9,% % ! %) *
0% % > 5 % 7
$ + " 02" #3 $ #5 |
% $ $ ! 3 $ 9,%

% ! %) *



*+

%$ % / > " #!1 % !
% - % / > ! #5 (
! " 7
& 02"#3 % # 6 9 I 1
$ ! % 747
II@ 4II
I %$ % %% > "
"# $ % %
)) ))
" | 8
&+ %
% > ( (- 7
A + +(+ ,0-* 4
#3$ % Jk- 7 *, 7
&+ % $% 7 (+) 41 (",
2(+), 1 X)) 4
(- ) 714
&%S$ % ) + %
&+ %
% > )/ /
A +" -0) (. 4
' , 7
- (+) 7
C 61! < %
cC 6! +(-1) 1% +(' ) 4 *
B + * ) * *
? + ) 7* + ) 7*
'< % )/ 6 1
?+ /) * 8 6
+(++/) 71 --. ) 1
18
&+ %
% > (* (* 1
A + (- 44 () 17
#$ % Jk- 71 *, 7
&+ % $ 9 7 () 4 ¢t
Q) 4 ).
*( 11 - (
- 02"#3 $ #$ + %$ % )+ * "
% BE & % )44* ) 1* $ + 1
$ + $ + - %$ %
" ! BE & > $ ! % /"
Lo 8! % ! %  + %
) *
- 02"#3 $ # 5+ %$ % ) + *
%% % % 4 4 ) 1*
$ + |/ > + D A"
% ! $ * & 02"#3 $
# S+ %NS % $+ ! %
% ) * > $ |
A" % ! $ )



%$ %

%$ % 6!

0%

- %

w$ !/

0 "#8
0%

- %
0 % 8
0%

- %

"HI$

$ 9

%

1 7 4
"#3 $5 % ! %
$ + #5
#3 $5 % ! %
#5 % !
"# $ % %
)) ))
**( 4 7 "+ (+)* 7
) 0* 4 7 (-)(+ 14
* (+ 74 1 -(* 7
)(+) (+, )(=_(- 74
$ *8
"# $ % %
)) ))
) 1 )
*(") 74 *(") 74
(- 1 ( 1
'Q 1 )(+) 44
* () 47 (* 4 1
( (- 4 747 (,+(- 14
* (- 71 4 ' 7 4
) =(+- )
)(+) (+, )= (- 74
/8
"# $ % %
)) ))
)(-()+ 44 )0 1
*"("+ 7 4 * (*+~k 7
)(+) (+, )= (- 74




- % $! $ /
"#$ % %
)) ))
A )N 7 )G 7
! + ) (!!_ ) (I'* 7 4
I+ (% 1 (L, 1
)(+) (+, )-_(- 74
- 02"#3 % # 3 1% | %
+ % $ 1% . 4.
O% + $ + n |’ + n
/ % $ + 1, ) 7%
- 02"#3 $5 % $ #5 A- 0 |
0 %" I /8
'$$ + o+ ? )) & 0 = 0
7 ( $ %" 1 = 1
= 4 1 -() 1 'S ' 7
1 71 +() 4 =1 4 +%" 1
1 (+ 4 4 1 B" 4
"(+) 4
- $ I % IA- 0 + | #5
% $! 1l $$ $ $
& %% |/ 4 = $$
$ " I 02"#3 % "< +
(% ! .1 +% = + $$ A-0
47 A-0 7' 02"#3 $
#l'< + (% 7. $ + N 4+ =
3 D
- %% ! 1/ / I %8
"#$ % %
)) ))
By 4 -1(*I| l -1(*I| l
4 (" 4 4 A 4 4
B "t * (++ 7 *(-) 7 1
A " # )G 14 8 6
0% " + 6 + 6
*(O)+ 6 8 6
) *(* 177 (-* 41




" #

B
$ %
- % $!
%
= %
$ n n
C7.) 7
L] %$
"# $ %
B, $
B "#
A " #
0$
%
B, $
B "#

%

/8
"# $ % %
)) ))
) () 47 (-'+ 1
+'( 4 4 - (*, 1
) *(* 177 (* 41
/
"# $ % %
)) ))
)*(,* 71 +( 7 4
++(" 1 +-( 1
( 7 )0 7
(- (-
) *(* 177 (- 41
7 .
$ & 9,%
! % ) 7*8
))
)(+! 7 1
", 1 41
)0 - 11
+ 71
6 6
* 7 /1
( 471 1
)(+! 7 1
* 1 4
)0 - 11
6 7
( 7 1




& "5 &
55 | ! 5 ))
" 41
B" 4 B" 7. (-* 14
$ %" 1 = ) 1 *() 7
"7 "7 8 771

4 4
- ! ) * ! #5 "
% % + $ 6 %! $$ 6
$ < TR "

+) 55 & 649

4 0 $$ + " %
% B"

! n
0 $$ +
#5 %

I "
n
- # l $ I /8
& "5 &
55 ! ! 5 ))
B" ! 77. 7 *0, 7
'$ L(+ 7
- 1
I
+ & & 6 $ 5 5 6 4 & &1 5
11} / I n | %l + n
/ " 6
"#$ %
4 3 49 & I'5
%5 5 5 5 %5 3 $5 3 75
| 7 4 4 1 14 6 6 6 17
1/ %! +
' "l 71 6 6 7 14
28 % 1"/ ) 71 %) * 6 ) ) 74 %) *) *) *
6 ! +
& % > ) * 4 ) 1+ 6 6 1 4
2+ 7 6 6 6 6
& 56!&$ () * (et ( - )* + 8 )+ LA
! 7 14 7 71 6 6 17 17
V%! +
o 14 4 44 1 447 6 11
28% 1"/ ) 417 * 6 ) 7 %) 77 6 ) ) *) 1 *
6 ! +
& % > ) * 1% 7 ) * 6 6 6
2+ ) 7)) 7 x 6 ) 7% 6 6 6 ) 7%
10 %" 7 4 4 1 14 6 6 6 177
! 7 71 6 77 6 6 1 7
V%! +
oy 4 6 717 7 6 1
28% 1"/ ) * 6 6 ) * 6 ) ) 1 0*) 74 *
6 ! +
& % > 71 ) 41 * 6 6 ) 4% 74
?+ ) * ) 7* 6 ) * 6 6 6 ) 771*
10 %" 7 1 4 7 71 6 6 17 17




%

4 3 49 & !5
%5 5 5 5 %5 3 $5 3 "75
! 71 4 4 1 6 6 6 6 41
VI %! +
' "l 4 6 6 1
28 % 1"/ ) 4.7 ) 6 6 ) 74 6 ) 17
6 ! + 6
& % > ) * 4 6 6 6 6
?2+ 4 7 6 6 6 [ 1
& 56!&$ '()) -) ( * 8 + 8 (=*
! 744 14 7 6 6 6 6 71
VI %! +
' "l 17 44 1 6 4 17
28 % 1"/ ) 4 1+ 6 ) 7 %) * 6 ) ) 1+
6 ! +
& % > ) 1*) 1 7 6 6 6 6
?+ ) ) 7 6 ) 1 6 6 6 ) 1*
10 %" 71 4 4 1 6 6 6 6 41
! 71 6 6 6 7 1
VI %! +
' "l 11 6 717 6 6 6 6 71
28 % 1"/ ) * 6 6 6 6 6 *) 77*
6 ! +
& % > 71 6 6 6 ) 4* 7
2+ ) 7*) 7 6 6 6 6 6 ) 7+
0 %" 744 1 4 7 6 6 6 6 71
3# "y | " 3 D
_ 1] ) * $
n n
$ 6 % ! # /
—_ "
- % = - #
n I # " % I $
$ " #
$ # " I $%
0$ & $  )0&* $ .
n
$+ N# / $6$9 + | 1%

||<



- 18
))
A $ + , ('+ 7
% $ n .(_’
5 + _* 4
()t 47
- $ | | $ n /
))
C |(|_ 4
= L 1 4
()t 47
& n % n > | /8
5 & 5 E5
& $ 5 37 6 $ 5
)) )) ))
+ 18
1'$ 0 41 8 6 - 41
E " 6 #
JE2A* )*()- 1447 8 6 )*()- 1447
3 $ ! $ -+ 1 *_ 71
$ 8 6
% ( ‘G- 4
5 + ( 4 8 6 (- 4
L)+ 47 O+ 4 4
- %+% $ + ! /8
5 E5
& 515 37 6 $ 5
)) )) ))
! * 7 7 (- 7 14
% % + +(+* ) 4 +0) 1
A" I'$ %
I %
"
% : (N 4* ) * (* ) 4*
I+ %
%
$ Y(+* 1 8 6 )+ 1
+ |
(+,/ 1 8 6 (+/ 1
B , < % **) ) * 8 6 **) ) *
! (*+ 7 (*- 1
- %+% A $ + | 0 %"
> $ | + " | % $
9% 02"#3 $5 % % ) *



? 5 !
2"#3 $5 %
< 3
!
3
$
$II
= 5 #
1 $II
A "
$ D
0+ + / +
I+
?2 % "1
%% $ !
C , $
A 3
0 -
! $$
$ >
0 $ 3
- % $1! !
elcles
C
- " %
0 %"
$ '+ I$
+ $+ " 8
$ %) 4*
% $
% n
& $
2"#3 $ 41
$ + |/ $
& $

$ ! ? 0
s ) *
/ 8
"# $ % %
)) ))
(+ 4 7 ()* 171
;( ') v( ')
(—++ 17 '(,+) 14
'(-) (* 1
)(+- 1 (+
(! 17 (' 17
1) *) *)7* () 7 )(*)
"(+ 6 (., 6
'(* 8 6
) Q)] 4
* 47 )* 1
) -y
77 71
8 6
7 ( 4 (+, 7
+( %, 17 *(,, 1
$ /
"# $ % %
)) ))
GG
++(" 47 7 +(* 11
) () - *(,
+( *, 17 *(,, 1
$ % 11 !
+ $ $ $ 0"+
/ % " ! !
! # $ /
! $
" % 41 411 0
4 | #
$ & $ !
% I % ) 7*



)

& $ " % 14 1
$ + ! 02"#3 $ 4 4
$ + ! #1/ $ $ & $ "
$ " " & 9,% % ! %
) >
&%$ % ) + * > 1 1" # % 4 4
) 1x1 " 02"#3 $ #
$ + - % %$ % 10 %"
% 4 1 7 $ + | " 02"#3 $
# $ | A" %
Il $ ) *
C# D
) 3 &%
$ # 1/ 8
$ 637 5
)) ))
! D $ +
>
! C(C( (
& ' % (( (
|
%% D $ +
' >
! C(C( (
& 1 $
! “(+*0)~( 7417 *(+) 747
& 0 ( 41 4 ' 4
! *(+(( 747 1 ®(+ 7 47
) 6 37 5
- ! I 02" #3 $ #5 $ |
8
$% $ + 6% + + " 63 $ $ 6 %
$#% + " %% $ ! oI+ I %
$ 102"#3 $ % |
$1% 0+ $ %! $ +
) ) 37 5
- #5 $3$ ! ! %% /I $$ + " 9
'$ 7 - $3% ! I'$ 14 %%
/I $+ ! $ n$ l 14 4% -
$ I % 102" #5 % "



$ %" 7 #5 0 > #
$ # ! - 9 $% +
+%|| O %ll 7 $ +
1 #, ! % ! # n/
n n mn %% ! + %%
! 1 s 141%
- s I % 1 7 1
B / ! n$ # ! %% #
N 17 44 %% / " ( 9
1 - M 6 $
% I 1 -1 $ /
$$ #5 % %6 % / "< + % 51+ "
% % $3$ $+ o " o+ $ (%
/ I % %$ 10 &
- ! I % $" n o Y&* "( $+
$ % %! % $ ! ?
I /8
$ 6
58& 3%5& $ 55 1 37 55
& E = 4 4
+ $ % & B
$  )&B* 7
+ $ % 2 B" 4 7
069 & = 069 & = = 1 4
+ $ % &B 1 7
+ $ % 39 % &
@ $ 11 4
+ $ % = ? 0+ $%
$ '$ 1 74
+ $ % &B '$ 7
+ $ % & $ >
Y9( *B A '$
# o+ 4 14 4 4
# E 7 4 44
+ $ % "9 &+ % 0 $ 77 4
#$ E %$
0 %" 7 7
#$ E %$ 1
0 %" 1 1 7
# E %$ 1 1 7 44
# E  %$ 4
#$ E %$ 1
0 %" 1 1
#$ E %$
0 %" 4 41 4
#$ E %$
0 %"
74
10 %" 77 $ + |
(+ o #5
1 4 % 10 %" 0 %"
*



)) " &15 &

'$ 4 # $ A+ '% 0%
2 $)0?* %"/ " $ 0 %%
" 2 +6 6 ) -0 H# - $+ 1" !
2 + 0 %% % >
& % $ $ 12 '0? + + " "
$ + 1 #5 0?2 (
2 + + $
+ 2 - '0? ! 05 % A+ '0? %
8 |/ 0? $ 0 %%
- $ A+ '0? % I/
'0? 2 -H % # ,
$ A+ & &'0? $ A+ &8&&'0?/ I
> 2, ) J9 'O ! A+ '0? $
I 1 00 A+ &8&& '0? / /
$ $" 1'0? 2
- $ A+ '0? |, %% 2 ? 6)*! % 9
( % $ " "6,
2 $ $ 9
- #3%% 0 #)0* , + $ 102!
$ I+ "8 "H# O $ "
/ 10 ?: ! 0
%% % ! I : " I+ :
s + & ) O0*H&+ H #
& " 4 # |/ $$ % 10 , T
$ 1'0? | I+
10 %" 77 141 1'0? + 2N 7 7
2N 7 4)" % * $ + % ) %$
'‘0? $ 1I2N7 H 2N 7H $ + *
) 3 54
- ! #5 + " 1 /8
1 1& 57 5 1 !
1 37 & ! F $
B" = =
3 7 s% 1 $ %"
0 %" 1 7 0 % 0 %"
B" 1 = =
- 1
' $ %" $ %"
0 %" 0 %" 0 %"
B" 7 = =
S $ %" $ %"
0 %" 7 0 %" 0 %"



I 1& 6 57 51 !

oy}
Ww i

# ! ! $ !
$ ! ! - + % I %
$+ " %' % 1/ " ( ! $ B
% | (

)* 3 5515

# 53 $ $ B % 77 71
$ ! ! -
/I $$ + " #5 0 | # 33 $ $ B
% $ + 3 !
P I $$ + " %
02"#3 $ # 33 % $ B! %% %
! $ 1 % 1 Y4 * )41r
7 $ + - % % 1333
$ + | $ ! 10 %"
% 7 $ + I 02"#3 %
17 $ + ! # - $% % /
$ " / > $ ! % ? 0+
& %% / 102" #3 $ #5
$! 1% % 1 1
$ + 4 $ + $$ $
$ + ) 4*
0'!'o $$ + $$ $
$ (% + I $+ $$ + $$ %
! + % $ +
$ + $$ $ % "
0 "% & 7 % + $ !
+1 (% 19=% % ,
I 2 = 0!o0

% $$+ + I $ ? + % # $ B



RN
B $
!
"
E
B!
9,%
9,
-/ +
0 %"
&
'$ %
4 |/
4
-+ |
+ %
%$ /
"+
"+
"+
"+
"+
"+
"+
- ’$
#5 +

/a
414 $ +
%% I %" |I'$
|
!$/1
$ +
#
( $
! $ ?
$
$ /I %
# I
+ 8
$ !
$
l$
L+ 18
+
+
#6! + %
+ /I %
$ |

02"#3 $ I %%
% > $  #)
+ $ 8
"# 3 % %
)) ))
- +)" 1 7 4
*C+(™ '()(-)
(+ 1) 4* YO/ ) 4*
S0 ) 71 . -1 ) 11 *
Ox(-1/ )44 1* . *('(+/ ) 4 4 *
*C () 74 7 W+ () + 7 7
7 4!
#9$ ,
> " I %
+ $ 3$ %
+
+ ! #6
! 9 -1/ %$ $
4
7 11
7 7.
1.
! $ I



)*

3 n
% I 1/ 8
"#$ %
))
A 4" 1 V*(*+ 41 4
- + %
8
"% > ) 77 7
'BE & 0 7 1
' BE- A ) 1
0! % "# 4 (* 4 4
7 7
(- 1
%
))
A +" 1 (., 7
- + 0
8
"% > (" 4 7
' BE & (" 77
' BE- A 47 41
0!% "# 4 (" 7
) 71
L(=) 7 1 4
3 B3
$ % ! !/ 8
"# $ %
))
0% " 11 () 71
$ " 4
" (-* 1 141
B ! + - 41
(" 4




0% "
$ n
"
B n
"<t " 1B 33
$ % %%
+ |
%%
& $ % %
-
B,
& %! %
? 1
- 6
0+
= 6
+ I
%%
% !
-
B,
& %! %
? 1
- ) *6
0+
= 6

%
))
(¥ 47
(* 1
+ - 1 4
), 7 4 4
8
"# $ %

))

"+ 74 1
+(' 717
*("* 4
') 174 4

0-

0, 7

) 1
) -

(== 1 4

(O

%

))

)0 111
(' 4 7
"(*-- 11
')~ 1

-* 1 71
*+) 7
|*/
4 4
4
*(, 1 7 7 7




%3 "
B %%

%

%

%S "
B %%

%

/

8

" $ %
))

* (o 1 4
(* 77 44
(" 11
(+ 1 7
0) 1 4
(H)+
'+ 17
)+, 7

(+) 71
(+ 411
(* 17 7
(" 4
( ]
4+ 7 77
74
-' 11
+ 1 7
(- 4
(+- 7 77
%
))

s 111
. 71 4
( 7
() 4 414
(- 71 4
‘() 4 1
) 7 7
(+ 741
(- 1

0
(' 44 4
(= 4
114
. 1 44
" 7 1
(+** 1
(. 1 7 1




" 3"l 43
), 5 6 5
9,% > 1 %$ ") * $ "
"# $ %
))
/ )(*
-(+-, 1 1
2 % 61! "1$ )(*) 1 4
0* 447
9%$ #$ 3 )-" 7 7
" ( 77
*(_** 1 4
%
))
/ ) (* 71 4 1
(%) 77 44
?2 % 6! "I $ (+) 4 4
() 4 1
9%$ #$ 3 ) 4
"o 0. 7
(-+ 111
),) 58 6 5
$% ! I +
- 02"#3 % # % [ % 6 %%
6( ! " % $ " % "
#5 + % $ + I 6 % %%
- % % !/ % %% !! + ! + -
$ $+ | % '/ % %% ! !
+ % $ % % " | %
(+ $ I % . '$ I+ !
+
$#%34 , + !
' + % $ % "
% 1 " "% $ $ "

+ $ " I'% $



B + IS
o1 1%

ol 1

2 % ) *H

% + % $

$ $
& %
s " %
I H) %t $
2% % 6
$ ),
%

*

! > :
A" ) * $ +
% 1 /8
"# $ % %
)) ))
)= 744 +() 4
() * (-1 ) 4+
") * ¢ ) 7
- 8 71
(+ ) * ( ) 1*
+ 10 I /8
"# $ % %
) )
*()++ 1 "+ 4
'0) ) 71* . () 74 *
)(* 1 (+) 4
0) 111 0
'+ 6 8 6
8 ) * * |/ ) *
*( l, 7 '( %
'( ! ) 4* '(*,* ) 1 *
" N 6
] el 7 44 +() 4
'$ $ "
"# $ % %
)) ))
G )(+) 14
0+, 4 ( 7
(-+ 1 0-)
‘07 ) 71* (-1 ) 74 *
8 */) *
‘* ) 4 * * _ ) 4 *
(- (e 4




- %$ S L $ $ !
# /"
"#$ % %
)) ))
0 8
3+ % (* 4 (-
$ " _(_)1 v(l) 7
2&-B +( +(! 41
9( ++ 47
A +" * 1 *% 1
(+ -* LR 1
$$ (*+ 7 ¢
H( (.- 4
' $ / 7 1 44 41
02"#3 % #5 | % $ +
$ 02"#3 $5 /! %
F 1) *G
-+ 1% A+ I+ , 5!
2&-B / A+ + " $s  /
A+
- %S I % > $! %$ +
% ! 02"#3 $ # $ rorl
$ I /8
"# $ %
))
Io- 1
+ (> 1 4
+ "+ 6 6
& $ ) %* Ji 4
)+ 1
lo- ! !
4% " 5676%1
' ) * %
8
TS$ < % ‘() 1 14
T% $ %3 Y+ 6 ) 44%
T! %$ )(- * 1
2% % ) * | %8
T $ ),
%
$ : *y/ 4
T n o1
*'/ ) *
0, 17*
ol | % - 6 6
( 17*




%

))
lo- 1
+ (+) 4 4
& $ ) %* / 1 4
(-- 17
lo- ! !
4% " 5676%1
' ) * I %
8
T$ < % ), 14
T% $ %$ * 6 6
T! %$ ) * 7
2% % )y * I %8
T $ ),
%
$ v 711
T no
- 6
*(*+) 1* 7
gl % - 6 6
G ) 1* 7
) *!
) * 44
(5 ) 1* 4
+ $ $ ! %% "ol
$ 9,% ) */ 5 % $
& 9% ) 7* % ! % |
02"#3 % #
‘% > %% + 05/ / %
/[ Lo $! % ! %$ +
%
& % % 1$ 6%% % " ! " I/
I %$ / 8
"# $ % %
)) ))
0 '08 *0 41.6 4. '0 44,
9,% I
)08 -0 .6 *08 -0 .6
" %% ! % 5 " $"
% -+ % | # + | +
! - %% [/ + $ "% % /
! $ 0 ! % !
$ $ " > $ + % "
/ % 1% $$ ,% % | % "
%% " " 0 # % % 5

3



$% , ! +
-3 % 02"#3 % # #
+ % # # + # #
$%
- $ + 10 %
I % # I + O 3
I + % " |/ $ @/ +
/I "$ nn $5 + %

! $ P / / !
$ $ %S ! + % 2&-B " (
% (+ +" 0

6 % '$ " + 1 "
$$ $ % ! 02"#3 $ 6 % %
$ o+
$ %
- $ + 1 0 "ol " % !
% I $%$ $ " ! %3 %
! ( ! $ I $
$ $ / $
$% *
- 1% + ! I %%
6" % % Il 1/
% $ " $
$% :
-1 "/ $ %% > I !
! %% % !
% ' 10 %"
& 6 "$
7 & 5 1& 5
55 55 55
"# $ %
&% '())
0 GF80 + X
GF80 ( . (+/
0 %"
0 OH6. ) *
OH6 . 7)



& 6 "$
7 & 5 & 5
55 55 55
%
1&$ '())
0 GF80 (*-*/ (,
GF80 (, . (*,'/
0 %"
0 OH6. ) 4 * 47
OH6 . 47 ) 4 *
- "+ + " %$ /
%$ - % " $ + |
P # %$
/ ! % ! % % "
B % $ "+ + $ + !

A " $ < %

r$ $ |/ % $$

e > % I $

- % $ ! %$ $3$ +
%$ $+
$% # (!
- % % $ 02 "#3 $
%$ %% + % $ %
/ 6" % + 6 %
+ % / " % % -
% % $ % " "+ 6 %
I, ) + % $ " 2&-B*/ %
% 1S % ! $$ $

02"#3 $ + % / $ !

+ % % 5 ! / I % %
& + /! + % % " + 1§ !

! ! + % / + % %% + +

8 I $ 10 %" !

" % 2&-B 02"# 3% #
+ (+ ( % $$ -
% + % " $ "

- " 02"#3 % #5

% #! %S+ 3



$ % , 34 ! #
10 %" $ ! 02" #3 $ #
L4 $ + " +
$ C % % %! ( % > |
! % $ Vo#l ! %" ! %$
$
- 02"#3 $ #.$ $ 1 77
$ + " % " ! $
- % % ! $ 0! $% '02"#
3 % #1% $ | , $ I /8
"# $ %
%
/ I+ 7 7 4 11
/o, 7 1
"(+ +(+ +
- + ! el " !
$ $ 7 ! 02 "#3 $ 7 !
#
)3
02"#3 $59 8 % > "
# " + +  $ & +
7 47 $ + ' 02"#3 &
1 $ + ! #
-9 % $ ! %$ "l $
9,% 02" #3 $5 % ! % % 1 7
7 $ + #5 % ! %
% 4 $+) *



' D 3 "3
- # ? %% %$ !
$ 6, 10 %" -
%% + " # %$ /
$
- %% 02" #3 $5 / $
0 %" ! ! 1 /8
56 5& "5
)) ))
"3 5 1)*
# (s 1 0., 4
2
%% | % ) 7 1 6 7
0 6 6
1 9%$ (+- 74 4 )+
'5 $ 5 1)
# (- 77 1 +) 44
2
%% |/ $ ) 4 )- 4
0 ! 7 6 *
! 9%$ ) 4 7
"7 5& 5=7
55& 5 1)*
A '+ *+ 4 +(), 4
& & % ) + 1
5#
'= 57 1)*
? 616 (- 14 4 "(* 71
A A" (*_* 4 )(+ y 1
0% 9,% +* )*
& 9,% 7 —+ 4
A 5 1) *
%$ (* 4 8
1)* 4 17 +
- %% ! #5 ! / $ !
0 %" ! ! 1 /8
56 5& "5
)) ))
"3 5 1)*
# (s 1 0., 4
2
%% | $ ) 7 1 6 7
0 6 6
0 9%$ + 7 14 ), 7
15 $ 5 1)
# * (- 77 1 +) 44
?
%% /| $ )(O)* 7 4
0 ! 7 6 *
n 9%$ ) 4 7



56 5& "5
)) ))
"7 5& 5=7
385 5 1) *
A '+ ) ( 1 74 7 )() 77
0+ +° ) 6 6 ' 8
0+ +A" y) 71 8 1
0$ A" DEAD) 44 * 1 *(-, 71
" 8 ) *) 1*
= - ) : )
= A" )+ 6 * 8
& & % 4
?2 &% Y 7 8 8
+ B +-* 1 1 8 8
& 9,$ 4 8 8
? 616 ' 8 6 6 7
A A" )) *) * 4
0% H% > * 8 8
& 9% DB
A % - 1 4 8 8
B ) 1 8 8
= 9,% - 6 8 8
& 9,% *) 7 8 8
- 3 HA )1) *) 4* 8 8
= & % * 6 8 8
?% = 8 8
B %% * 7 8 8
"7 5& 5=7
55& 5 1)*
A '+ *+ 4 +(), 47
& & % ) 77 77 + 1
5
'= 57 1)*
? 616 (;+* 14 4 ‘( 71
A A" (+ 4 )(*) 1
0% 9,% + )
& 9,$ -+ 7 - 4
A 5 1)*
%% 1 8 6
1)* 4 17 +('*
& A 02" #3 # o+
$ / $ 0 ?& "
n / $
$% +
2 $ I 02"#3 $ # "
I % 3 % /
[1] % % + n !
%% " # - 3 # % % !
n n # n / - % ! +
0?2& !/ 1.% " , % !
%" $ "H+ | + % 02"#3 $

#



- 0 ?& I 02"#3 $ #
I 02"#3 $ #5 | "1 %
0 ?2& >"$" 6 6 3
% $ " +
- % 1 1!
02"#3 $ 17 1! # $ + -
% 4 ! 0
2"#3 $ 17 1! # % + -
% 7 1! 02" #
3% 4 7 7! # $ +
$#% +
- $ % " $ % 71 1
4 7 ! 02"# 33 71 7
4 ! $ + "
L A -
$ 1% $ % 1 4
$ + ) 7*
$98 ! +
02"#3 $5 % | /[ O
2"#3 $ 10 %" !
I /8
56 5& "5 &
)) ))
A %$
02" #& 8 6 .
&+ % !
02" #& 8 6 x4
0A 8 6 )
0 "
) A- 0*
02"#& 8 6 +() * 11
02" #& + 8
& $
02" #& 8 1 8
? %
02"#& ) 8



- 02"#3 $5 % !

# 10 %" ! I
I /8
56 5& "5 &
)) ))
A %$
02"# & 8 6 -
&+ % D
02"# & 8 6 *+
0% "
) A- 0%
02"#& 8 6 +() * 11
02"# & + 8
& 5
02"# & 8 1 8
? %
02"# & ) 8
0 ! " ! 02"#3 $ #0" |
$ "8 %$ $
$% 8 | +
" %% ! ! #/ "
$ / -
$ " /
$% / B A + " % 0O2"#
3 $5 ! % ! /[ " 1 /8
$6% , | #
- # 6" + " L/ #  $
( % |/ $ " / I, $% %
- + % 4 7 77
1 $ + +
" > $ I +" A
? +" #5 % I $ %
1 10 %" $ + ) *
- # " 6"
" / " 1 4 1 '0 %"
$ + $ $ IA A
?2 4" #5 % I $
) * - % 7 11 74
/ % 1 4 1
$ + - $ " / %"/ +
I+ & % > $ $ &
& % #5 % ! %) * &
1 %% 1 1. .5



% " s

" N $ ( $%
1% "
$ & % #5 % !
! s 1+ $
+" 10 " 10 %"
% 7

$5984 +

- # > 616

1% 0 /# 0 @& '+ !
1 7 10 %"

$ | % B B, 9( $%
$ % > ! 616
% 7
$ 1 $ $ 9%

% ) * - 3
& $ ! "’

#5 % |
4 $ + ) 7* "’
% 4 10 %"

$ A "

$ 0% 1o 1
#5 % 1 %
10 %"

%) - %

- %

I'$

$ + / $
* 0%

I %
$ + $

-- $
& 93
%/ % 11
I %














































































